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The Group is the leading medical group in China specialized in
providing hair-related healthcare services, and offering one-stop hair-
related healthcare services covering hair transplant, medical hair care,
and routine hair restoration and other ancillary services.

Through decades of dedication and commitment to China’s
hair-related healthcare industry, the Group has made Yonghe
Hair Transplant (ZERfE%2) a well-known and highly trusted brand
among its peers, and has promoted many major developments and
advancements in the industry. After acquired the business of Svenson
in China and successfully established a Svenson Medical Hair Care
Center (REBREEFREA L) in each of its clinics in China under
a "“shop-in-shop” model, the Group further expanded its footprint
outside the China by acquiring the Hong Kong business of Nu/Hart
Hair, a renowned hair transplant service provider originated from the
U.S. In addition, through the establishment of a joint hair laboratory
with the Peking University People’s Hospital, the Group promotes the
research and promotion of the application of standardized diagnostic
and treatment procedures for hair loss diseases, which is blazing a
trail toward collaborative research and development with academia
and showing the way forward for the hair-related healthcare service
industry. We believe that such pioneering actions will enhance our
core competitiveness and further strengthen our leading position in
the industry.

The Group has built a one-stop medical hair care services system to
meet the medical demands of a wide range of patients. Leveraging
standardized and highly scalable business model, the Group has
achieved industry-leading operational capabilities, enabling us to
effectively control costs, boost operational efficiency and improve
profitability. The Group continues to improve our diagnostic,
therapeutic, and research and development capabilities by
collaborating with experts from Class IlIA hospitals and renowned
academic institutions. In addition, in order to continuously improve
medical service to patients, to stay ahead of the technological curve
and to propel business development, the Group has always been
actively promoting and adopting new technologies in its business,
including data usage and analysis, intelligent services and online
services. The Group believes that such strengths have reinforced our
industry-leading position and will sustain our growth momentum into
the future.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR12A318
As at December 31,
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARETRT AREBTT AR®TT ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ReExE Operating results
RERFAHRIRA Revenue from contracts with
customers 1,777,258 1,412,791 2,168,580 1,638,297 1,224,477
EF Gross profit 997,186 872,579 1,579,976 1,221,630 889,098
P8 FiAT (E538), FIE (Loss)/profit before income tax ~ (585,219)  (109,466) 210,276 230,914 71,523
FN (E18),/ FE (Loss)/profit for the year (546,684) (85,858) 120,188 163,332 35,624
BEFIED Profitability
ESVES Gross profit margin 56.1% 61.8% 72.9% 74.6% 72.6%
48 (18) = Net (loss)/profit margin -30.8% -6.1% 5.5% 10.0% 2.9%
®12A831H
As at December 31,
2023 20224 20214 20204 20194
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
BRI Financial Position
BEME Total assets 2,444,561 2,930,368 3,199,303 1,594,356 931,213
MRS 4EEE Total equity 942,251 1,585,310 1,698,345 406,058 239,120
BfERsE Total liabilities 1,502,310 1,345,058 1,500,958 1,188,298 692,093
RekREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 603,215 565,093 1,566,192 292,856 89,789
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

In retrospect of last year, Yonghe Medical Group moved steadily
forward in the ever-changing market environment, demonstrating our
strong resilience and high adaptability when encountering complex
challenges. Amid dynamic economic landscape and challenges facing
the consumer healthcare industry, not only did we grow in business
scale, but we also seized development opportunities that we explored
within and outside of the industry.

Although there were multiple external pressures, our Group delivered
robust improvement in performance in 2023. During the Reporting
Period, the Group reported a total revenue of RMB1.78 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 25.8%, reflecting a strong
growth momentum. Gross profit increased year-on-year by 14.3%
to RMB1.0 billion, and gross profit margin remained stable at a high
level of 56.1%. Despite the Group’s net loss of RMB550 million
for the current financial year, we are confident that the financial
performance will significantly improve as we further pursue our
strategic optimisation and deployment and the market ecosystem is
on track of progressive improvement.

Our core businesses, namely the hair transplant service and the
medical hair care service, continued to serve as our dual engines that
their performance delivery was particularly eye-catching. For the hair
transplant service, revenue surged by 31.4% year-on-year to RMB1.35
billion and the number of surgical patients climbed up significantly by
55.6%, which fully reflected the recognition and trust of consumers
for our professional services. The business segment of the medical
hair care service also experienced steady development. Statistically,
it recorded a year-on-year increase in revenue of 7.1%, the number
of patients who received the service of 78,000, and the repurchase
rate of our medical hair care service packages standing at 23.4%.
The two major businesses had an annual average price per customer
transaction of RMB22,174 and RMB4,934, respectively, showing a
higher customer value.

During the Reporting Period, we deepened the reforms of our internal
management and service model to focus on enhancing our medical
service quality and patients’ satisfaction. We ensured our high level of
service standard and quality by adopting measures such as optimising
our medical process, adjusting our pricing system and implementing
the physician reception system. Although these reforms, when being
implemented and initially integrated, affected our profitability to
a certain extent, we believe they will be beneficial to the Group’s
sustainable development in the long run.
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To address new trends and challenges in the hair industry, we made
a series of strategic adjustments. On the one hand, we actively
expanded the Group's business network by opening 21 hair transplant
clinics and 7 Svenson medical hair care centers to expand our service
coverage and influence. On the other hand, adhering to the principle
of intensive cultivation, we made refinements to some assets, and
closed 9 Yonghe Medical hair transplant clinics and 3 Svenson centers
for the optimisation of resource allocation and enhancement of
operational efficiency and service quality. As at the end of 2023, we
operated 75 hair transplant clinics in 72 cities nationwide, and 13
Svenson hair care centers, which consolidated our leading position
as the largest hair-related healthcare clinic chain in China in terms
of scale and geographical coverage. In addition, we made a number
of key achievements that strongly promoted the transformation and
upgrading of the Group:

o Sorting out business presence and building a comprehensive hair
diagnosis and treatment ecosystem

Amid macroeconomic and market complexities and variabilities in
recent years, we adhered to our strategic principles of precise insight
and timely response by timely seizing the market opportunities
arising from falls in rents to efficiently promote large-scale expansion
of Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics. Although the economy failed to
recover as strongly as expected in 2023 which led to public comments
describing our expansion strategy as somewhat aggressive, the series
of forward-looking layouts literally laid a solid foundation for the
Group in taking over the market share at low levels and getting
well-prepared for consumption recovery. At the same time, we also
keenly captured the window period of economic recovery during
which we carried out an in-depth restructuring and optimisation of
the hair transplant and medical hair care businesses in such areas
as their operation mechanisms, performance evaluation systems and
human resources efficiency. This move aimed to achieve refinement
and efficiency of the Group's operations, so as to ensure that the
Group could maintain its competitive advantages under complicated
economic environment and inject strong impetus into the long-term
healthy development of the Group.
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The Group continued to promote the expansion of our medical hair
care business and the upgrading of our products and services. Relying
on our first-mover advantage and economies of scale, we have built
a brand matrix for the full industry chain which is centered on our
“Yonghe Medical” and comprised of “Yonghe Hair Transplant” for
our professional hair transplant service, “Svenson” for our medical
hair care service, “Yonghe Fa Zhi Chu” for our female aesthetic hair
transplant service, and “Harvard” for our medical wig products. To
adapt to the changes in market demand, we have also actively laid out
plans along the entire hair industry chain by setting up comprehensive
hair hospitals in cities including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and
Shenzhen, and intensifying our cooperation with universities and
scientific research institutes for the promotion of industrial-academic-
research integration. During the Reporting Period, the Group set
up a joint laboratory for hair health with Peking University People’s
Hospital, and cooperated with Pfizer Group to provide outpatient
service for alopecia areata. These cooperation efforts represented
the Group’'s commitment to developing a complete system for hair
diagnosis and treatment services, achieving a comprehensive and in-
depth coverage of the hair healthcare service market, and fully seizing
the development opportunities of this growth track.

o Adherence to our fundamental healthcare principle and building
a brand moat

Yonghe Medical has always pursued excellence and firmly believes
that our people are the core competitiveness of corporate
development. Guided by the concept that “outstanding hair transplant
depends on professional physicians”, during the Reporting Period,
the Group continued to strengthen the training and investment for
our medical team to improve their overall level and individual medical
service capabilities, and fully implemented de-marketing, de-packaging
and other internal reform measures in adherence to our fundamental
healthcare principle and for the provision of better services for our
patients:

With our traditional sales model being phased out, we have fully
introduced our physician reception model, which has significantly
enhanced our professionalism and brand credibility. Although we
encountered some challenges in the early stage of the reform such
as long training cycle of physicians and difficulty in recruitment, we,
fortunately through making timely adjustments to our strategies,
introducing assistants to physicians in the reception process and
implementing a differentiated strategy for different tiers of markets,
managed to effectively promote the reform in all tiers of cities.
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In view of the over-packaging phenomenon in the industry, we
adhered to our principle of integrity through the introduction of our
physician hierarchical system. Although we encountered problems in
the early stage such as shortage of mid-to-high end surgical physicians
and increasing cost pressure, with our vigorous efforts in cultivating
and recruiting outstanding physicians, we successfully expanded our
medical team to include more than 1,600 members as at the end of
2023. The strategy of physician hierarchy has been further proved
to be forward-looking and correct as it helped develop a more well-
defined pricing system and enhanced the attractiveness to outstanding
medical talents.

o Adherence to technological innovation and accelerating digital
and intelligent transformation

In the time of economic volatility and imminent technology boom,
the Group has been closely monitoring the development trend of the
industry. We firmly believe that technological innovation is key to
enhancing corporate competitiveness and service standard. Therefore,
we continued to increase our investment in scientific research
and technological development, with focus on applying advanced
technologies to all aspects of our hair healthcare services.

During the Reporting Period, the Group further updated and upgraded
our medical equipment and technology with the introduction of
a series of advanced medical technologies, including vigorously
promoting the application of technologies such as Al diagnosis and
treatment system and image processing technology, to enhance
our diagnostic accuracy and treatment efficiency. These efforts
have significantly enhanced patients’ medical experience and the
Group’s manpower efficiency, and laid a solid foundation for digital
transformation. Meanwhile, we pushed forward the development of
information technology by further improving our digital medical record
and medical data management system, which has enabled sharing
and interconnection of medical information so that our physicians are
provided with more comprehensive and accurate information about
patients and we are able to provide medical services of higher quality
and efficiency.
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These initiatives enabled us to accelerate the Group’s transformation
towards digital and intelligent technology, enhance the quality and
efficiency of medical services, and lay a solid foundation for future
sustainable development of the Group. We will continue to invest in
technological innovation for the provision of higher-quality healthcare
services to customers while promoting digital and intelligent
development of the Group.

Against the backdrop of global economic stagnation and increasing
market complexity and uncertainty, we understand that our journey
ahead will be arduous. Having said that, all staff members of the
Group have demonstrated their tenacity and relentless spirit at such
a difficult time. During the Reporting Period, we made ongoing
adjustments to our strategies striving to cope with challenges, and
achieved some phased progress as a result. Moving forward, Yonghe
Medical Group will continue to uphold our pursuit of excellence and
integrity and insist on the delivery of technological innovation and
quality services, in order to provide patients with higher-quality and
more convenient hair healthcare solutions.

“Long, long is our road, and far, far is the journey; high and low,
up and down, we will search with will.” With our strong faith and
strenuous efforts, we will brave external pressures and overcome
internal difficulties. On behalf of the management team of Yonghe
Medical Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my heartfelt gratitude to all our Shareholders, customers and staff
members for their support. Your trust and companionship help us
grow in challenges and move forward in changes. We look forward to
embracing a brighter future with you!

ZHANG YU
Chairman

28 March, 2024

11



12

EREESEAR2AT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEE WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FE 5B B

ERTEBEENEMNEEEBERENE
BEE BMREREEE  BEEEF
REEREMRERGH — WX EEEBER
e BM—EFINEEBEEREMS I
BETUIERBE] AZLD  AEEEEZER
RIEREEZ ] BEESEREISZEHR] K
MESEERE(EREZ] RBEEBRER
W mbeE | SHERNEEXBEREER - B
MERHEZEEREMRE - R20194F
LATERE IR T EREERERLIEE
BEEEERL  WHR2022FMBETYE
VHEEBRBEEERL  AREEMER
BHBEETESRA - 2HRAEECERE
AR NIRRT EENBETEEREEER
%o HZE2023F128318 ' HMEZE72
R E 7S RIBEEBEHE bR - £
BN RYBEE I3RS R EEEE
ATFRSANKEERTRERNEHEEZE
BEE -

BUSINESS REVIEW

As the leading medical group in China specialising in hair-related
healthcare, we offer one-stop hair-related healthcare services covering
hair transplant, medical hair care, routine hair restoration and other
ancillary services. Having been focused on the hair-related healthcare
service market, we have built a brand matrix for the full industry chain
which is centered on our “Yonghe Medical” (R /&) and comprised
of “Yonghe Hair Transplant” (ZERfEZ2) for our professional hair
transplant service, “Svenson” ($£2i#) for our medical hair care
service, “Yonghe Fa zhi Chu” (82%)]) for our female aesthetic
hair transplant service, and “Harvard” (F4&23) for our medical wig
products. Simultaneously with the provision of hair transplant service,
we have provided our medical-grade hair health management service
for patients facing hair diseases in a more professional way using
medical testing, diagnosis and personalised nursing treatment through
Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers (2 EFHZRE#FEZh () in our hair
transplant clinics under the “shop-in-shop” model since 2019, and
through Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers that have been opened as
stand-alone stores since 2022. As at 31 December 2023, we operated
75 hair transplant clinics in 72 cities nationwide, and 13 hair care
centers under the brand of Svenson in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and Shenzhen, making us the largest hair-related healthcare clinic
chain in China in terms of scale and geographical coverage.



TE 72023912 A31 B It &tk m
SR EDHKBHE

Xizang
L

Mature-stage clinic B2 B
Developing-stage clinic 2 /& HiFz 2B
Newly-established clinic #7285z 2B

Stand-alone Svenson center covered area
SEBEUMIEEEE
Clinic covered area B 2B ZE 1T

Clinic uncovered area kA BE R

® 6 OO0

*

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Z—ZE= =443

EEENWEDMN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following map illustrates the distribution of our clinics/centers as
at 31 December 2023 by city tier*:

Jiangsu
#

Shanghai
Lig

3 Zhejiang
HT
4

L4

- Fujian »

me .
Taiwan ' o/ L4
&
Guangdong n L4
RR
Hong Kong ,
& | J
Dongsha g

Islands 1:?2?0%300

‘ ROBS I

13



14 ZERBHEEEARAT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEENWEDMN
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BZ12A31BLEE
As at December, 31

2023%F 20224
EREEERLE Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics 2023 2022
— BT Tier-one cities 6 5
g New tier-one cities 17 19
ZEET Tier-two cities 31 27
=l Tier-three cities 20 1
BH Hong Kong 1 1
e Subtotal 75 63
20234 20224
SEBRBIME Stand-alone Svenson stores 2023 2022
Zell Shenzhen 6 2
B Guangzhou 4 4
! Shanghai 2 2
Bl Beijing 1 1
e Subtotal 13 9
HE Total 88 72
*PREE T\ﬁifﬁi}iﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁﬁ@ P ARE * Note: Since the list of city rankings varies in different years, the figures set
gRat LA BB 2 B R forth in this table are based on the list released for the corresponding

periods.
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Benefited from our extensive nationwide network of clinics and the
organic synergy between our hair transplant service and medical hair
care service, our business showed a steady recovery. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group had a revenue of RMB1,777.3
million, representing an increase of 25.8% as compared with that of
RMB1,412.8 million in 2022. In 2023, the Group recorded a gross
profit of RMB997.2 million, generating a gross profit margin of
56.1%.

The following table illustrates a breakdown of our revenue
composition, gross profit and gross profit margin by service type for
the periods indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023% 2022F
2023 2022
KA E ER=E WA E7 EFIE
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin
ARETFT ARBTFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
fEE%ERE  Hair transplant service 1,354,191 76.2 804,124 59.4 1,030,454 729 642,597 62.4
EEEERSE  Medical hair care service 388,244 21.8 178,937 46.1 362,508 25.7 223,976 61.8
Hit Others 34,823 2.0 14,125 40.6 19,829 14 6,006 30.3
At Total 1,777,258 100 997,186 56.1 1,412,791 100 872,579 61.8
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BEXRK

HZE2023F12A31BLEFE  RFNEERE
EBWABARE 354 2B8TT B LFE
#IN31.4% - HPIBRBEIRAEERER
¥AeEENEERYE  UBARKIENS
ERRBEE  BEIEAMEIYWEENR
MRS S o

HZE2023F12A318BLEFE - RFNEE
FHBEEABR L FRGBEREZRE &
XEMESFNHEEAZE61,07TA &
L FEHEAR39,254 AEN55.6% - HAER

FETHSHE KOS\ AEEETTI—AE]
BERER  WHETEEFMRENERR
M TR E  BMEEEENTEEHEE
B EERB RIS 5% EARE22,1747T -

Hair Transplant Services

For the year ended 31 December 2023, our revenue from hair
transplant service amounted to RMB1,354.2 million, representing an
increase of 31.4% over last year. We have always been committed
to providing professional and high-quality hair transplant service to
patients, with a goal to build brand influence among them for our
“Yonghe Hair Transplant” (#K1E52) under our strategic hierarchical
service system.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, we achieved a significant
growth in the number of patients of our hair transplant surgery as
compared with the same period of last year. The number of patients
who received our hair transplant surgery was 61,071, representing
an increase of 55.6% as compared with that of 39,254 in the same
period of last year. Those patients who received our mid-to-high end
surgical service took up a significantly larger share of the total. In
response to the changes in market demand, the Group introduced
a "fixed-price” pricing system and expanded the price range of our
hair transplant surgical service. In the initial year of implementing the
pricing system, average spending per hair transplant patient lowered
by 15.5% to RMB22,174 compared with the same period of last year.
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TREINBZMEEZBRRBOETELEH The table below illustrates the key operating data of our hair

®: transplant service:
RBEZ
Unaudited
BZ128318LFE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
EXEEBERTH Number of patients who received
BEAH our hair transplant service 61,071 39,254
BEEENTIHEE Average spending per hair transplant
(AR¥IT) patient (RMB) 22,174 26,251
BEAEY =154 BEAY 1t
Number Number
= EE Three levels of services of patients  Percentage of patients Percentage
BXEBEARBH Number of patients who received services
BEAY from our business chiefs 41,780 68.4% 29,323 74.7%
BEXEBRRRBER Number of patients who received services
BEAY from our business deans 16,253 26.6% 8,872 22.6%
BREZ ] REW Number of patients who received
SEIN & our “Yongxiang” (%) service* 3,038 5.0% 1,059 2.7%
Bz [EZIRBESEZETERBNEZR * Note: "“Yongxiang” service includes the services from our Yongxiang chiefs

IR -

and the services from our Yongxiang deans.
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BREEREK

HZE2023F12A318LEFE  RFAANEE
EEEBFRABARKIZS2EE T ®E
FEMT7 A% - FATEBESERBITE
WETE  RMECESEEZBERERETR
EREINERNRYT [EERES s
R ABERUEEENZERE AT H
{EREERT - B1E2023F12 831814
B BEXBMEEREERBNEEAZAE
78,687 A + B EFIEIN24.4% o

TRHEIERMPBEEERBHEIZELEH
®:

Medical Hair Care Services

For the year ended 31 December 2023, our revenue from medical hair
care service amounted to RMB388.2 million, representing an increase
of 7.1% over last year. As a pioneer in China's medical hair care
industry, we have provided professional and customised diagnosis and
treatment services to our patients through Svenson Medical Hair Care
Centers in our hair transplant clinics under the “shop-in-shop” model.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the number of patients who
received our medical hair care service was 78,687, representing an
increase of 24.4% over last year.

The table below illustrates the key operating data of our medical hair
care service:

RBEZ
Unaudited
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
BEXEEEERBHESE A Number of patients who received our medical
hair care service 78,687 63,257
EEEEBEMNALEE Average spending per medical hair care
(AR#TT) patient (RMB) 4,934 5,731
RRCE- R * Repurchase rate 23.4% 28.2%

M RBERRRRERE 226008 E ABERIA
RENRE R RS ERENEARGE -

* Note: Calculated by the number of patients who purchased our
medical hair care service more than once, divided by the total
number of patients who purchased our medical hair care
service during the period.
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BUSINESS UPDATES
Continuously strengthening operational capabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group significantly strengthened
its operational capabilities by implementing a series of strategic
initiatives. These initiatives included in-depth analysis of customer
needs, market environment and competitive landscape in different
regions, optimisation of our pricing system, grading and positioning
of our physicians, and promotion of multi-dimensional partitioning
strategy, with aims to enhance our efficiency in resource allocation
and service quality, and lay a solid foundation for the Group to
maintain its industry-leading position and achieve sustainable
development.

Our business model has the advantages of high scalability and
flexibility, which not only allows us to gain rapid and extensive
market penetration and expansion in geographic dimension, but
also drives efficient and precise enrichment and innovation in our
service offerings and service segmentation models. During the
Reporting Period, we opened i) 21 Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics
mainly in tier-two and tier-three cities in South China, East China and
Central China, with an extended reach to the northwestern region in
untapped areas such as Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region and Qinghai;
and ii) 7 Svenson centers in Shenzhen and Guangzhou. Meanwhile, in
order to optimise our allocation of medical resources and enhance our
operational efficiency and overall service quality, we made strategic
adjustments by closing down 9 of our Yonghe Hair Transplant clinics
and 3 of our Svenson centers in order to achieve a more efficient and
precise operation mechanism for the provision of medical services,
and further boost the sustainable development and brand upgrading
of the Group.
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TRETIFTR AR R R R R R

The following table illustrates a breakdown of the number of our hair

ZH M =R transplant clinics by development stage* for the periods indicated:
BZE12831HLEFE

Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
BB BD Mature-stage clinics 47 37
B R Bk ED Developing-stage clinics 12 17
73 be 5B Newly-established clinics 16 9
#Et Total 75 63

*HMiEE: BMERE AR = (EERER - B

Bral mALEEB = F B ERE  BR
A AR —E=FHBEERE &
G A AR LT E — F R BRI
HREEBNERERETS - HABE
MBRR MG EEEAFALEENR
HERREEAMMAEXAN -

HEXKEEBREHR

2023F2 A B2 EARBEER
MERER  HERNTEHEARE
BOAEIRX  ARABREERER
MABESERAKEN—RE]TE
BEI - s B8R REt - 2
EbAEEER  @RELRABEM
B R MESTEMBSR  o|EEE
TETEBHANL - B BRMAEXE
EEFHNERER  RRETREEN
BEFRK  BRRALBEMAIRARK
KRB E LR o

* Note: We categorise our clinics based on three development stages, namely

mature-stage clinics, being those that have been established for more
than three years; developing-stage clinics, being those that have
been established for one to three years; and newly-established clinics,
being those that have been established for less than one year. For
acquired clinics, we regard the dates when their financial positions
and results of operations are consolidated into the Group as their
respective opening dates.

Upgraded pricing strategy for hair transplant service

In February 2023, we underwent a complete upgrade of
our pricing system for hair transplant service. Instead of the
traditional follicle unit-based pricing approach, we adopted a
“fixed-price” pricing model under which prices are determined
based on follicular plantation intervals and the rank of physician,
and integrity, transparency, normalisation and standardisation
are used as pricing criteria to avoid any undesirable industry
phenomenon such as raising the price after payment or in the
course of surgery, to lead the hair transplant industry to be
more price-transparent. Also, we expanded the price range of
our hair transplant service to accommodate different patients’
needs for hair transplant service, effectively reduce the cost of
patients’ pre-operative decision-making and improve the in-clinic
conversion efficiency.
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Optimised management of reception process and
iterative upgrading of medical service system

During the Reporting Period, the Group completely optimised
our reception process by planning in detail the SOP (standard
operating procedures) for reception process in clinics and further
deepening and refining all aspects in diagnosis and treatment, in
order to significantly enhance the working efficiency and quality
standard of our medical services. Also, in respect of treatment
mechanism, the Group made an innovative iterative upgrading
to our treatment system which covered epicutaneous and
subcutaneous pluralistic and combination treatment solutions,
combined application of new drugs and products such as those
products under the newly introduced collagen collection. Such
effort has effectively enhanced our treatment efficiency and
clinical outcome, and in turn increased the overall satisfaction of
patients.

Optimised product pricing and phased management of
efficacy

In response to the changes in consumption frequency and
demand in the medical hair care market, we further optimise
our product pricing and treatment efficiency. We also designed
a chain path for repurchase according to the four stages
of treatment efficacy to clarify management on the patient
treatment process and enhance patients’ loyalty.
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Improving medical service capabilities

The Group has always been committed to promoting high-quality
development of our hair-related healthcare services. In April 2023,
the Group fully leveled up its development strategy by introducing
the concept of “one-on-one with good doctor”. Through further
optimising and advancing our medical service process, cultivating
professionalism and aesthetician skills among our physician team,
and carrying out iterative updating and deep innovation of our
treatment system and product lines, we effectively improved the
overall efficiency and quality of our medical services, and provided
patients with more professional, precise and personalised medical
solutions. With the focus on providing medical services, we adhere
to the principle of “treat with medical care and deliver with beauty”,
emphasising that professional physicians play an important role
in the provision of hair-related healthcare services, and taking the
lead toward high-quality development in the hair-related healthcare
industry.

During the Reporting Period, the Group evaluated and verified the
competence of our outpatient doctors, organised hierarchical group
training sessions under the Doctor Team Strengthening Programme
and adopted the OMO (online merge office) mentorship model for
new physicians, to ensure continued improvement of our physician
team’s professionalism and service quality. To keep abreast of and
adapt to the dynamic evolution of market demand, we endeavoured
to enhance the aesthetic sensitivity and expertise of our medical
staff, so that we can offer patients a more satisfying aesthetic
experience in the course of providing high-quality medical services.
Our effort in integrating medical aesthetic into hair transplant surgery
together with our continuous training enable us to ensure that our
medical staff has the ability to precisely identify and realise patients’
personalised aesthetic expectations of treatment effects on top of
meeting medical needs, and thereby fully improve the overall quality
of our medical services and patients’ satisfaction.



HZE2023F12A3181F » "REBREY T —
T H1,612 NERNEXEERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Z=—Z=-=FF

EEENWRED N
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has built a professional medical
team consisting of 1,612 members:

HZE2023%12H31H
As at 31 December 2023

@

HEE Our professional team 1,612 E
— B4 - Physicians 350 KZ%W
— &t - Nurses 1,149 ﬁj\
—HMBEEEAS (8548 - Other medical professionals (including pharmacists and
- el 113 2
B - H25860) clinical scientists)

2023F6 A ' HMEILRKEARER H£Z
TIERREARBRREABETEHRAE
BRE| UK UBAEREEREZES - M
E#HERFENERNE  2EFRNZE
Rt EFARAAIE  EEZE/HMNE
WEETEREE  HANEEEBETE
miF - MERRE - B RAEGHEDES
& - RSl ERM M MRS - =
B2 EKE - IREFEINRE/L - ZEL
MBEM N RERS  ATRITHRBREE
HEEMZE -

In June 2023, we established the "“Peking University People’s Hospital
& Yonghe Medical Joint Laboratory for Hair Health” and set up a joint
laboratory expert committee with Peking University People’s Hospital,
to cooperate on product research and development, diagnosis and
treatment solutions design and technological innovation in diagnosis
and treatment for hair loss diseases. Under the strategic cooperation
on a complementary basis, both sides helped promote favourable and
upward development of the hair-related healthcare industry. In the
meantime, we proactively promoted cooperation among the industry,
universities and research institutes by taking the lead in introducing
advanced technologies and facilities to raise hospitals’ standard of
diagnosis and treatment for the provision of medical services in a
more regulated, standardised and refined manner, so as to reward our
patients with practical actions for their trust and support.
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Pursuing refined marketing strategy for brand value
enhancement

During the Reporting Period, the Group further implemented its
strategies of brand refreshment and refined marketing with focus
on in-depth optimisation and value creation for its brand assets. We
strategically upgraded and precisely optimised the Group’s brand
profile on a comprehensive scale by changing our logo, upgrading
our visual identity system and strengthening our brand positioning.
Through these initiatives, we successfully rebranded ourselves as a
more modern and professional enterprise with high reputation, which
effectively increased brand recognition and loyalty among consumers
and further consolidated and enhanced our brand reputation and
influence in the market.

Moreover, the Group adopted a refined strategic marketing plan.
By using our data analysis results and market insights, refining our
market segmentation, precisely defining our targets and implementing
personalised marketing strategies, we accurately approached our
target consumer clusters. Meanwhile, we developed a cross-platform
content marketing ecosystem that forms a communication matrix,
enabling us to gradually blaze a trail to successful marketing and
promotion with high output, coverage and consolidated revenue.
During the Reporting Period, we strategically partnered with famous
variety shows to comprehensively penetrate the market through
outdoor advertising, and joined forces with Xinhuanet (¥TZE4) to
launch creative branding events such as the “Hair Forest Community
Program” (EZ#HFMAzsTEl). These cooperation activities served
as an effective tool for more extensive communication of our brand
message and more precise penetration to our core markets in cities.
Not only did they deepen user’'s awareness of our brand and create
optimised and upgraded experience to users, but also forcefully drove
remarkable dual improvement in our brand influence and business
performance, making us achieve coordinated development of brand
value and market share.
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Promoting development of digital technology and
emphasising innovation of smart technology

Innovation and application of digital technology are important means
of increasing operating efficiency and enhancing patients’ experience.
During the Reporting Period, we made substantial progress in
operation digitalisation, marketing digitalisation and smart technology
innovation. We also made efforts in strengthening our system for
customer data privacy protection and our mechanism for information
security defense, in order to equip the Group with stronger overall
operational efficiency and market competitive strengths:

a.

Operation digitalisation

During the Reporting Period, we successfully developed and
deployed our “Hefan” (R®1) core business system (Phase 1),
under which we carried out in-depth optimisation and iterative
upgrading of our key business processes. Also, we launched
our “Yonghe Hair Health Internet Hospital” (ZEAREE@EE
BEHAERT) mini program, which is a platform that features
online distance diagnosis and treatment, enables users to make
direct purchases of our high-quality hair health products, allows
integrated management of information about users’ online
and offline services rights, and offers users’ significantly more
convenient and efficient service experience.

Marketing digitalisation

We successfully completed our development and put into
commission of our homegrown task-oriented marketing
customer management system, which can improve the efficiency
of customer invitation and management. We also successfully
completed seamless integration and overall upgrade between
the marketing customer management system and WeCom
(bZEM{Z) and our “Hefan” core business system, allowing
the standard operating procedures (SOP) for private domain
marketing to achieve precise positioning and approach our
target customer groups and effectively drive the implementation
of our refined marketing strategy, thereby fully improving our
marketing effects and exploration of customer value.
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c. Smart technology innovation

We strongly believe that Al technology is critical to optimising
the designing of surgical solutions and enhancing users’
experience. During the Reporting Period, the Group activated
the first phase of our “Yonghe Smart Clinic” R&D project, in
which we built the prototype system of “3D model-aided design
of hair transplant solutions”, conducted the verification of
technical feasibility and collected users’ feedbacks. On this basis,
we submitted four patent applications, which demonstrated our
innovation capability in the designing of smart surgical solutions.

In smart marketing dimension, we actively looked into the possibility
of using Al chatbot technology as an alternative to part of our
manned services in online consultation. Based on our experiments,
such initiative not only improves the timeliness of and the satisfaction
to our customer service response, but also validates the potential
value of using Al for improving the efficiency of online consultation.

PROSPECTS

The hair-related healthcare service market is in a stage of rapid
development with huge unmet market demand and enormous growth
potential. According to Frost & Sullivan, the size of the hair-related
healthcare service market in China reached RMB18.4 billion in 2020,
and is projected at RMB138.1 billion in 2030 with a compound annual
growth rate of 22.3%. In 2023, the number of patients who received
our services was over 130,000, representing an increase of 27.2%
over the same period of last year. We expect that there will be an
increasing number of patients in demand of alopecia treatment and
medical hair care service. Leveraging our efforts in building a one-stop
platform for hair-related healthcare services and taking advantage of
the favourable industry prospect, the Group’s market-leading position
and its established brand recognition, we believe that we are well-
positioned to capture great opportunities in this fast-growing market.
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Refined operation of clinics with reduced costs and
increased efficiency

While adhering to the core value of medical service quality, the
Group unswervingly pursues effective cost control and substantial
enhancement in operational efficiency. We will strive to achieve
dual optimisation of economic and social benefits by upholding a
scientifically rigorous attitude and adopting a refined management
approach.

Firstly, our works on our marketing investment strategy are to deeply
examine and sophisticatedly optimise our existing marketing model,
and use data analysis tools and techniques to precisely identify our
target audience for a more accurate advertising placement and
higher conversion rate. Meanwhile, we will strictly implement our
budget control mechanism by way of rational planning and allocation
of marketing resources to ensure generation of maximum output
benefits from all our investments, thereby forming a virtuous circle
that will lead to continued enhancement of brand influence and
market competitiveness.

Secondly, to better manage our labor cost, the Group will introduce
a people-oriented strategy for human resources optimisation. On
the premises of fully respecting employees’ interests, we will make
adjustments and improvements in the allocation of human resources,
striving to unleash the potentials of our employees to the fullest
extent so as to enhance the overall efficiency of our human resources.
We will develop a fair and reasonable remuneration system and
incentive mechanism that can stimulate employees’ work enthusiasm
and innovative vitality, and in turn boost the overall organisational
performance.
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In addition, we will commit ourselves to executing our strategy of
refined operation, and conducting in-depth analysis of, and exercising
strict control over, the operating costs of our clinics. Specifically,
the measures we take include, without limitation to, promoting a
centralised procurement management to reduce procurement costs of
supplies; advocating the concept of energy conservation and emission
reduction to optimise our structure of energy consumption for
effective reduction of clinics’ controllable costs and further enhance
economic efficiency. At the same time, we will strengthen our work
on optimising our allocation of medical resources, in particular of
making more efficient use of our operating rooms, nursing booths
and other key medical facilities, to ensure full utilisation of our
medical resources.

Furthermore, in order to increase the area efficiency and utilisation
rate of our operating rooms, we will use information technology
to streamline and optimise our medical process, for the purposes
of shortening patients’ waiting time from making appointment for
consultation to completion of treatment and enhancing patients’
medical experience, so as to receive a higher level of satisfaction and
better reputation. In the meantime, as we have seamlessly connected
in all aspects under our medical services which are well-coordinated,
we will further explore the potential of unlocking greater value with
limited medical resources. Our ultimate goal is to enable the Group to
achieve excellence in cost control and enhance operational efficiency
while ensuring high-quality medical services.

Reinforce operational capability and medical service
capability

Amidst industry advancement and escalating expectations from
patients, we will continue to enhance our service standard to meet
the diverse market demands. We will strive to increase patients’
confidence, satisfaction and loyalty with our medical services of
higher quality, so as to boost good word-of-mouth reputation
and continuous business growth. We will implement the following
strategies to further reinforce the Group's operational and medical
service capabilities:
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Strengthening the hierarchical structure, quantitative
management and refined operation in clinics. Moving forward,
we will reposition our existing clinics and manage them in
a layered and hierarchical fashion based on multiple factors
such as the strategic ranking of the cities where the clinics
are located, the size of the clinics, the competitive landscape
of the market, clinic business performance and geographical
location. Meanwhile, we will formulate differentiated marketing
investment strategies and pay hierarchies with reference to
prevailing competitive landscape of the market and consumers’
spending power, and conduct targeted performance assessments
on different resource allocation plans to promote the
implementation of an internal horse-racing mechanism.

Stepping up our “good doctor” strategy by upgrading our
physician reception model. We seek to achieve innovation
and breakthroughs for our no-shave hair transplant surgery,
eyebrow hair transplant technology and other aesthetic services
in attempt to enhance physicians’ professionalism and adopt
guantitative management on physicians’ quality and rank
promotion. Moreover, the Group will perform an upgrade
to reshape the whole reception process, in order to further
enhance physicians’ reception capacity during clinic peak hours
while ensuring the continued stable customers’ experience. We
expect our reception efficiency during peak hours to increase by
20%.

Diversifying business strategy, reshaping membership value,
and creating a contextual benefits platform. We will level up
the membership status and benefits of our customers in the
future and develop a comprehensive membership management
system for promotion of constant interaction between customers
and our platform, enhancement of customers’ loyalty and
prolongation of customers’ life cycle. In addition, we will
launch special referral benefits activities, with objectives of
forming a robust business model allowing our “good service”
to earn “good reputation” that in turn delivers “good growth”,
enhancing our capability in tackling market competition and
carrying out coordination with diverse business formats for
expansion of customer acquisition channels.
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o Strengthening the management of medical compliance as
the adherence to which is a cornerstone of our sustainable
development. We will develop a comprehensive set of work
standards and requirements for employees by ways of improving
training programs, strengthening assessments and refining
precise management, to achieve the best practices of the
industry. We believe that with persistent training, technological
renewal and operational management refinement, we are able
to help our physician team become more professional, conduct
diagnosis and treatment highly efficiently and provide patients
with more personalised and precise medical-grade healthcare,
thereby to build good reputation for the Group.

Adhere to technology-oriented operation by promoting
digital and smart services

Adhering to technology-oriented operation presents us a unique
advantage that differentiates us from competitors in the hair-related
healthcare industry, enables us to further improve patients’ experience
and reinforce patients’ loyalty, which will, in turn, promote our
brand development, solidify our market dominance, and boost our
sustainable future growth. We will continue to upgrade our digital
and smart business operation and marketing ecosystems by taking the
following measures:

o We will fully promote the second-phase development project
for our "Hefan” new business system, which upon completion,
will make available a number of product features including full-
cycle digital customer health record management, automated
inventory management and paperless clinic office. This will
further optimise and enhance the working efficiency of our
front-line business positions and allow us to realise refined
management of inventory and supplies consumption. Moreover,
we will actively promote the launch of our “business-finance
integration” system under which we will achieve automated
financial reconciliation and enhance our manpower efficiency
and accuracy of handling business and financial aspects through
real-time connection between our business system and financial
accounting system, which can help the Group make more
scientific and accurate decisions.
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o We are deploying and launching the “intelligent quality
inspection system,” which conducts comprehensive quality
inspection analysis of service communication contents through
Al natural language processing technology, so as to ensure
our delivery of high-standard professional services throughout
patients’ journeys. Also, as an initiative specific to online user
interaction scenarios, we will carry out an iterative upgrade
of our hair health mini program to strengthen our collection
and refined management of tags about customer interactive
contents. The purposes are to promote hierarchical operation
in our operation of private-domain traffic based on user
tags, accurately understand the needs of our customers, and
continuously refining the traffic-driving channel, so as to develop
our mini program as a powerful tool and conversion platform for
marketing, promotion and clinic services.

o We will activate our Yonghe Smart Clinic 2.0 Project with our
efforts focusing on research and development of the next
generation of “smart hair examination equipment”. This will be
an equipment that combines all functions such as 3D imaging
technology for head and face models and follicle testing,
enabling the process of our diagnosis and treatment services
to be integrated. On this basis, we will continue to iterate our
product capabilities such as hair transplant effect simulation
system and digital human virtual hair styling, striving to lead
the development direction of the industry through technological
innovation and provide more personalised hair health
management solutions for patients.

Nowadays, the current development of artificial intelligence (Al)
technology is advancing rapidly and gaining widespread recognition
in the industry. Looking into the future, we believe that there is a
huge room for the development of innovative application of Al in the
professional hair health sector. In this connection, we will collaborate
with partners to explore the possibilities of innovative applications of
large language models (LLM) and generative Al in the vertical field of
hair health.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2023, the Group had a revenue of RMB1,777.3 million (2022:
RMB1,412.8 million), representing an increase of 25.8% over last
year. The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from (i) hair transplant
service; (ii) medical hair care service; and (iii) others.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business
line for the years indicated:

HZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR¥FiT ARBTFT

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
EEBERE Hair transplant service 1,354,191 76.2 1,030,454 72.9
BEEERSE Medical hair care service 388,244 21.8 362,508 25.7
Hith Others 34,823 2.0 19,829 1.4
FEE Total 1,777,258 100.0 1,412,791 100.0
HEEBERBERA Revenue from hair transplant service
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The Group’s revenue from hair transplant service was RMB1,354.2
million (2022: RMB1,030.5 million) for the year ended 31 December
2023, representing an increase of 31.4% over last year. Such increase
in revenue from hair transplant services was primarily attributable to
the increased number of our patients. The number of hair transplant
patients served by the Group increased by 55.6% from 39,254 in
2022 to 61,071 in 2023 and the average spending per hair transplant
patient decreased from RMB26,251 in 2022 to RMB22,174 in 2023.

Revenue from medical hair care services

The Group's revenue from medical hair care services was RMB388.2
million (2022: RMB362.5 million) for the year ended 31 December
2023, representing an increase of 7.1% over last year. Same as our
hair transplant services, the number of medical hair care patients
served by the Group increased by 24.4% from 63,257 in 2022 to
78,687 in 2023 and the average spending per medical hair care
patient decreased from RMB5,731 in 2022 to RMB4,934 in 2023.
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Revenue from others

The Group’s revenue from other services mainly derived from the
rendering of services and sales of goods by our stand-alone Svenson
stores for routine services, which amounted to RMB34.8 million (2022:
RMB19.8 million) in 2023.

Costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales and services
primarily consisted of staff costs, amortisation and depreciation
charges, cost of inventories and consumables, operation related
expenses and other expenses. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of our cost of sales and services by nature for the years
indicated:

HZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR FiT AREFT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
B TR Staff costs 297,149 38.1 208,248 38.6
HERTESA Amortisation and depreciation charges 304,217 39.0 194,564 36.0
FEMEMK AR Cost of inventories and consumables 123,286 15.8 94,216 17.4
KEREAS Operation related expenses 39,203 5.0 29,919 5.5
Hpx Other expenses 16,217 2.1 13,265 2.5
FEE Total 780,072 100.0 540,212 100.0
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During 2023, the Group incurred costs of RMB780.1 million (2022:
RMB540.2 million), representing an increase of 44.4% over last year.
In particular, staff costs represent the salaries, wages and bonuses
paid to physicians, nurses and other professionals. The increase of
staff costs was mainly attributable to increased headcount of our
professional medical team and increased performance-based bonus
in line with revenue from hair transplant service. Amortisation
and depreciation charges mainly represent the depreciation of our
right-of-use assets and fixed assets, the increase of which was in line
with the increased number of our new clinics.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2023, the Group recorded a gross profit of RMB997.2 million
(2022: RMB872.6 million), representing an increase of 14.3% over
last year. Our gross profit margin was 56.1% (2022: 61.8%).

Other income

The Group's other income mainly consists of government grants
and additional value-added tax credit. In 2023, the Group had other
income of RMB2.1 million (2022: RMB9.7 million).

General and administrative expenses

During 2023, the Group incurred general and administrative expenses
of RMB374.3 million (2022: RMB257.5 million). Our general and
administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, which
represent share-based compensation expenses, wages, benefits and
bonuses of our administrative staff; (ii) operation related expenses
for our administrative team, which primarily include conference fees,
utilities, maintenance fees and rental payments; (iii) professional
and consulting service fees incurred in relation to audit services,
rental agencies and internet services; and (iv) amortisation and
depreciation charges. The increase in administrative expenses during
the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared with the year ended
31 December 2022 was attributable to the upgrade of our group
organisational structure and expansion of business lines.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our general and
administrative expenses by nature for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥FiT AREFT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
B TR Staff costs 247,605 66.1 168,500 65.4
KRR Operation related expenses 29,824 8.0 19,384 7.5
BEEMBARGE Professional and consulting service fees 19,256 5.1 13,278 5.2
HIERITEER Amortisation and depreciation charges 17,366 4.6 15,396 6.0
EIREBAEREZ Travelling and entertainment expenses 17,822 4.8 8,289 3.2
HAh, Others 42,446 15.4 32,682 12.7
st Total 374,319 100.0 257,529 100.0
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Selling and marketing expenses

In 2023, the Group incurred selling and marketing expenses of
RMB1,044.4 million (2022: RMB766.8 million). Our selling and
marketing expenses primarily consist of marketing and promotion
expenses, and staff costs. The increase in selling and marketing
expenses during the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to
phase-wise explorations in expanding online customer acquisition
channels.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our selling and
marketing expenses by nature for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥TT AREFT

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
B R ER Marketing and promotion expenses 722,885 69.2 481,202 62.8
B TR Staff costs 264,161 25.3 225,878 29.5
ZIRMAX Travelling expenses 20,030 1.9 18,299 2.4
LEERR Operation related expenses 13,282 1.3 13,895 1.8
HIERITEER Amortisation and depreciation charges 13,257 1.3 14,499 1.9
HA Others 10,758 1.0 13,010 1.6
FEE Total 1,044,373 100.0 766,783 100.0
FrigBiiE % Income tax credit
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In 2023, the Group’'s income tax credit was RMB38.5 million
compared to the income tax credit of RMB23.6 million in 2022. The
change in income tax credit was primarily attributable to the deferred
income tax recognised for the temporary loss for the year.

Net loss and net loss margin
In light of the foregoing, the Group’s net loss increased from

RMB85.9 million in 2022 to RMB546.7 million in 2023. The Group's
net loss margin increased from 6.1% in 2022 to 30.8% in 2023.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to RMB603.2 million (2022: RMB565.1 million). As at 31
December 2023, total bank borrowings of the Group amounted to
RMB152.8 million (2022: nil).

Taking into account the capital generated internally, the banking
facilities available to the Group and the net current assets of
approximately RMB86.4 million as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
believe that the Group has sufficient capital to meet its working
capital requirements and foreseeable capital expenditure.

Cash flows

The following table sets forth selected data of the Group's
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
ARMFTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
K EHAR S E5E Net cash used in operating activities (17,153) (108,562)
WEEERE,(FA)IREF5E  Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities 245,582 (650,565)
BB AR FE Net cash used in financing activities (185,204) (333,054)
FUHRe kRS ED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 565,093 1,566,192
ReEMRSZEYHNERL Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and
(B18),/ Wk cash equivalents (5,103) 91,082
FRAEZRBRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 603,215 565,093
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Cash and cash equivalents and term deposits

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
and term deposits of RMB603.2 million (2022: RMB978.0 million).
We have robust cash flows which are adequate to meet the capital
requirements for daily operation and for our plan of future clinic
expansion.

Capital expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures mainly represent payments for
purchase of items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our capital
expenditures for the years indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 2022

2023 2022

ARYFT ARBF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

M - BB RREHRK Payments for property, plant and equipment 159,192 240,573
B EEMNNR Payments for intangible assets 12,123 2,940
#Et Total 171,315 243,513

R2023F AEBENEARTAARE
171.3E&87T (2022F : AR¥243 558
JT) e
FE
HZE2023F12A318  REBNEEAA

R#76.0B& T (2022%F : AR¥88.18HE
)0

BEZRHEMENRE

HZE2023F12A31H AEENEG R
HuEMZEAARK210.985 & T (2022
FARE144188T) °

In 2023, the Group incurred capital expenditures of RMB171.3 million
(2022: RMB243.5 million).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had inventories of RMB76.0
million (2022: RMB88.1 million).

Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade and other payables of
RMB210.9 million (2022: RMB144.1 million).
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Indebtedness

The Group’'s indebtedness mainly includes bank borrowings and
lease liabilities. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our
indebtedness for the years indicated:

MR12A318
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥Fr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B Current
RITERK Bank borrowings 152,816 =
HEAE Lease liabilities 170,044 190,554
322,860 190,554
ERE Non-current
HEB®E Lease liabilities 772,693 845,048
@t Total 1,095,553 1,035,602
IRITIER Bank borrowings

HE2023F12A318 @ KEBREED
FFERITERAEARE152.8F & T (2022
F ) RANRITERRFHNER2.6%E
3.4% (20224 : 3.85% %F4.9%) 518 °

HERE

AEERMEHERRBESE @ HEH
HEREEBEEBEHEERI - 8E2023F12 4
318 AEE (EAEEA) MEEAERH
HEBRTFHNAREEHEABEREAAR
#942 7A &L (2022128318 : AR
1,035.6B&7T) °

HAEE

7K2023F 128318 » XAEBWEEREKR
FARAME (20224128318 + &) -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings of RMB152.8 million (2022: nil). Our bank loans
bear interest at rates ranging from 2.6% to 3.4% per annum (2022:
3.85% to 4.9%).

Lease liabilities

We recognise a lease liability with respect to all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. As at 31 December
2023, the Group (as lessee) had total lease liabilities of RMB942.7
million (31 December 2022: RMB1,035.6 million), which were
unsettled for the remaining terms of the relevant lease agreements.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).
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Future plan for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, for the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group did not have any future plan for material investments
and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not make
any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.

Significant Investments Held

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not hold any significant
investments in the equity interests of any other companies.

Charge of assets
There was no charge on the Group's assets as at 31 December 2023.
Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated using bank loans and other borrowings
divided by total equity as of the end of such year and multiplied
by 100%. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's gearing ratio was
16.2% (31 December 2022: nil).

Exchange rates and any related hedges

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk as its operations,
assets and liabilities are mainly dominated in RMB which is also
the functional currency of the Company. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had the cash and cash equivalents of RMB13.2 million
denominated in foreign currencies, mainly HKD (2022: RMB272.6
million, mainly USD). We monitor foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arise.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company had no
significant event after the Reporting Period.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 4,319 employees,
among which 1,612 employees are our professional medical team
members. Staff costs were RMB835.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, as compared to RMB616.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Group continues to provide competitive compensation packages,
attractive promotion opportunities, diverse training courses and
a professional working environment to its employees. The Group
remunerates the employees based on industry practices and
individual’s performance and experience. Remuneration packages
primarily comprise of basic salary, performance-based compensation
and/or discretionary bonus. As required by PRC laws and regulations,
the Group participates in various employee social security plans for
its employees that are administered by local governments, including
housing provident fund, pension, medical, maternity, work-related
injury and unemployment insurances.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu (3R E), aged 38, is our founder, executive Director,
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer. He was
appointed as a Director on September 17, 2020 and re-designated
as an executive Director on June 1, 2021. He founded the Group in
July 2010 and has been the chief executive officer of the Group since
July 2010. Mr. Zhang is in charge of the overall strategic planning,
business direction and operational management of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is the elder brother of Mr. Zhang Hui (being one of the
executive Directors).

Mr. Zhang has been dedicated to medical hair care service industry
for over 18 years, and thus has a deep understanding of the needs
of our customers from his years of frontline experience. Mr. Zhang
ventured into the hair transplant sector in March 2005 when he
joined Beijing Churong Fuyun Medical Beauty Clinic (It % 15 & &8
BEIEARZFT) and resigned in November 2007. After that, he founded
our Group and started his own hair transplant business with the
brand name of Yonghe (%K) in 2010. Mr. Zhang is a pioneer in
advocating and being relentlessly committed to the development of
hair transplant service by introducing and subsequently upgrading
the most advanced hair transplant solutions to Chinese patients. Mr.
Zhang has led the formulation of our strategic development decisions,
established and developed our medical professional team. As such,
our Group has gained a significant first mover advantage and grown
successfully in China. Leveraging his forward-looking industry vision,
we have further expanded our business lines to cover the diagnosis
and treatment of various hair-related diseases, hair transplant, medical
and routine hair care, wig research and production and various other
hair-related product and service offerings. Under his leadership, we
have developed a management style reflective of the values and
characteristics of the “Yonghe” brand and obtained many prestigious
accreditations and recognitions.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Sixian Dazhuang Junior Middle School
OISR AFEVARFE) in June 2001. Mr. Zhang has been the deputy
head of the hair medicine and scalp health management group of
skin professional committee of the Chinese Non-government Medical
Institutions Association (FEIFAV BEMEHEREEXZEGEE
BeEEADH Y (BB IR E48) since September 2018.
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Mr. ZHANG Hui (5&R¥), aged 37, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as an executive Director on
June 1, 2021. He has been promoted from the procurement director
to the senior vice president of the Integrated Management Center
of the Group since July 18, 2022. Mr. Zhang Hui is in charge of the
overall procurement management and business development of the
Group. Mr. Zhang Hui is the younger brother of Mr. Zhang Yu (being
the Chairman and an executive Director).

Mr. Zhang Hui has accumulated over 11 years of experience in medical
hair care service industry within our Group. Since joining our Group,
Mr. Zhang Hui has developed and optimized our Group's strategies
and processes relating to supply chain management and business
development. His strong support towards high-quality and just-in-time
management concept of the procurement process contributed to
and has been instrumental to the steady expansion of our Group.
Mr. Zhang Hui has actively promoted our business development, and
further fortified our industry-leading position in China.

Mr. Zhang Hui graduated from Beijing Language and Culture
University (1t B S A2B4H 5 E0%), the PRC, with an associate
degree in economic management in January 2019.

Ms. HAN Zhimei (8%#8), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on June 28, 2022, has been promoted from the finance
director to the vice president of the Financial Capital Center of our
Company since July 18, 2022 and has served as a joint company
secretary of the Company since June 1, 2021. She is responsible for
financing, accounting, budget control, internal control and financial
management of the Group.

Ms. Han has over 24 years of experience in accounting and corporate
finance. Prior to joining our Group, from March 2016 to March 2017,
she served as the finance director of KR Space (Beijing) Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (&€ (AL R)EEHMAERAF). From
February 2014 to September 2015, Ms. Han served as the general
manager of finance center of CiMing Health Management Group Co.,
Ltd. (B EREEELERMEMRAE]). From May 2012 to February
2014, she served as the finance director of Beijing Yangguangwo
Cultural Development Co., Ltd. (At REFHESLERABRAA]). Ms.
Han was the accounting director of finance center of CiMing Health
Management Group Co., Ltd. (BR#EREEEBRMHERAF]) from
August 2011 to May 2012. She was the vice director of finance
department of Beijing Tianyou Education Consulting Co., Ltd. (Jt =
KEHEEHAABRAT]) from October 2008 to July 2011. Earlier, Ms.
Han served as a finance manager of China Real Estate Development
North America Investment Group Co., Ltd. (FEILFELEEBFRA
A]) (formerly known as China Real Estate Hongdu Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (FEBEPILELEBMAR A R])) from July 1997 to April 2008.
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Ms. Han obtained her bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (it R TE§AZ2E), the PRC, in
July 1998. She obtained intermediate accounting professional and
technical qualification certificate issued by the Ministry of Finance in
September 2003.

Non-executive Director

Mr. GENG Jiaqi (BkEE ), aged 52, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on June 1, 2021. Mr. Geng is responsible for providing advice on
strategic development of the Group.

Mr. Geng has over 16 years of experience in investment and
management industry. Mr. Geng was appointed as a director of
Beauty Farm Medical and Health Industry Inc. (EEMESEREE
¥#B5BRA7F]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2373), since February 2022 and re-designated as a non-executive
director in March 2022. Mr. Geng has been an investment director
of Beijing Panmao Investment Management Co., Ltd. (It REE
BEHRAMR AT since October 2020. Mr. Geng was an investment
director of Tianjin Panmao Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Liability Partnership) (RZEZXGCEEEABLE(BREE))
from January 2019 to September 2020. From May 2015 to December
2018, he was an investment director of Shanghai Panxin Equity
Investment Management Limited (/8 E{EREIREEEFMRAA]). He
was a director of Wangfujing Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600859), from December 2016
to December 2019. Mr. Geng was a senior investment manager of
Beijing Hony Future Investment Advisor Ltd. (At 5L E H IR ERBER A
R 2 7)) from September 2008 to March 2010.

Mr. Geng obtained his bachelor's degree in accounting & finance
and business administration & management from Oxford Brookes
University, the United Kingdom, in July 1996 and his master’s degree
in business administration from State University of New Jersey, the
U.S., in January 2001.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LIANG Jihong (R#4), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on June 28, 2022. Ms. Liang has
extensive experience in the finance and investment industry, served
in various positions, including chief financial officer and director,
within the group of 36Kr Holdings Inc., a NASDAQ listed company
(NASDAQ stock code: KRKR), from November 2014 to March 2021.
Prior to that, Ms. Liang served as a financial director at Yeepay Inc.,
an e-payment service provider based in China, from July 2013 to
November 2014, and as a financial director at Tujia.com, a Chinese
lodging-service sharing and booking platform, from February 2012
to September 2012, respectively. Prior to that, Ms. Liang served as a
senior financial manager at the Beijing branch of Ctrip.com, an online
ticket and hotel booking platform based in China, from July 2011 to
September 2012, and as a financial manager at the Beijing branch of
Mangocity.com, an online ticket and hotel booking platform based in
China, from February 2006 to July 2011, respectively.

Ms. Liang completed the FMBA program run by Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in October 2021. Ms. Liang received her
master’'s degree in software engineering from Beihang University (1t
FMZEMAKE) in June 2016 and bachelor’s degree in statistics from
Capital University of Economics and Business (E#4CEE 5 A2) in
June 1995. Ms. Liang was admitted as a certified public accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2005.

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan (FR{%#9), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is
responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our
Board.

Mr. Chan has more than 21 years of experience in finance and
banking. Mr. Chan has also been serving as an independent non-
executive director of (i) CANbridge Pharmaceuticals Inc., a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1228), since June 11, 2021;
and (ii) Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902), since February 2019. He was
the chief financial officer of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 907),
from October 2017 to May 2019. He served as the chief operating
officer of CITIC Merchant Co., Limited (FEE:@REEEREGRAE])
from January 2012 to September 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Chan was
the head of Asia CIG and Cleantech of Piper Jaffray Asia Limited from
February 2011 to November 2011. From March 2005 to January 2011,
Mr. Chan also worked at BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited
with his last position as a managing director of Corporate Finance —
Greater China Coverage department.
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From August 2000 to December 2004, Mr. Chan served as an
executive director of Sanyuan Group Limited (Z LB ER R F]), a
company delisted from the Stock Exchange in December 2009 (stock
code: 0140).

Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor's degree in commerce from the
University of Canterbury in New Zealand in May 1989. He received
his master’s degree in applied finance from Macquarie University in
Australia in November 1998. Mr. Chan has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (previously known
as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since July 1993. He obtained
his professional qualification as a Chartered Accountant in November
1992 from the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(previously known as the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand).

Mr. LI Xiaopei (Z=/7E), aged 37, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Li has over 11 years of experience in organic and polymer
chemistry industry. He is currently a technical adviser at Tianjin
Changyuan Medical Technology Company Limited (K324 7058 BRI
BRRAF]) since June 2020. From April 2020 to March 2021, he was a
research assistant of Institute for Chemical Research, Kyoto University.
He worked in Beijing Boyalife Weiming Union Stem Cell Technology
Company Limited (JtREHERZEHEHMBEEERAF]) from
January 2012 to May 2014. From February 2011 to November 2011,
he worked in WuXi AppTec (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (K;EZERE B 1S 5T 2450 3%
BRAF).

Mr. Li received a bachelor’'s degree in materials chemistry from
Huaibei Normal University (f1bEM#3 K E), the PRC, in June 2009 and
a master’s degree in polymer chemistry from Kyoto University, Japan,
in March 2018. He was awarded a scholarship from China Scholarship
Council to attend Kyoto University and subsequently received a PhD
degree in polymer chemistry from Kyoto University, Japan, in March
2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Yu, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. See “— Executive Directors” for details of his biography.

Mr. ZHANG Hui, an executive Director and the senior vice president
of the Integrated Management Center of the Group. See “— Executive
Directors” for details of his biography.

Ms. HAN Zhimei, an executive Director and the vice president of the
Financial Capital Center of the Group. See "— Executive Directors” for
details of her biography.

Mr. XU Yang (#&7¥), aged 45, has been the chief executive officer
of the innovation business unit since May 2023, leading the strategic
implementation and operation management of Svenson business unit
in an all-round way.

Mr. Xu has around 11 years of experience in the management
industry. Mr. Xu was a product manager of Baidu Online Network
Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BEEEMEREI (ALR) BRAF])
from June 2016 to March 2018. He was the president of a hospital
owned by Beijing Evercare Medical Technology Group Co., Ltd. (it
R EREEREEBRRM AT from November 2011 to December
2014,

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economic information
management from Shandong Technology and Business University (L
RIRER) (formerly known as China Coal Economic College (4
B 4875 E88T)), the PRC, in July 2002 and his master’'s degree in
business administration from Nankai University (Ff A2, the PRC, in
July 2009.
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Mr. REN Jian (£8]), aged 41, has been the chief growth officer
of the Group since May 2022. He is responsible for the growth of
marketing activities for the Group as a whole and its business brands,
including brand strategy and market communication, user growth
and traffic operation, public relations and content marketing, and the
management of telemarketing and online sales operations.

Mr. Ren has 19 years of experience in marketing and user growth. He
has repeatedly received the “New Chief Marketing Officer” awards.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ren was a senior vice president of
51Talk under Beijing Dasheng Online Technology Co. Ltd. (3t A4 4
SRR AR AT from 2017 to 2022. He served as the vice president
of Mia under Beijing Huawang Online Commerce Co., Ltd. (At FAERE
R E AR AR from 2015 to 2017. He served as the marketing
director of Yohobuy.com under Nanjing Newpower Media Co., Ltd.
(FAREE N UL EREAR AT from 2011 to 2014. Previously, Mr.
Ren worked with a number of e-commerce companies in the internet
industry where he held marketing and user operation positions.

Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’s degree and qualification in law from
Xiangtan University (H3ZEKXZ), the PRC, in 2005 and his master’s
degree and qualification in EMBA from Peking University (1t 5 K£2),
the PRC, in 2022.
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Mr. WANG Yufeng (£ EI&), aged 47, has been the vice president at
the information technology center of the Group since May 2022. He
is responsible for information and intelligent technology operations of
the Group.

Mr. Wang has over 17 years of experience in medical information
and intelligent technology. He was the chief technology officer of
Shenzhen Ch-Gemstones Healthcare Holdings Ltd. (Z3I|FR §E 58 A- 4%
B A7E]) from August 2016 to May 2018. He served as the deputy
director of the Al Doctors and Mobile Healthcare Research Institute of
BOE Technology Group from May 2018 to July 2020.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’'s degree, master’s degree and
doctorate’s degree in computer in July 1999, March 2002 and
December 2006, all from the National University of Defense
Technology (BIP7 B2 i K 28), the PRC.

Mr. SU Yang (%15), aged 37, has been the chief operating officer
of Yonghe business line since May 2023, deeply participating in
and coordinating the overall management of all-round operation of
Yonghe business line.

Mr. Su Yang has eight years of management experience in the
internet industry, with management experience in the internet
healthcare industry in the last three years. He served as the director
of operations of Beijing Xingxuan Technology Co., Ltd. (It REER}
R ABBRAR]) under Alibaba Local Life Service from April 2019 to June
2020. He was the vice president of operations of Chengdu Yiyun
Technology Co., Ltd. (AXEEZEHE AR A F]) from June 2020 to July
2022.

Mr. Su Yang graduated from Dalian Polytechnic University (K3 T %
K&, the PRC, in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting
Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading medical group in China specialized in providing
hair-related healthcare services, We offer one-stop hair-related
healthcare services covering hair transplant, medical hair care, and
routine hair restoration and other ancillary services. Analysis of the
principal activities of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2023 is set out in the note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), including an analysis of the Group’s financial performance, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, is set
out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Details of the Group's
environmental policies and compliance with laws and regulations
can be found in the "Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this report.
Events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of
the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed “Event after the
Reporting Period” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

o Our historical business growth, revenue and profitability may not
be indicative of future performance, and our success depends, in
part, on our ability to execute our business strategy.

o Our brand, market reputation and consumer perception
contribute significantly to our continued success and growth.
Any failure to maintain, or any damage to, our brand, market
reputation and/or consumer perception could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and prospects.

For more details of other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

We have introduced and implemented a series of internal control
policies, measures and procedures to promote the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. We have regularly reviewed and
refined such policies, measures and procedures to enhance the
effectiveness of our corporate governance practices and internal
control. The Audit Committee has also been closely monitoring the
ongoing rectifications of the outstanding non-compliances to prevent
the recurrence of similar non-compliances.

To date, the latest progress of the rectifications is as follows:

(i) Medical Institution Practicing License: All clinics in operation
have already obtained the practicing licenses to date.

(ii)  Fire Safety Procedures: Our clinics in Taiyuan and Shanghai have
already been relocated to the new premises as planned with the
fire safety procedures were duly completed. Our clinic in Suzhou
has completed the fire safety procedures. Efforts were stepped
up to take forward the incomplete fire safety procedures for our
clinic in Quanzhou, but it is difficult to estimate the completion
time at the current stage. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
third-party institution engaged by us has completed fire safety
inspections of the clinics to ensure their safety.

(iii) Water Discharge License: Our new clinic in Shanghai has been
put into use and the water discharge license was obtained.
Our newly relocated clinic in Taiyuan has obtained the water
discharge license. Efforts were stepped up to take forward the
application of water discharge license for our clinic in Lanzhou,
but it is difficult to estimate the completion time at the current
stage.
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(iv) Non-Compliances Relating to the Advertisement Law of the PRC
and/or the Administrative Measures for Medical Advertisements:
All of our clinics have obtained the advertisement examination
certificates from the local health commissions in relation to the
publication of the relevant advertisements.

(v)  Defects in Title of Certain Leased Properties: We have adopted a
set of stringent standards in reviewing leased properties. Other
than the pre-existing leases, new leases are free of title defects.

(vi)  Filing and Registration of Leases: As of the end of the Reporting
Period, we had a total of 131 leased properties, among
which, the lease agreements of 58 leased properties were duly
registered with the relevant authorities; and we were using
our reasonable efforts to complete the filing and registration
procedures for the remaining leased properties.

(vii) Aesthetic Medical Attending Physicians: During the Reporting
Period, all the surgeries performed at our clinics for our patients
were conducted or supervised by physicians possessing the
Aesthetic Medical Attending Physician qualification.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has always encouraged environmental protection,
strictly complied with environmental regulations, and promoted
environmental protection awareness among employees. The Group
implements strict monitoring through the establishment of an ever-
improving environmental management system. During the year ended
December 31, 2023, the Group was in compliance in all material
respects with the relevant environmental laws and regulations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its Shareholders, employees, customers/
patients and business partners are crucial for its sustainable
development. The Group has always been committed to maintaining
close relationships with Shareholders and employees, providing
customers and patients with high-quality hair-related healthcare
services, and continuously strengthening cooperation with business
partners.
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Shareholders

The Group recognizes the importance of protecting the interests of
the Shareholders and of having effective communication with them.
The Group believes communication with the Shareholders is a two-
way process and have thrived to ensure the quality and effectiveness
of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue with the
Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and feedback from
the Shareholders. This has been and will be done through general
meetings, corporate communications, interim and annual reports and
results announcements, etc.

Employees

The Group provides employees with a good working environment to
protect their health and safety, and competitive remuneration and
benefits and fair competition and development opportunities based
on their merits and performance. The Group also makes constant
efforts to provide employees with adequate training and development
resources to keep them up to date with the latest developments in
the market and industry, and improve their work performance and
promote their self-actualization at the same time.

Patients and Customers

The Group considers patient satisfaction as its priority. As a leading
hair-related healthcare service provider, the Group is committed to
serving its patients to the best of its ability and continually enhancing
the level of service excellence. The Group has set up an official
complaint platform to provide smooth communication channels for
patients.

Suppliers

The Group believes that its suppliers are equally important in providing
high-quality healthcare services. The Group has built a one-stop digital
procurement management platform to achieve economies of scale and
better control the quality of medical drugs, medical devices, medical
consumables and washing and care formulas it procures. The Group
selects its suppliers based on stringent criteria and applicable laws and
regulations to ensure the quality of its supplies. The Group maintains
good business relationships with suppliers, manages suppliers in a fair,
just and open manner, and achieves a win-win situation with them
through honest operation.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its stakeholders.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 179 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended December 31, 2023 (for the year ended December 31, 2022:
Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
five financial years are set out on page 6 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company issued 94,424,000 Shares in the global offering at
HK$15.80 which were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on December 13, 2021 and subsequently issued 7,124,500 Shares
at HK$15.80 per Share upon partial exercise of the over-allotment
option on January 5, 2022.

The net proceeds from the global offering and partial exercise of the
over-allotment option received by the Company, after deduction of
the underwriting fees and commissions and other expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the global offering, amounted
to approximately HK$1,526.2 million and the unutilized net proceeds
were kept at the bank accounts of the Group as at December 31,
2023.

Please refer to the Prospectus and the announcement dated March
30, 2023 for details.
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Details on the applications of the net proceeds from the Listing
(adjusted on a pro rata bases based on the actual net proceeds) were
disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequently revised and disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated March 30, 2023. The following
table sets out the original and the revised applications of the net
proceeds, actual usage up to December 31, 2023 as well as the
expected timeline for utilization:

#2003
3A30R
W00k #2003 *BRRE RoBE  R0E

¥ BRRRE  12A3H 308 REFEN 0 uANA nANR 2HERHER
e ERE ERSE £3EAst EERRE  ABARE  EBIRE BERRE  ABARE  REWERS
Revised
amounts of Amount
Amount Amount  unutilized Net Amount  unutilized
Original ~ Percentage  utilized as at unutilized asat  Proceedsasat utilized as at asat  Expected
planned  of total net  December 31, March 30, March 30, December 31, December 31, timeline for full
Use of proceeds applications ~ proceeds 0 2003 2003 2003 003 utilizationee!
BE#T % BE¥T BE¥T BE¥T BE¥n  AEET
HKS millon % HSmillon  HSmillon  HKSmilon  HCSmillon  HKS millon
Rl A NEE IR R ELRRRREEINAN 6426 01 36456 1847 641 5225 0 TR
To expand and upgrade existing har transplant clinics NIA
in our netwark in Ching
R mRRHEE A El5 2671 175 34 m3 m3 177 1494 05E0 A%
To fund our innovations in product and semvice offerings By December 2025
FERAE - RaBmEn R hEEA 1430 97 86 136 136. 830 1050  205%1284
For investment in research and development to upgrade By December 2025
our service system with cutting-edge technology
Rt BRI AR RN A ANRENAR 3571 34 748 283 383 1708 83 005%12R8
To integrate industry resources to raise brand By December 2025
awareness in China
ERUBEREZRAIBRE, AERES 24 16 42 02 0 42 0 TER
Tossettle the outstanding balance of the acquisition NIA
consideration payable for our acquisition of Nu/Hart
Hair
RIEEERR-ROZAS 810 57 8100 0 42 13 0 TR
For our working capital and general corporate purposes NIA

At 1526.2
Total

1000 595.6 §25.6 §25.6 99.5 536.7

M - EARTASRENERRHXREZRE
AEBHRARTHBELNREGFTS
B FERESRTTSBERNER R
R RMMEL

Note: The expected timeline for the usage of the remaining proceeds is made
based on the best estimate of the Group’s future market conditions,
which is subject to the current and future development of the market
conditions.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

During the year ended December 31, 2023, substantially all of our
customer base consisted of individual customers, and none of these
individual customers accounted for more than 5% of our total
revenue.

Major Suppliers

Our suppliers primarily include providers of advertising services, IT
services, and pharmaceuticals, surgical consumables and hair care
products. We have maintained a list of eligible suppliers approved by
our senior management team. During the year ended December 31,
2023, the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
value of purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates, or any shareholder who owns more than 5% of
our issued share capital had any interest in any of our five largest
customers or suppliers during the year ended December 31, 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended December 31, 2023
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in page 182 of
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, amounted to RMB1,432.8 million.

TAXATION

Tax position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023
is set forth in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2023, bank loans and other borrowings of
the Group are set forth in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu

Mr. ZHANG Hui

Ms. HAN Zhimei

Non-executive Director

Mr. GENG Jiaqi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. LIANG Jihong

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan
Mr. LI Xiaopei
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 41 to 48 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, under which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years commencing from their
respective date of appointment, which may be terminated by not less
than one month’s/three months’ notice (as the case may be) in writing
served by either the executive Director or the Company.

Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors has signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years with effect from their respective
date of appointment. Under their respective appointment letters,
each of the independent non-executive Directors is entitled to a fixed
Director’s fee while the non-executive directors are not entitled to any
remuneration as Directors.

The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement and
rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association and the
applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, has entered into any service
contract with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, none of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting
Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance, including any contract of significance for
the provision of services, has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of
their subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices. There was no
arrangement under which a Director or senior management waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the Reporting Period.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in page 250 and
page 293 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO")) which were (i) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such positions of the SFO); or (ii)
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

IR RE S Interests in the Shares
REBITHRAE
BENS BT QR
EEpE B EntE ROEE Elalad
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
issued in issued
Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest Shares held share capital®?
RE S EC@ BB EFEHAIMHA 161,531,916 (L) 30.65%
Mr. Zhang Yu®® Founder of discretionary trust
MR EE R 20,000,000 (L) 3.79%
Interest in controlled corporation
SRIE S OO BB EFEHAIMHA 24,000,000 (L) 4.55%
Mr. Zhang Hui®® Founder of discretionary trust
BHEAA 142,883 (L) 0.03%
Beneficial owner
St ML E S 658,668 (L) 0.12%
Mr. Geng Jiging?” Interest in controlled corporation
BEErt BHEAA 181,282 (L) 0.03%

Ms. Han Zhimei

Beneficial owner
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BRAE D IERARRNR2023412 A31
H 2 317/)527,080,416 X AR (D 42 EzH & -

ZY Investment Capital Ltd@ —KEXE
BEZHESEIMRIMBEZERAR -
ZY Investment Capital Ltdf)Z&ZPAA AR
ZY Ventures LtdZ&# A  ZY Ventures
LtdEy 2 ZBAE A B Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte LimitedfE&The ZY Trust
HMZEAZEEE ° The ZY Trust2—{EMH
REXREEAZEIARIOHPEET R
BESRBERD - REE%E (FEAThe ZY
TrustB AP A ) R AR HZY Investment
Capital Ltd#E#)161,531,916 B (D F
B o

EEFHBEIERERARR—RELABR
RESEMRMIRERR AR A EET
EREARBLE(LELAE)2EHE - £
BTEREARCE(DEAR)NERA
BABRESE  EBABABLETHE
BRERARE - M EEFHEHRERAF NS
RELRELZERE - At - REFHFRHE
B - 3R EEAEHR AR B8 FRBBIER
AR ATIEAH20,000,000 M HEE
WS o

ZH Investment Capital Ltd@ —RE%
BEZHESEIMRKINBEZERAR -
ZH Investment Capital Ltd®)& 2P A R
ZH Ventures LtdZ2& %A ° ZH Ventures
Ltd®) & 2R A B Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte LimitedfE&The ZH Trustéy
ZEAREEAR ° The ZH Trust2HFREL
FIERZFRARINBBRE - REZHFR
GG - RIEXE (FERThe ZH Trusti)
B9 A) #48 AR B ZH Investment Capital
Ltd¥5 4 924,000,000 i i 15 FR A g 25 o

FIBIEAERZH Investment Capital Ltd&)
EwmEBA BE2023F12H318 -
ZH Investment Capital LtdEZHEAH
10,433,938 ERBHEEEBMNER A A
&5 IEMEquities First Holdings LLC{EAE
R SEMEFE -

Jiagi Hair Service Holdings Limited/2 —%
REBEXHSAMAZOREZRDF -
Jiagi Hair Service Limited 92 Z8R% A M Bk 52
BEEZERE - Bt - UEREEHRA
#Jiagi Hair Service LimitedisH #658,668
RRARD P A o

Notes:

(1
(2)

3)

L: Long position; S: Short position

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s
total number of 527,080,416 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2023.

ZY Investment Capital Ltd is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI. The entire share capital of ZY Investment Capital
Ltd is wholly owned by ZY Ventures Ltd. The entire share capital of ZY
Ventures Ltd is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited as the trustee of The ZY Trust. The ZY Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yu as the settlor. Mr. Zhang Yu (as the
founder of the ZY Trust) is taken to be interested in 161,531,916 Shares
held by ZY Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.

Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI and is wholly owned by Shanghai Yuxin
Technology Partnership Company (Limited Partnership). The limited
partner of Shanghai Yuxin Technology Partnership Company (Limited
Partnership) is Mr. Zhang Yu, and the general partner is Shanghai
Yuhe Technology Company Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by
Mr. Zhang Yu. Therefore, Mr. Zhang Yu is deemed to be interested in
20,000,000 Shares held by Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited under
the SFO.

ZH Investment Capital Ltd is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI. The entire share capital of ZH Investment Capital
Ltd is wholly owned by ZH Ventures Ltd. The entire share capital of ZH
Ventures Ltd is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited as the trustee of The ZH Trust. The ZH Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Zhang Hui as the settlor. Mr. Zhang Hui (as the
founder of the ZH Trust) is taken to be interested in 24,000,000 Shares
held by ZH Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.

Mr. Zhang Hui is the beneficial owner of ZH Investment Capital Ltd and
10,433,938 shares of Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. as beneficially
owned by ZH Investment Capital Ltd are being held as collateral with
loan transaction by Equities First Holdings LLC as at 31 December 2023.

Jiagi Hair Service Holdings Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI. The entire share capital of Jiagi Hair Service
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Geng Jiaqgi. Accordingly, Mr. Geng Jiaqi
is deemed to be interested in 658,668 Shares held by Jiagi Hair Service
Limited.
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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REBITRE
BAENS BT LA ENEST
FTERRAE B REEME RO AE Bo®
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
issued Shares in issued share
Name of substantial Shareholders  Capacity/Nature of interests held capital@®
ZY Investment Capital Ltd® E=EEA 161,531,916 (L) 30.65%
Beneficial owner
ZY Ventures Ltd® RRIEFEE R 161,531,916 (L) 30.65%
Interest in controlled corporation
Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited® Ezi#EA A 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Beneficial owner
B — AT HFAFEER 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Interests jointly held with another person
B (LB)REDL (BRER) RIIEGEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
([ExLEl®
Panmao (Shanghai) Investment Interest in controlled corporation
Centre (Limited Partnership)
("Panmao Shanghai”)®
FEEECEEEREERAF RIIEGEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
([ Eg8EsE] @
Shanghai Pannuo Corporate Interest in controlled corporation
Management Service Company
Limited (“Shanghai Pannuo”)®
FEEXREESEEBRAF® RIIEGEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
CITIC Private Equity Funds Interest in controlled corporation
Management Co., Ltd.®
CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings EmfEA A 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Limited® Beneficial owner
B — AT HFAFEER 91,866,668 (L) 17.43%
Interests jointly held with another person
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment RIIEGEE R 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
Limited® Interest in controlled corporation
CPEChina Fund Il, L.P.® REEGEERER 8BS — ATHA 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%
HEER
Interest in controlled corporation; interest
jointly held with another person
CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.®) REEGEERER  BE— ATHA 183,733,336 (L) 34.86%

FrE
Interest in controlled corporation; interest
jointly held with another person
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TERRER

Name of substantial Shareholders

B REME

Capacity/Nature of interests

RENE BT
ROEE

Number of
issued Shares
held

REBITHRAE
REENEST
BoHE®
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in issued share
capital@®

Citron PE Associates Il, L.P.®

Citron PE Funds Il Limited®

Citron PE Holdings Limited®

CITIC Securities Company Limited®®
Frandor Limited®

Trident Trust Company (Singapore)
Pte Limited®

RREGEE#ER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEE#ER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation
RREGEEER
Interest in controlled corporation

183,733,336 (L)
183,733,336 (L)
183,733,336 (L)
184,388,336 (L)

655,000 (S)

185,531,916 (L)

185,531,916 (L)

34.86%
34.86%
34.86%
34.98%

0.12%

35.20%

35.20%

o

mp

() LR S &K

Notes:

(1) L: Long position; S: Short position.

(2) FHREPLDHERAREN2023F12A31 (2)
H D %17#9527,080,416 [RAG D A BT HE -
(3)  ZY Investment Capital LtdEgZY Ventures (3)

Ltd2E %A * MZY Ventures LtdAIf
Frandor LimitedZ & %% ° Frandor Limited
&K The ZY TrustFFAZY Ventures Ltdf%
HERIZREE - BTrident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte Limited2& %A - M
Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited @R E %A (EAZFEA) KTrident
Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited ({E
BEFA) RILHIThe ZY Trustb) LA ©

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company's
total number of 527,080,416 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2023.

ZY Investment Capital Ltd is wholly owned by ZY Ventures Ltd, which is
in turn wholly owned by Frandor Limited. Frandor Limited is a nominee
shareholder holding shares of ZY Ventures Ltd on behalf of The ZY Trust
and is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited,
which is the trustee of The ZY Trust established by Mr. Zhang Yu (as
the settlor) and Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited (as the
trustee).
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Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limitedf &
EEBR2EHRE LXK EBNEBEBAR
FBERE MEBEHRABPEEERER
CEBBRARZERER -PEEXRE
ELEBARARBPEIEFRHER DA
(—RRBRFAR EBERZ S ETHR
A HH35% R o

CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings Limitedfa
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited
2B%AH > MCYH Cosmetic Medical
Investment LimitedBJF CPEChina Fund
Il, L.P.}2CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.2 RIS
#186.3% N 13.7%# % » CYH Cosmetic
Medical Investment Limited@ CPEChina
Fund Il, L.P.%2CPEChina Fund lIA, L.P.2[F
24l - CPEChina Fund I, L.P.}2CPEChina
Fund IIA, LP. RMRBERSHSEET
e EER R BRE S - CPEChina Fund
I, L.P.5%2CPEChina Fund IIA, LP.EYE@EA
% A ACitron PE Associates Il, L.P. » Citron
PE Associates Il, LP.A—XRIREHSHEE
EZAMNEREBREBLE  EEBE
#% A ACitron PE Funds Il Limited ° Citron
PE Funds Il LimitedfCitron PE Holdings
Limited2&#7A + fCitron PE Holdings
Limited Bl CLSA Global Investments
Management Limited#535% i ° CLSA
Global Investments Management Limited £
CLSA, B.V.2&¥#E ' CLSA, B.V.BHF &L
FBBRERABZERE © MPEILHFEE
ERABAIBFEAEFROBRATZERE
Ao

Frandor Limited/&% 51X Z&The ZY Trust
KThe ZH Trust¥#HZY Ventures Ltd&%ZH
Ventures LtdBIRRMDAIRIEARER - B The
ZY Trust}The ZH TrustfyS25E ATrident
Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited%
EHA - Al REFKBAEKMAMS -
Frandor Limited &2 Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte Limited& BB BN Z
185,531,916 A o A % o

(6)

Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Panmao
Shanghai, the general partner of which is Shanghai Pannuo, which is in
turn wholly owned by CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd.
CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd is owned as to 35% by
CITIC Securities Company Limited, a company listed on both the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings Limited is wholly owned by
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited, which is owned as to
approximately 86.3% by CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and 13.7% by CPEChina
Fund IIA, L.P.. CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited is jointly
controlled by CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P..
CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P. are two exempted
limited partnerships registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
The general partner of CPEChina Fund Il, L.P.and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.
is Citron PE Associates Il, L.P.. Citron PE Associates Il, L.P. is an exempted
limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman lIslands
whose general partner is Citron PE Funds Il Limited. Citron PE Funds II
Limited is wholly owned by Citron PE Holdings Limited, which is held as
to 35% by CLSA Global Investments Management Limited. CLSA Global
Investments Management Limited is wholly owned by CLSA, B.V., which
is wholly owned by CITIC Securities International Company Limited,
which in turn is wholly owned by CITIC Securities Company Limited.

Frandor Limited is a nominee shareholder holding shares of ZY Ventures
Ltd and ZH Ventures Ltd on behalf of The ZY Trust and The ZH Trust,
respectively. It is wholly-owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore)
Pte Limited, the trustee of The ZY Trust and The ZH Trust. Accordingly,
each of Frandor Limited and Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited is deemed to be interested in the 185,531,916 Shares by virtue
of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended December 31,
2023.

2022 RESTRICTED SHARE UNITS SCHEME (THE “SCHEME")

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated July 26, 2022
(the “Announcement”), the Scheme was approved and adopted
by the Board on July 26, 2022. The following is a summary of the
principal terms of the Scheme but does not form part of, nor was it
intended to be, part of the Scheme nor should it be taken as affecting
the interpretation of the rules of the Scheme. Unless otherwise
defined, capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Announcement.

(1) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions that the Grantees have made or may make to
the Group; and to provide the Grantees with the opportunity to
own a personal stake in the Company with a view to (i) motivate
the Grantees; and/or (ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain
an on-going relationship with the Grantees whose contributions
are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long-term growth
of the Group.

(2) Eligibility of Participation of the Scheme

Persons eligible to receive restricted Share units under the
Scheme are any individuals, including executive Directors
(but excluding non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), who provide service under the employment
contract to any member of the Group, and in terms of work and
working methods, accepts the control and dominance of any
member of the Group.

65



66

EREESEAR2AT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEEgHS
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)
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(3

4

(5)

(6)

Total number of Shares to be granted

The aggregate number of Shares under the Scheme available
to be granted to the Grantees during the Valid Period (i) shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
(as changed from time to time), being 52,708,041 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report; and (ii) shall be subject to an annual
limitation within 2% of the issued share capital of the Company
(as changed from time to time).

Maximum entitlement of each Grantee

The number of Shares which may be awarded to an individual
Grantee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time) in
any 12-month period.

Administration of the Scheme

The Scheme shall be administered by the Board, whose
decision as to all matters arising in relation to the Scheme or its
interpretation or effect shall (save as otherwise provided therein)
be final and binding on all related parties.

Subject to any restrictions in the rules of the Scheme, the Board
has delegated the monitoring and managing authority of the
Scheme to Mr. Zhang Yu, the chairman of the Board, as the
Administrator of the Scheme. Without prejudice to the Board's
general power of administration, the Company has appointed
the Trustee to assist with the administration and vesting of RSUs
granted pursuant to the Scheme.

Vesting Period of Restricted Shares Units under the
Scheme

The RSUs in an Award shall be vested in phases, which shall
be determined by the Administrator and stated in the Award
Agreement.

Unless otherwise agreed by the Administrator, the Awards shall
be vested in three phases:

(i)  the first thirty percent (30%) of the RSUs shall vest on the

first anniversary from the Grant Date;

(i) the second thirty percent (30%) of the RSUs shall vest on
the second anniversary from the Grant Date; and

(iii) the last forty percent (40%) of the RSUs shall vest on the
third anniversary from the Grant Date.
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(7) Consideration for Acceptance

There is nil consideration for any acceptance of the relevant
Awards by the Grantees.

(8) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme commences on July 26, 2022 and remains valid and
effective unless and until being terminated upon the expiry of
the period of ten (10) years from such date, unless terminated
earlier by the Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not granted any RSUs
under the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN COMPETING

As at December 31, 2023, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group had entered into
certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions as set out
below. For detailed terms of such non-exempt continuing connected
transactions, please refer to pages 68 to 83.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
Contractual Arrangements

The Contractual Arrangement apply to the 30% and 10% equity
interest in Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe, respectively.
Yonghe Investment is the holding company of our Medical Institutions
(other than Chengdu Yonghe).

The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic
benefits from our VIE Entities to our Group as stipulated under the
Contractual Arrangements:
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Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. ZHANG Hui are the Registered Shareholders.

2. “— " denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity
interest.

3. " 4--p" denotes contractual relationship.

4. Y " denotes the entities that are subject to the Contractual
Arrangements.

A brief description of the specific agreements that comprise the
Contractual Arrangements is set out below. For details of the
specific agreements, please refer to the section headed “Contractual
Arrangements” in the Prospectus.

(1) EXCLUSIVE OPERATION SERVICES
AGREEMENT

The Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and the VIE Entities have entered into exclusive operation
services agreements with Beijing Haiyouyou on January 6, 2021,
April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September 30, 2021, October
12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, (the "Exclusive Operation
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which, the VIE Entities,
Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi agreed to engage
Beijing Haiyouyou as their exclusive provider of technical
support, consulting services and other services in exchange for a
service fee.

Under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, the
services to be provided include but are not limited to (i)
business, financing and investment, (ii) medical technology
related consultation, medical resources sharing and medical
professionals training, (iii) human resources management, (iv)
market research, (v) strategies for marketing and business
expansion, (vi) supplier and inventory management, (vii)
operation and marketing strategy formulation and monitoring,
(viii) medical service quality control, (ix) internal management
and (x) other services relating to management and operation
of medical institutions. Beijing Haiyouyou has proprietary rights
to all the intellectual properties developed or created by itself
from the performance of these services. During the term of
the Exclusive Operation Service Agreement, Beijing Haiyouyou
may use the intellectual property rights owned by Beijing Xunyi
and the VIE Entities free of charge and without any conditions.
Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities may also use the intellectual
property work created by Beijing Haiyouyou from the services
performed by Beijing Haiyouyou in accordance with the Exclusive
Operation Service Agreement.
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Under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, the service
fee shall be an amount equal to the distributable net profit of
the VIE Entities of a given audited financial year, after deducting
losses from the previous financial years (if any) and any statutory
provident fund (if applicable). Apart from the service fees,
Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities shall reimburse all reasonable
costs, reimbursed payments and out-of-pocket expenses incurred
by Beijing Haiyouyou in connection with the performance of
the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement and provision of
services.

In addition, absent of a prior written consent of Beijing
Haiyouyou, during the term of the Exclusive Operation Services
Agreement, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the
VIE Entities shall not directly or indirectly accept the same or
any similar services provided by any third party and shall not
establish similar corporation relationships with any third party.
Beijing Haiyouyou has the right to appoint any third party to
provide any or all of the services, or to fulfill its obligations
under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement.

The Exclusive Operation Services Agreement shall become
effective from January 6, 2021, and shall remain valid for three
years and shall, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, be
automatically renewed for three years each time when its term
ends, unless being terminated in accordance with the terms
therein.

According to the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, unless
otherwise required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none
of the parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is
entitled to unilaterally terminate the agreement. Furthermore,
pursuant to the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, it may
only be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance
of the obligations of the agreements will result in violation of or
non-compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange,
(i) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi attributable to the Registered Shareholders are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, or (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates
the agreement.
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(2) EXCLUSIVE PURCHASE OPTION

AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, Beijing
Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi,
Yonghe Investment and the VIE Entities entered into exclusive
purchase option agreements (the “Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements, (i) each
of the Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally
grants an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles
Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any time, when
permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the
equity interest in Beijing Xunyi itself or through its designated
person(s), (ii) Beijing Xunyi irrevocably and unconditionally grants
an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing
Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by
the then applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of Beijing
Xunyi itself or through its designated person(s), (iii) Beijing Xunyi
irrevocably and unconditionally grants an exclusive option to
Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to
purchase at any time, when permitted by the then applicable
PRC laws, all or any part of the equity interests held by Beijing
Xunyi in the VIE Entities from Beijing Xunyi itself or through its
designated person(s), (iv) Yonghe Investment irrevocably and
unconditionally grants an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou
which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any
time, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or
any part of the equity interests of the Medical Institutions (other
than Chengdu Yonghe) held by Yonghe Investment, and (iv)
VIE Entities irrevocably and unconditionally grant an exclusive
option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou
to elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of the VIE Entities
from the VIE Entities themselves or through their designated
person(s), Beijing Haiyouyou may appoint designated person(s)
in its sole discretion when exercising its option. The transfer
price of the relevant equity interests and assets shall be the
minimum purchase price permitted under PRC law, and each of
the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
will undertake that he/it will, subject to applicable PRC laws,
return in full the consideration received in relation to such
transfer of equity interests or assets to Beijing Haiyouyou and/or
its designated person(s) within ten (10) business days.
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The Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi undertake
to develop the business of the VIE Entities and not to take
any action which may affect their asset value, goodwill and
effectiveness of business licenses. Furthermore, in the absence
of prior written consent of Beijing Haiyouyou, the Registered
Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi shall not (i) transfer or otherwise
dispose of any option under the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements, or create any encumbrances thereon; and the VIE
Entities shall not assist in transferring or otherwise disposing of
any option under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements, or
creating any encumbrances thereon; and (ii) directly or indirectly
(by itself or through the entrustment of any other natural person
or legal person entity) carry out, own or acquire any business
compete with or likely compete with the business of Beijing
Haiyouyou or our Group.

In addition, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the
VIE Entities undertake that, upon Beijing Haiyouyou issuing the
notice to exercise the option in accordance with the Exclusive
Purchase Option Agreements, they will implement necessary
actions to affect the transfer and relinquish any pre-emptive
right, if any. Each of the parties to the Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreements confirms and agrees that (i) in the event of
a dissolution or liquidation of Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
(as applicable) under the PRC laws, all the residual assets which
are attributable to the Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi
(as applicable) shall be transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou or its
designated person(s) at the minimum purchase price permitted
under PRC law, and each of the Registered Shareholders, Beijing
Xunyi and the VIE Entities undertakes that they will, subject to
applicable PRC laws, return in full the consideration received in
relation to such transfer to Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated
person(s), (ii) in the event of bankruptcy, reorganization or
merger of Beijing Xunyi, death or incapacity of the Registered
Shareholders or any other event which causes changes to the
Registered Shareholders’ shareholding in Beijing Xunyi and
Beijing Xunyi's shareholding in the VIE Entities, (a) the successor
of the Registered Shareholders’ equity interest in Beijing Xunyi
and the successor of Beijing Xunyi's equity interest in the VIE
Entities shall be bound by the Contractual Arrangements, and (b)
any disposal of shareholding in Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
shall be governed by the Contractual Arrangements unless
Beijing Haiyouyou consents otherwise in writing.
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Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements shall become effective
from January 6, 2021. Each of the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements has an indefinite term and a termination provision
which stipulates that unless otherwise required by applicable
PRC laws and regulations, none of the parties to the agreements
(except Beijing Haiyouyou) is entitled to unilaterally terminate
the agreements.

Each of the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements may only
be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance of
the obligations of the agreement will result in violation of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange, (ii)
Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi attributable to the Registered Shareholders are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person
directly holds all the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi and all of
Beijing Xunyi’'s equity interests in the VIE Entities or all of the
assets of the VIE Entities are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou
pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations or (iv) Beijing
Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates the agreements.
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AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, Beijing
Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe
Investment and the VIE Entities entered into the shareholders’
rights entrustment agreements (the “Shareholders’ Rights
Entrustment Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements,
(i) the Registered Shareholders irrevocably agree to authorize
Beijing Haiyouyou (and its successors or liquidators) or a natura
person designated by Beijing Haiyouyou to exercise all of its
rights and powers as a shareholder of Beijing Xunyi, including
the rights to vote at a shareholders’ meeting, sign minutes, and
file documents with the relevant companies registry, (ii) Beijing
Xunyi irrevocably agrees to authorize Beijing Haiyouyou (and
its successors or liquidators) or a natural person designated
by Beijing Haiyouyou to exercise all of its rights and powers
as a shareholder of Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe
(as applicable), including the rights to vote at a shareholders’
meeting, sign minutes, and file documents with the relevant
companies registry, and (iii) Yonghe Investment irrevocably
agrees to authorize Beijing Haiyouyou (and its successors or
liquidators) or a natural person designated by Beijing Haiyouyou
to exercise all of its rights and powers as a shareholder of each
of the Medical Institutions (other than Chengdu Yonghe) held
by it, including the rights to vote at a shareholders’ meeting,
sign minutes, and file documents with the relevant companies
registry. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment
Agreements, the power of attorney granted in favor of the
Company and actions it takes in relation to the Contractual
Arrangement will only be decided by officers or Directors who
are not the Registered Shareholders. As Beijing Haiyouyou is
a subsidiary of the Company, the terms of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreements will give the Company control
over all corporate decisions of the VIE Entities and 100% equity
interests of Beijing Xunyi.
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Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements shall become
effective from January 6, 2021. Each of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreements has an indefinite term and a
termination provision which stipulates that unless otherwise
required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none of the
parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is entitled
to unilaterally terminate it.

Each of the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements may
only be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance
of the obligations of the agreement will result in violation of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange,
(ii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant
to applicable PRC laws and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou
or its designated person directly holds all the equity interests
in VIE Entities and all of the Beijing Xunyi’s equity interests in
VIE Entities or all of the assets of VIE Entities attributable to
Beijing Xunyi are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to
applicable PRC laws and regulations; or (iv) Beijing Haiyouyou
unilaterally terminates the agreement.
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(4) EQUITY PLEDGE AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, Beijing Xunyi, the Registered Shareholders,
Beijing Haiyouyou, Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe
entered into equity pledge agreements (the “Equity Pledge
Agreements”). Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements,
(i) the Registered Shareholders agree to pledge all of their
respective equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and (ii) Beijing
Xunyi agrees to pledge all of its equity interests in Yonghe
Investment and Chengdu Yonghe to Beijing Haiyouyou to secure
performance of all their obligations and the obligations of the
Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and Medical Institutions (where applicable) under the Exclusive
Operation Services Agreement, the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements, the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements
and the Equity Pledge Agreements underlying the Contractual
Arrangements.

If Yonghe Investment, Chengdu Yonghe and Beijing Xunyi
declare any dividend during the term of the pledge, Beijing
Haiyouyou is entitled to receive all dividends or other income
arising from the pledged equity interests, if any. In case of any
breach of obligations by any of Beijing Xunyi, the Registered
Shareholders and Yonghe Investment, Chengdu Yonghe, Beijing
Haiyouyou, upon issuing a written notice to the Registered
Shareholders or Beijing Xunyi, will be entitled to all remedies
available in the Contractual Arrangements including but not
limited to disposing of the pledged equity interests.
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In addition, pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements, the
Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi undertake to Beijing
Haiyouyou, among other things, not to transfer their pledged
equity interests and not to create or allow any pledge or
encumbrance thereon that may affect the rights and interest
of Beijing Haiyouyou without its prior written consent. Beijing
Xunyi, Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe undertake to
Beijing Haiyouyou, among other things, not to consent to any
transfer the pledged equity interests or to create or allow any
pledge or encumbrance thereon without Beijing Haiyouyou's
prior written consent.

The pledges in respect of Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and Chengdu Yonghe takes effect upon the completion
of registration with the relevant Administration for Market
Regulations and we have registered the equity pledges
contemplated under the Equity Pledge Agreements with
the relevant PRC legal authority pursuant to PRC laws and
regulations.

Equity Pledge Agreements became effective from January 6,
2021. Each of the Equity Pledge Agreements has an indefinite
term and a termination provision which stipulates that unless
otherwise required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none
of the parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is
entitled to unilaterally terminate it.

Each of the Equity Pledge Agreements may only be terminated
in the event that (i) continued performance of the obligations
of the agreement will result in violation of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules or
the requirements of the Stock Exchange, (ii) Beijing Haiyouyou
or its designated person directly holds all the equity interests
in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered Shareholders’ equity
interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets of Beijing Xunyi are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person
directly holds all the equity interests in Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe or all of the assets of Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe attributable to Beijing Xunyi are transferred
to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws and
regulations or (iv) Beijing Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates the
agreement.
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(5) SPOUSE UNDERTAKINGS

The spouses of each of the Registered Shareholders has signed
an undertaking (the “Spouse Undertakings”) to the effect
that each of the spouses has no right to or control over such
interests of the respective persons and will not have any claim
on such interests.

The Foreign Investment Law

On March 15, 2019, the NPC promulgated the Foreign
Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China (FFZEARH
MBASNEIRE L)) (the “FIL") and replaced effective on January
1, 2020. After the FIL comes into effect, the FIL replaced the law
on Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures (FoNE BELDEER)),
the law on Sino-Foreign Contractual Joint Ventures ( FR4MNA AR
ZE5%)) and the law on Foreign-Capital Enterprises (ZM& 1B
%¥J%)) and became the legal foundation for foreign Investment
in the PRC. The FIL stipulates three forms of foreign investment,
but does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements as
a form of foreign investment.

The FIL does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements
as a form of foreign investment. The FIL does not mention
concepts including “de facto control” and “controlling through
contractual arrangements” nor does it specify the regulation
on controlling through contractual arrangements. Furthermore,
the FIL stipulates that foreign investment includes “Foreign
Investors invest in China through many other methods under
laws, administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council”. There are possibilities that future laws,
administrative regulations or provisions promulgated by the
State Council may regard Contractual Arrangements as a
form of foreign investment, at which time it will be uncertain
whether the Contractual Arrangements will be deemed to be
in violation of the foreign investment access requirements and
how the above-mentioned Contractual Arrangements will be
handled. Therefore, there is no guarantee that the Contractual
Arrangements and the business of the VIE Entities will not be
materially and adversely affected in the future due to changes in
PRC laws and regulations. In the event that such measures are
not complied with, the Stock Exchange may take enforcement
actions against us which may have a material adverse effect on
the trading of our Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed and/or reproduced
between the Group and Beijing Xunyi and/or the VIE Entities
during the Reporting Period. There was no material change in
the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances under
which they were adopted during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Contractual
Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that none of
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements had been removed. As of December 31, 2023,
the Company had not encountered interference or encumbrance
from any PRC governing bodies in operating its businesses
through its VIE Entities under the Contractual Arrangements.

Reasons for Adopting the Contractual Arrangements

The Group primary engages in providing hair transplant services
and medical hair care services, which involve the operating of
medical institutions, and therefore falls into the scope of the
“restricted” category of the Special Administrative Measures
for the Access of Foreign Investment (Negative List) (2021) (#h
EIREAEANFRIEREE(BEBEE)(20214FR)). As advised
by our PRC legal advisers, the Company, as a foreign entity,
shall not hold, either directly or indirectly, more than (i) 90%
equity interest in the Company’s hair transplant institutions
located in Sichuan province; and (ii) 70% equity interest in the
Company’s hair transplant institutions located in other provinces
other than Sichuan. As a result, in line with common practice in
industries in the PRC subject to foreign investment restrictions
and qualification requirements, the Group entered into a series
of contractual arrangements (the “Contractual Arrangements”)
with Beijing Xunyi and the Registered Shareholders to enable
the Group to gain effective control over, and receive all the
economic benefits generated by the businesses currently
operated by our VIE Entities.
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Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are the certain risks that are associated with the
Contractual Arrangements, including:

o If the PRC government deems that the Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with PRC regulatory
restrictions on foreign investment in the relevant industries,
or if these regulations or the interpretation of existing
regulations change in the future, we could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish our interests
received through the Contractual Arrangements.

o Our Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership and our
VIE Entities, Beijing Xunyi and Registered Shareholders may
fail to perform their obligations under our Contractual
Arrangements.

o Our Contractual Arrangements may result in adverse tax
consequences to us.

o Beijing Xunyi or the Registered Shareholders may
potentially have a conflict of interest with us, and they may
breach their contracts with us or cause such contracts to
be amended in a manner contrary to our interests.

o Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
interpretation and implementation of the Foreign
Investment Law and how it may impact the viability of our
current corporate structure, corporate governance and
business operations.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors
— Risks Relating to Our Contractual Arrangements” of the
Prospectus.
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Our Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the
effective operation of our Group with the implementation and
compliance of the Contractual Arrangements:

(@) major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements or any
regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to our Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

(b) our Board will review the overall performance of and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements at least
once a year;

(c) our Company will disclose the overall performance
and compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in
its annual reports and interim reports to update our
Shareholders and potential investors; and

(d) our Company will engage external legal advisers or
other professional advisers, if necessary, to assist the
Board to review the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements and the legal compliance of Beijing
Haiyouyou, Beijing Xunyi, the Registered Shareholders,
and the VIE Entities to deal with specific issues or matters
arising from the Contractual Arrangements.

Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the
Stock Exchange

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual
Arrangements constitute continuing connected transactions of
our Company under the Listing Rules upon Listing as certain
parties to the Contractual Arrangements, namely Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Zhang Hui and Beijing Xunyi, are connected persons of
the Group. Mr. Zhang is one of our Controlling Shareholders
and Directors, Mr. Zhang Hui is one of our Directors, therefore
Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang Hui are connected persons of our
Company. Beijing Xunyi is owned by Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhang
Hui as to 85% and 15% respectively, and therefore is an
associate of Mr. Zhang and a connected person of our Company.
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In relation to the Contractual Arrangements, we have applied to
the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a
waiver from strict compliance with (i) the announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements pursuant
to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the requirement of
setting an annual cap for the transactions under the Contractual
Arrangements under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules, and
(iii) the requirement of limiting the term of the Contractual
Arrangements to three years or less under Rule 14A.52 of the
Listing Rules, for so long as the Shares are Listed on the Stock
Exchange subject however to the following conditions:

(@) No change without independent non-executive Directors’
approval;

(b) No change without independent Shareholders’ approval,

(c)  The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable our
Group to receive the entire economic benefits derived by
the VIE Entities and Beijing Xunyi;

(d) The Contractual Arrangements may be renewed and/
or reproduce (i) upon expiry or (ii) in relation to any
existing, newly established or acquired wholly foreign
invested enterprise or operating company (including a
branch company) engaging in the same business as that
of our Group which the Group might wish to establish
when justified by business expediency, without obtaining
Shareholders’ approval, on substantially the same terms
and conditions as the Contractual Arrangements; and

(e) Our Group will disclose details relating to the Contractual
Arrangements on an on-going basis.

Annual Review by the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors, upon review of the
overall performance of and compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements, confirmed that:

(a) The transactions carried out during the Reporting Period
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements;
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(b) No dividends or other distributions have been made by
the VIE Entities to Beijing Xunyi which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to our Group; and

(c) Any new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and the VIE Entities during the
Reporting Period are fair and reasonable, or advantageous
to the Shareholders, so far our Group is concerned and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Auditor has carried out review procedures in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants annually
on the transactions carried out pursuant to the Contractual
Arrangements. The Auditor has confirmed in a letter to
the Board that the transactions carried out pursuant to the
Contractual Arrangements during the year ended December
31, 2023 had received the approval of the Board, had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Contractual Arrangements and that no dividends or other
distributions had been made by the Company’s VIE Entities to
the holders of its equity interests which were not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.

Please refer to note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
prepared under the HKFRSs for details of the significant related
party transactions. Information on connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules is set out in this section. Save as
disclosed above, the related party transactions disclosed in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of
the Company nor are they connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions exempt from disclosure requirements.
The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules in relation to the relevant transactions.
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DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatening against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his or her duties in his or her office; be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company had,
together with the management and the auditor of the Company,
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 86 to 105 of this annual
report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights (including entitlements to any relief of taxation) in relation to,
the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditor of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2023. The accompanying
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution will be proposed
for approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company.

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company since the
Listing Date.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Yu
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March, 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Shares were listed on the Main Board on December 13, 2021. The
Board hereby presents to the Shareholders the corporate governance
report for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “Period”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to
enhance its corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders to
evaluate how the principles of corporate governance have been
applied.

The Board is of the view that during the Period, the Company has
applied all the applicable principles and code provisions as set out
in the CG Code except for the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Details of deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below in this corporate governance report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company throughout the Period.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and
performance of the Group. The Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and
have acted in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all
times.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including the approval and monitoring of policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflicts of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information to
ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management by the Board. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Under
the leadership of the chief executive officer, the management is
responsible for the daily operation of the Company.
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Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Hui
Ms. Han Zhimei

Non-executive Director
Mr. Geng Jiaqi
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Liang Jihong
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan
Mr. Li Xiaopei

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Mr. Zhang Yu is the elder brother of Mr. Zhang Hui.
Saved as disclosed, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the Directors. Biographical
details, including offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments of the Directors are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board has at all times
met the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company has
also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the
absence of involvement in the daily management of the Company,
and (iii) the absence of any relationships or circumstances which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.
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The Company has adopted a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which is designed to ensure a strong independent
element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively exercises
independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’ interest.
The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanism on an annual basis.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to
renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

Mr. Zhang Yu, Ms. Liang Jihong, Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr.
Li Xiaopei are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Under the Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Articles of
Association also provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors shall be subject
to election by Shareholders at the first annual general meeting of
the Company after the appointment. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Zhang Yu, Ms. Liang Jihong, Mr. Chan Peng Kuan
and Mr. Li Xiaopei will be subject to re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. None of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election or any other Directors has a service contract that is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the businesses and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development (“CPD") program to develop and refresh
their knowledge. Internal briefings for Directors will be arranged by
the Company and reading materials on relevant topics will be issued
to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense.
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The records of CPD relating to director’s duties and regulatory and
business development that have been received by the Directors for the
Period are summarized as follows:

EEnE EAER
Name of Directors Type of Training
FaE®
Note®
BITES
Executive Directors
RELLE AXKB
Mr. Zhang Yu A and B
RIBE A ANB
Mr. Zhang Hui A and B
BEEZ L AKB
Ms. Han Zhimei A and B
FHTES
Non-executive Director
S AKB
Mr. Geng lJiaqi Aand B
BYFHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
RUEsI L+ AXKB
Ms. Liang Jihong A and B
BRI 9 5% & AKB
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan Aand B
FNERAE AKB
Mr. Li Xiaopei Aand B
5T Notes:

(1) EFIER

Al HFEBJIRE - BEETRNER -
Mg @RRIES

B:  BIEARBIRERA - ®E T
w6 SRR T

(1) Types of Training

A:

Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines
and relevant publications
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Attendance Records of the Board and Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

The Company fully complies with the requirement under the code
provision C.5.1 and C.2.7 of the CG Code to convene Board meetings
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and
arrange meetings between the Chairman and independent non-
executive Directors annually.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, one general meeting and
four Board meetings were held.

The attendance records of each Director at the general meeting, the
Board meetings and the Board committee meetings of the Company
held during the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in the
table below:

HERE, BRLENERETRY
Attendance/Number of Meetings Entitled to Attend

REAE ETxg ENZES FEEE® RAZES
General Audit Remuneration Nomination
EEnE Name of Directors Meeting Board Committee Committee  Committee
BITEE Executive Directors
REXE Mr. Zhang Yu 1”71 44 TEFANA 1/1 1/1
RIERAE Mr. Zhang Hui 171 44 TERN/A TEENA  TEANA
BERLL Ms. Han Zhimei il 4/4  TERAN/A TEANA  TEANA
FHTES Non-executive Director
UEBmEE Mr. Geng Jiagi 17 4/4 4/4 TEANA  TEANA
BYKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
RET T+ Ms. Liang Jihong 171 44 TERBN/A TEENA  TEANA
BRRLAE Mr. Chan Peng Kuan 17 4/4 4/4 n 1
TNEFRAE Mr. Li Xiaopei 17 4/4 4/4 n 1
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Notes:

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Chairman held one
meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information will be sent to all Directors at least three days before each
regular Board meeting or committee meeting (or such other period
as agreed) to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The senior management, where necessary, attends regular Board
meetings and other Board and committee meetings to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Articles of Association contains provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

The agenda of each Board meeting is in consultation with members of
the Board such that they are given an opportunity to include agenda
items, draft and executed Board minutes are sent in a timely manner
to all Directors for their comments and records, minutes of the Board
meetings recorded in sufficient details are kept by the Company
Secretary.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
The Company has arranged the directors and officers liability

insurance in respect of legal action against the Directors during the
Period. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Zhang Yu
is the Chairman and chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief
Executive Officer”). With extensive experience in the hair health
industry and having served in the Company since its establishment,
Mr. Zhang Yu is in charge of the overall strategic planning, business
direction and operational management of the Group. The Board
considers that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person is beneficial to the management
of the Group. The balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the Board, which comprises experienced and diverse
individuals. The Board currently comprises three executive Directors
(including Mr. Zhang Yu), one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, and therefore has a strong
independent element in its composition.

During the Period, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are held by Mr. Zhang Yu. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations generally. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, Mr. Li Xiaopei and one non-
executive Director being Mr. Geng Jiagi. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope
of audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

The Audit Committee held four meetings to review, in respect of
the year ended December 31, 2023, the annual financial results
and reports and significant issues on the financial reporting,
operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and internal audit function,
appointment of external auditors and engagement of non-audit
services and relevant scope of works and, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the Executive Directors during the Period.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr. Li Xiaopei,
and one executive Director being Mr. Zhang Yu. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Peng Kuan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management, assessing
performance of executive Directors the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; approving the
terms of executive Directors’ service contracts; reviewing and/or
approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Period
to consider the relevant matters regarding/to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company by bands for the year ended December
31, 2023 are set out below:

Number of
Remuneration Bands individuals
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 0
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr. Li Xiaopei,
and one executive Director being Mr. Zhang Yu. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhang Yu.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of Directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary
to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,
before making recommendation to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications
of the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting, and to review the Board Diversity Policy and
Director Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board and is available on the
website of the Company. The Company recognizes and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation
to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, professional experience, educational background,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

The Company aims to maintain a truly diverse Board which will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
Directors. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments
will be based on merit while taking into account diversity (including
gender diversity).

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.
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An analysis of the Board’s current composition based on the
measurable objectives is set out below:

Gender
Male: 5 Directors
Female: 2 Directors

Age Group

31-40: 3 Directors

41-50: 1 Director

51-60: 3 Directors

61-70: 0 Director

Educational Background

Business Administration: 3 Directors
Account and Finance: 3 Directors
Legal: O Director

Other: 1 Director

Skills

Marketing: 3 Directors
Engineering: 1 Director
Other: 3 Directors

Business Experience

Accounting & Finance: 3 Directors

Legal: O Director

Experience Related to the Company’s Business: 4 Directors

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the current
composition of the Board is sufficiently diverse and are of the view
that the current composition of the Board has achieved the objectives
set in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
As at December 31, 2023, the share of female employees (including
senior management) at the Group is 74.7% and the share of male
employees is 25.3%. The Board considers that the current gender
diversity is satisfactory. The Company will continue to devote efforts
in maintaining at least one-third of the Group’s management roles be
held by women, with a view to create a promising career path for the
Group's outstanding female management personnel and to nurture
potential female successors to the Board in the future.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Company's specific procedures for the nomination and election
of Directors are as follows: qualified nomination bodies recommend
candidates for directorship to the Company. After conducting
a preliminary review of the qualifications and conditions of the
candidates for directorship, the Nomination Committee will propose
the qualified candidates to the Board for consideration. Upon
consideration and approval by the Board, a written resolution will be
put forward at a general meeting for the election of the proposed
candidates for directorship.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. During the Period, there was no change
in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy
to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Period, the Board reviewed the Company’'s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and CPD of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 171 of this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to RMB2,670
thousands and RMB930 thousands respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and
non-audit services for the year ended December 31, 2023 is set out

below:

e ENER

PR 7% % 5l Service Category (ARBEFT)

Fees Paid / Payable

(RMB'000)

B RTS Audit Services 2,670

FEIZ BUBR TS Non-audit Services 930

— FEI AR E R — Review of interim financial information 930
J2 B B B e PR R 4 RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

EXeHREMRAREIE R ABDEH R
BT EARN - ZERAREEEEN
FHBRREERZHEFENER - BEATH
BRKRERMEBRIBHEEMIFRE R

23

g ©
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i B

CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.
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The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with regular review for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including operational
management, medical advertising, procurement and sales, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology. The Audit
Committee reviews annually the continued effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems dealing with
risk and financial accounting and reporting, the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, compliance with laws and regulations, and
risk management functions. Up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee had reviewed and confirmed to the Board, that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system are effective
and adequate.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems are
featured with well-defined organizational structure with appropriate
segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines and
responsibilities. Aimed at providing reasonable assurance against
material errors, losses or fraud and safeguard assets of our Group, the
Company has established a sound risk management procedure which
comprised the following steps:

1. Risk identification: stores and functional departments identify
major and significant risks that could affect the key process of
their operations;

2. Risk assessment: the management assesses and evaluates the
identified risks according to their expected impacts and the
recurrence frequency; and

3. Risk mitigation: the management plans effective control
exercises to mitigate the risks and monitor the progress of risk
management.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee. Any
urgent matters in relation to the relevant areas of internal control will
be reported in a timely manner. Review results and recommendations
in the form of written reports are submitted to the Audit Committee
for discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by
the Internal Audit Department to ensure that material weaknesses
previously identified have been properly resolved.

101



102

ERBEEEARAE YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EXRERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EESUELZESREEERENIET
EHEE2023F 12 A3 A LEENERE
BRABESRSG  BENE  £ERER
2 TRAZSRGBEBEIANREH - EF
CHNRBRARVEBITEE - REPEF R
TEIESREL S MA N A B ESG R IR A1 IE 3R] 7 &Y
BR - BIMEEMER  HFIIREREH
TEE R -

ARBCHERBRBRL RS EER &
ERHEERAAESRATAEZTARAEZER
BeRHEHEMATEEBRARANTE S
HNET -

ARBCHERBREK - REF - ARAR
REEEREHERRHEERZEN &
RENBEREMOEESHN — KRS - AEE
EEEEFEFUNRREEREREEH R
ERABTEFR -

BMEARRE

HEExT ((Huzt)) RBESZTALA
AMBFEATNE HLLtAFTERERK
BERABITERBINTES  Z2F AR
KEMFERSE AR - BFRERS - %
MIRBEGERT - HL T ELCEMERY
HERFOE-_THFLR  WARTWE -
DELRER  URBEBARDAEAE (AT
[BERFIWELAE ) RERFITARIAE
2E (A BESHFRERITRAEAE])
ZERCE - HATERZTALREKRESR
BEEEEE - ZEAHME - 2024452
A1HAER -

PREFTUNCEEAREZTEERANE
HESKMEARWERHNERLRE - &
NAVBEERBEARNWERSELLE
BERLERRBTDIEBEA  GRARA
MEXERRMERTREERT L LA
i o

REIRA - Xt kBEELto8RET
RAIE3. 2980 RTE - BETDRI5/NFH
HEAERFI - AEREREBEE R -

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended December 31, 2023, and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate. The Board also believes
that the Company has sufficient resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programme and budget for the discharge of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting duties, as well as
those relating to the ESG performance and reporting.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees, customers and suppliers to raise concerns, in
confidence and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Directors, senior management and relevant
employees of the Company in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.
Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (“Ms. Kam”) and Ms. Han Zhimei have
been the joint company secretaries of the Company. Ms. Kam is
an executive director of the corporate services division of Tricor
Services Limited, a global professional services provider specializing
in integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has
over 25 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and
is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and
a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly “The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries”) and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly “The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators”) in the United Kingdom.
Ms. Kam was appointed as a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform. The appointment is for a term of two years
starting from February 1, 2024.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries on corporate governance and board practices
and matters. Ms. Han Zhimei, finance director and joint company
secretary of the Company, has been designated as the primary contact
person at the Company which would work and communicate with
Ms. Kam on the Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

During the Period, Ms. Kam and Ms. Han Zhimei have received no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh their skills
and knowledge in compliance with Rules 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meeting and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors are
available to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication policy. The
policy aims at promoting effective communication with Shareholders
and other stakeholders, encouraging Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company and enabling Shareholders to exercise their rights
as Shareholders effectively.

The Company communicates with the Shareholders and/or potential
investors mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meetings, if any, which
may be convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities
for the Shareholders to communicate directly to the Board; (ii) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press release
providing updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability
of latest information of the Group on the Company’s website at
http:.//www.yonghegroup.cn; (iv) the holding of press conference(s)
from time to time; and (v) the prompt responses to Shareholders’
enquiries.

During the Reporting Period, the Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication policy,
including the multiple communication channels for Shareholders in
place and the steps taken to handle Shareholders’ enquiries, and
considered that the Shareholders’ communication policy has been
properly implemented and effective.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has not
made any changes to the Memorandum and Articles of Association.
A latest version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is
also available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend
Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board
during a financial year and any final dividends for a financial year will
be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings of the Company, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the
Company will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitions, provided that
such requisitions held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitions, provided that such
requisitions held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board
does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21
days, the requisition(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
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meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisition(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Act. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association
for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including
a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association are set out above.

Putting Forward Enquiry/Requisition to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries or requisitions to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries/requisitions to the Company.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requisitions as mentioned
above to the following:

Name: Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd.

Address: 5/F, Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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REPORT OVERVIEW

The Report covers the period from January 1, 2023 to December 31,
2023 and involves Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (Yonghe Medical)
and its subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statement of annual
report.

For the convenience of expression, it is also referred to as “the
Group”, “Group” in this Report.

ESG Reporting Principles:

o Materiality: In compliance with the materiality principle of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (HKEX), this Report
discloses the Board’'s oversight of ESG matters, stakeholder
communication, the process to identify material ESG-related
topics and the matrix for material ESG-related topics.

° Quantitative: This Report discloses the statistic standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools used,
and the source of conversion factors used for the reporting of
quantitative key performance indicators which are described in
the relevant sections.

o Balance: This Report objectively presents the Group’s
performance during the reporting period by disclosing indicators
involving both positive and negative information.

o Consistency: The statistical methods used to disclose data in this
Report are consistent.

Basis of Preparation:

This Report has been prepared with reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) of
HKEX, the Sustainability Reporting Standards (“GRI Standards”) of
the Global Reporting Initiative, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Council
Sustainable Development Rating and the Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) of the United Nations.

HONORS & RECOGNITION

Yonghe Medical adheres to standardized governance and operation,
upholds the concept of sustainable development, and strives to
practice and assume environmental and social responsibilities. Yonghe
Medical has won many important awards in areas such as the
industry, capital markets and leadership during the reporting period.
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2023 - EREERE HEREERHEE In 2023, Yonghe Medical won the environmental, social and
BIER governance awards as follows:

o  EERR2023FFHFTEE T AT

o Top 10 Digital Healthcare Model Awards of 2023 by China Times

o  MAHRAR:2023FFE AR

o 2023 Public Welfare Enterprising Award by Southern Weekend

o ETEM : 20230 EESGHREMEETERRA

o 2023 Corporate ESG Outstanding Social Responsibility Practice Case by XINHUANET

o RARE - 2023FEEFEMBITEME

o 2023 Outstanding Responsible Practice Partner by CGF

o HKIEEE - 2023F EBEARBHEBLOE

o 2023 Medical and Health Consumer Enterprise by TMTPost

e FBHHEM: 2023 EERM AT BT EH R RIESGRIFTEER R

o 2023 "Hair Forest Community Program” rated as an ESG innovation practice case for listed companies by
Securities Daily

. SR ACETE 2023 F ET AR E MK

o Excellence Award for Listed Companies 2023 by Hong Kong Economic Journal

. FENEBDBYE LM AR FEREREREE

o Best IR Team Award from the 8th Zhitong Finance Listed Company Selection

o HRHE[2023FEHZAKKEMEE]

o 2023 Most Valuable Growth Award from the JING CHAO Awards

o 203EEARBREFFRASEF=-[ESFHERREN2023FEHFTEE T KM ]

o Top 10 Digital Healthcare Models for 2023 from 2023 Huaxia Great Health Industry Development Conference
and the Third Golden Cane Award Unveiling Ceremony
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20154 9A  BABRIENEBC(2030F A
BEEZE) BRETI17TEUSERERRE
(SDGs) * EEM2015FF|2030FM UL A
FRBRMAREE  CEMRE-FALEN
BRMEE  ERABEERER -

ERBRARBEEZESDGSER LB SHEE
EPNHERRER - BEYIEFERSDGH
NEESGEE - BEMABBHENELE
BZF  BHAREBRAFEERBEMLE
BER

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Yonghe Medical is committed to providing patients with one-stop medical hair
healthcare services, building a multi-brand service system, such as Yonghe Hair
Transplant, Yonghe Fa Zhi Chu for female aesthetic hair transplant service,
Svenson Medical Hair Care Center, and HARVARD Hair Increase, benefiting the
health of humankind. In 2023, Yonghe Hair Transplant actively launched the
“Make Beauty Grow with Hair Care e Hair Forest Community Programme”,
aiming to provide free treatment to those guardians with hair problems who
have made high contribution to the society and have hair problems. Yonghe
Medical actively contributes to the development of social welfare undertakings
with sustainable and transferable power, embraces the uncertainty of the
future with proactive changes, and continuously optimizes and improves the
quality of medical and healthcare services.

Contributions to the Global Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs)

In September 2015, the United Nations formally adopted the 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development, putting forward 17 Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), which aims to thoroughly address
development issues in the three dimensions of society, economy and
environment in a comprehensive manner from 2015 to 2030, and to
move to the path of sustainable development.

Yonghe Medical conscientiously implements SDGs, and contributes
the development of the social environment with its own professional
advantages. We accurately benchmark and look closely at SDGs and
the Group’s ESG practices, and incorporate them into the strategy
formulation and business implementation, in an effort to contribute
to the global SDGs.

FTEEERE
Protect the
green homeland T
REOBREREZNIN  RRER =
SERGERIRE | S (25 B o

NERERREE

T o ' s
Rzis ARAE .
Wh;t’sEtlaken fiorErl\
2 Ems o

16 2"

¥,

society is used for society
AMEREXEMRERES 1B
BREEETERY | EAESWRE
BEE - HEBITEARRE

We conduct a tight control over the
discharge of wastes by improving the
efficiency of resources and energy use

and responding to the “carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality” goals, as well

Through the connection of the health
profession with the needs of the community,
we actively participate in the community
volunteer services. We expand the
enterprise-university-research institute

i f i FHERRE RFEEDRE
as strengthening the climate risk et e ecosystem and promote the shared From a “Good Doctor” to

management.

nee
o | =

medical service
BALIRNEERTE : BINERS
LEBRSEE  ARSENBERB
We focus on hair-related care service
and are committed to enabling more
patients to experience high-quality and
affordable medical services.

CSBIE NGB T “Doctor Team Strengthening

Program”

B s BE - TES T - F5
BARBSERS  SIERET KA
4% W ETER
We support women's development by
creating a diverse, equal and inclusive
workplace. We prohibit the use of child
labor and forced labor. We empower
employees to achieve the
development.

|
&

ERBEAHFEZEROAITEM

Four Major Action Directions of the Sustainable Development of Yonghe Medical
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors is the highest body responsible for the
management and disclosure of ESG matters in respect of Yonghe
Medical. The Board comprehensively supervises the progress of
the Group’s ESG work, and holds ESG communication meetings
on a regular basis. Yonghe Medical has set up an ESG working
group at the management level, which is in charge of identifying
and evaluating ESG risks and reviewing ESG plans and objectives.
The Board undertakes as follows: the Group has fully disclosed
the progress and results of the Group’s 2023 ESG work in strict
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of HKEX. The Board guarantees that
this Report is free from any false records, misleading statements or
major omissions, and the Board assumes individual and joint liability
for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of this Report.

ESG MANAGEMENT

Yonghe Medical actively practices ESG management practices to
proactively reduce environmental and social risks, improve social
reputation, attract more investors and customers, and promote long-
term sustainable development.

Governance structure

The Board of Directors is the highest decision-making body for the
ESG work of the Group, including evaluating the ESG risks in respect
of the Group, ensuring that the Group has established an effective
ESG risk management system, and reviewing and approving the
disclosure information in the Group's ESG Report.

In March 2024, the Board of Directors reviewed the 2023 ESG Report
of the Group, and approved the disclosure of the Report.
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BExg

Board of Directors

FEHESGEH -
B EESGERER
Review ESG matters and

In 2023, in order to promote the continuous improvement of ESG
management, the Investor Relations Department, as the main
department responsible for ESG work, was in charge of supervising
the commitment and performance of ESG key issues, evaluating the
Group’s ESG risks, and reporting ESG related work and progress
to the Board of Directors on a regular basis. In addition, the Audit
Department, as the communication and coordination department,
was in charge of encouraging other functional departments and sub-
groups to carry out ESG related work such as energy conservation and
emission reduction, medical safety protection and customer service
improvement in daily work. All functional departments and sub-groups
were responsible for implementing ESG work within the scope of their
responsibilities according to their own business and functions, and for
cooperating with the Group’s annual ESG information disclosure and
reporting.

As of December 31, 2023, there were 7 directors in the Board of
Directors, including 3 independent directors and 2 female directors.

ESGIfE/hE CE 2
ESG Working Group

Various Business
Departments
HEES

T ESGEMH s RIBESREAR -

monitor the progress towards
ESG objectives

Develop ESG plans to fully
integrate ESG into
business operations

EARBEBEESGEIEEMRE
Yonghe Medical's ESG Governance Structure

HITHERESGI{E
Perform ESG work according
to business line contents
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V'

Identification of material topics

In 2023, the Group maintained close communication with internal
and external stakeholders. According to the ESG management
system and business developments of the Group, we identified and
evaluated material ESG topics and prioritized them according to their
importance through internal special seminars and questionnaires for
internal and external stakeholders. The Board of Directors reviewed
and approved the identification, evaluation and prioritization of
material topics so as to ensure the formulation of the strategy and
vision based on the systematically analyzed ESG topics, and to
urge the Group to continuously improve the ESG performance for
satisfying the requirements and expectations of stakeholders. Based
on the evaluations of the materiality of each ESG topic applicable to
our business and its impacts on stakeholders, we have formed the
following materiality matrix and ranking, which are further discussed
in the subsequent sections of this Report:

"%_
High
* HERS e BEZE
Honest Transaction Medical Safety
© BERYER c EFBANGERR
Waste Management Customer Privacy and
o EIRRLES AR Information Security
Efficiency of Resources and Energy s BERSES
Use Medical Service Quality
c BEEEH o MEER PR
Responsible Marketing Safeguard the Rights and
o (tpESEISISEM S E S Inter‘ests of Customers
Supply Chain Environmental and o BERE
" g Social Risk Business Ethics
B o o HER2HEER
W E Data Security and Management
jae
[
s ° SERERIE c EEREHEES
® o Participate in the Information Disclosure and Quality
M s F(_)rmulation of Standards . ABEE
o (TR Risk Management
Industry Research o BERARE
o REEE Health and Safety
Green Operation o £ BAEER
Training and Development
o REAHER
Intellectual Property Protection

&

Low

HAEENEEN

Materiality to the Group

FEMZEHBNER Identification Results of Material Topics

ait

=
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Communication with stakeholders

AREBSEERELFZABEFNELTE The Group attaches great importance to the mutual communication
B OBBETREEREMS PRt ERE with all stakeholders. The Group has openly communicated with

FzEEE S HEBEE BT Em - A& all stakeholders on their expectations and opinions by establishing
EFZAEES  EREENMRE BUTE various communication mechanisms. The Group's stakeholders include
EEEME  BPMBE  AEEN BT investors, shareholders, governments, regulators, customers, patients,

RE - HRE -

partners, employees, the environment, communities and so on.

MEBEMEES M BERFRFR BIEEAE e
Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication and Response
BREE/RR o RERKHELR o  EHWmE

Investors/Shareholders

T R BE B S
Governments and Regulatory
authority

BEEMEE

Customers and Patients

° Investment returns and growth

s HEHRE

° Protection of rights and interests

e GFREERARRWES

e Information transparency and efficient
communication

e DEEREEAMRER

. Corporate governance and risk
management

o HESPEEEM

° Complying with laws and regulations

s RBIIBRBERE

e Fulfilling tax responsibilities

o IREBEHGREAFERR

° Supporting sustainable economic,
social and environmental
development

e RIBEEREE

° Ensuring healthcare service quality

o  IRMEERERY

° Providing high-quality healthcare
services

o EPEmERILRE

° Customer rights and privacy
protection

° Regular reporting

o KE{ERRKE

e Timely information disclosure

e REEAH®

o Investor meetings

o INsEERE R EE R

° Further efforts for risk control and
anti-corruption management

e KEXE

° General meeting of shareholders

e R

° Compliant operation

o HOEEBAB

e Taking the initiative to pay taxes
according to the law

e BIKEEREER

° Practicing green and low-carbon
development

o [EEMmEX

° Information submission

e [EEEE

. Information disclosure

o BFRKEAMBRISEER

o Customer consultation and service
hotline

s  EFMEERM

° Customer satisfaction survey

o  EERFPERHEEBILRER

o Improving the measures for protecting
customers’ rights and privacy
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FE=AERAT HAE B R R BEEEE e
Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication and Response
BIERH o HESABEERER o HEMEEHER
Partners . Supply chain sustainability . Standardizing the supplier
management management
s  AfEHE  HEZBRE e FRIEHAE
° Win-win cooperation and common ° Conducting project cooperation
development o  ERMBEERE
e  Attaching importance to intellectual
property protection
BT o  HEEBRMRME o BLEFMENER
Employees e Remuneration and welfare guarantee e  Optimizing the remuneration and
o HEENRBEIRMERARES welfare system
e Promoting career development and o  EHEZHEZEZEI
skill development e Regular meetings and specialized
o BEEERZLE training
e Occupational health and safety o INRREREE
e  Strengthening safety supervision
RIE o HEMMER o ERE=FABEELWEIEERE
Environment ° Emissions management )
o HIRE[EFE e Entrusting a qualified third party to

o'

Community

Energy conservation and consumption
reduction

B

Z2EMENE

Participatio
activities

>

in public welfare

recycle and treat medical waste
BEREE R E T 4R

Energy consumption monitoring and
wastes sorting

Participating in volunteer services
FEARESEDE

Carrying out public welfare and
charitable activities
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1. KEEPING INTEGRITY AND
STRENGTHENING COMPLIANCE
MANAGEMENT TO BUILD A SOLID

With integrity and innovation in mind, we are always on the right
track. In 2023, Yonghe Medical continued to promote and strengthen
compliance management to effectively protect shareholders’ rights
and interests. We strictly comply with the Anti-Monopoly Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China
Against Unfair Competition and other laws and regulations, strictly
abide by the code of business conduct, scrupulously abide by business
ethics, and oppose any bribery, money laundering, monopoly, and
unfair competition. At the same time, we require our partners to
comply with the Group’s related anti-commercial bribery and anti-
corruption policies and regulations, and are committed to establishing
a mutually respectful, co-operative and win-win good cooperative
relationship with our business partners.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDG.

'I 6 PEACE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG
INSTITUTIONS

Yy,

1.1 Compliant operation management

Compliance and law-abiding operation is an important foundation
for Yonghe Medical to achieve stable operation, and it is also a basic
condition for comprehensive risk avoidance. Yonghe Medical strictly
complies with various laws and regulations, continuously improves
the risk management and internal control system, strengthens internal
control and internal audit supervision, prevents internal control risks
and scrupulously abides by business ethics. We have established the
Compliance Management Committee, taken the Rules of Procedure
for the Compliance Management Committee as the standard to
conduct continuous monitoring and periodical spot-checks on the
compliance management of the important business of the Group,
and timely organized directors, supervisors and senior managers to
learn regulatory compliance knowledge to improve the corporate
governance level of the management, practice standardized operations
with higher standards, and enhance enterprise reputation and image.
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1.2 Protection of business information

Protecting business information is the key to maintaining the core
competitiveness and business interests of enterprises and maintaining
their legitimate position in the market. In order to strengthen the
protection of business information, Yonghe Medical has developed
the Information Security Management System, the Employee Online
Behavior Management System, the Computer Room Management
System, the Provisions on the Management of Classified Documents
and other information management systems, clearly defining the
scope of business information and the measures to protect it.
Among them, the Employee Handbook clearly states that employees
shall strictly keep all sensitive information confidential, including
documents, materials and photos. All employees are required to sign
the Employee Confidentiality Agreement upon entry. Efforts are made
to encrypt and manage key data and information and electronic
documents, and periodically check the identity of users in key
systems. In addition, information system administrators are required
to periodically review cross-over work logs.

1.3 Preventing and combating corruption

Where there is a corruption, there is a risk of collapse and failure.
Anti-corruption is conducive to the sustainable development of
enterprises and industries, and it is the key guarantee for a stable,
healthy and high-quality development of a responsible enterprise in
the long run. Yonghe Medical attaches great importance to business
ethics, comprehensively promotes integrity risk culture and capacity
building, and focuses on risk points. Yonghe Medical has developed
the Anti-money Laundering Policy, Risk Compliance Management
Manual, Anti-Fraud Reporting Mailbox Management System, Relevant
Authorization for Financial Expenditure and other systems, which
clearly define the regulations that employees should abide by in
terms of business ethics. The Group explicitly prohibits corruption
and bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering, monopoly, unfair
competition, and insider trading.

In order to cultivate and strengthen employees’ awareness of business
ethics and behavior, in 2023, we successively conducted a number
of trainings such as Medical Aesthetics Advertising Compliance
Training, Anti-Commercial Bribery Training, Training on Compliance
Requirements for Medical Advertisements Issued by the Group,
Training on Protecting Customer Information and Strictly Abiding by
the Group’s Bottom Line, to help our employees further understand
and apply the principles of business ethics.
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In order to further cultivate the compliance awareness of employees
and strive to create a corporate culture of integrity, honesty and
compliance, the Group has vigorously promoted anti-corruption
training. We have not only provided relevant content at the
orientation training, but have also required senior managers and
employees in important positions to sign the Letter of Honesty and
Moral Commitment upon onboarding.

In addition, Yonghe Medical has established a sound monitoring
and accountability mechanism to ensure that all employees comply
with the code of business ethics. All stakeholders are encouraged
to actively use the reporting channel to report any suspected illegal,
irreqular or improper behavior through the establishment of special
monitoring and reporting channel as well as internal audits in a variety
of ways, in order to monitor improper, unreasonable and unlawful
behavior and deal with breaches of the code of ethics. Once a report
is received, we shall strictly comply with the provisions on the identity
information of the reporter, ensuring that the privacy and security of
the reporter shall be well protected and that the reporter shall not
receive any discrimination, unfair treatment and other retaliation,
and that the reporter shall be protected to the maximum extent. In
addition, for various kinds of reporting information special personnel
shall be designated to follow up and investigate it.

Taking multiple measures to effectively protect the rights
and interests of the reporter and effectively promote
positive trends and anti-corruption

Yonghe Medical strictly keeps the personal information of the
reporter strictly confidential, and retaliation is strictly prohibited
under any pretext. The Group has formulated the Internal Reporting
Management System, clearly requiring in “Protection Mechanism for
Reporters” that the Audit Department of the Group and its staff must
act in strict accordance with the law to protect the legitimate rights
and interests of the reporter; any person who knows the reported
matters must strictly abide by this system and keep the reporter
strictly confidential; it is strictly forbidden to disclose any information
and reporting content of the reporter to the reported person; if the
reported person is the head of a clinic or department or above, it
is strictly forbidden to transfer the reporting materials to the clinic
or department where the reported person is located, etc., so as to
effectively protect the rights and interests of the report through
diversified measures, so that the Group can create a clean and upright
ecology and atmosphere. In 2023, there were no important events
regarding corruption or commercial bribery in the Group.
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During the reporting period, the Group provided one anti-corruption
training for the Board of Directors, one anti-corruption training for
the management, and corruption prevention training for all employees
through the online platform. The coverage rate of anti-corruption
training was 100%.

Reporting Channel

E-mail for reporting: jubao@zhifa.cn
Internal DingTalk platform: employee reporting module

1.4 Medical safety protection

Medical safety management is an essential element of protecting
the health of patients and also the key to achieving the mission and
social responsibility of the Group. We have strictly complied with the
Regulations on the Administration of Medical Institutions, Measures
for the Administration of Medical Cosmetology Services, Regulations
on the Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices, Drug
Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China and other laws
and regulations. We formulated the Contraindications and Treatment
Opinions for Hair Transplant Surgery (2021 Edition), the Medical
Adverse Event Reporting Management System V2.1, the Emergency
Management System for Branch Hospitals V2.0, the Medical Treatment
Service Process V2.0, the Unified Standards of Surgical Operation 2.0,
and the Notice on the Quality Control and Management Measures for
Medical Records, and so on. We have established a comprehensive
medical safety management system, formed a “four-in-one” safety
management system integrating supervision and management,
supplies management, emergency management, and practice
requirements, so as to monitor the quality of medical products in a
comprehensive, full-process and full-link manner, and established
the emergency response protection mechanism to properly handle
emergencies and make every effort to protect the quality and safety
of medical services.
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In 2023, Yonghe Medical worked with experts to formulate the
Contraindications and Disposal Opinions for Surgical Treatment and
Non-surgical Treatment of Hair lllness (2023 Edition), which improves
the quality of medical care and patient satisfaction, and reduces the
incidence of adverse events. During the reporting period, there were
no product recalls resulting from product safety and health problems.

EsEE

EEEE

Emergency Management Supervision and Management
RIMARERHNE - ARRSHENERE  BEHAS KUBREEERLZEY  THHEBER2RENAS
ERAARE - SRR RS B -

Establish a corresponding management system and specify
the treatment process and methods of emergencies to
ensure the safety of personnel.

Practicing Requirements

PR BRI - = AT i’j?ﬁj)MJﬂ—H#J &
BEIEZ - 2 mEMHEE

H o BEABE A imy B
CIEFHAEKE o o s R
Medical clinics and doctors are required to obtain relevant
qualifications before starting work Medical workers receive
regular training and evaluation and attend academic seminars
to enhance their practicing level.

Establish the medical quality management committee,
conduct regular medical safety inspection and
self-inspection, and make timely rectification and
optimization of problems once found.

RmER

Supplies Management

j : HJ‘FH\H/# BER=
Estabhsh the standard\zed process of quality inspection, speofy
the access standards of various medical drugs, devices,
consumables and others, and formulate the three classification
standards of the validity period of supplies.
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Medical Safety Management System of Yonghe Medical
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2. PROTECTING HAIR TRANSPLANT SAFETY
WITH METICULOUS STRESS ON DETAILS
IN SERVICES

We prioritize safety and provide intimate services. As a leading
enterprise in the hair healthcare service field in China, Yonghe Medical
has been committed to promoting industry innovation, refining service
details and improving service quality. Since its inception, Yonghe
Medical has always adhered to the guidance of patient needs, deeply
engaged in hair healthcare service field, and provided patients with
professional and personalized solutions.
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2.1 YR EHRE 2.1 Grounded in high-quality service

ERBRERNEERTRKRER KEBH5EE Yonghe Medical takes patients’ needs as the guide, combines its own
HERARERTIEIES  AREEH5TH 2 rich clinical experience and technical advantages, and tailors the new

o BER - 2023F  BRMEERTERS diagnosis and treatment mode for patients. In 2023, we continued
AE BFEXTE2EXERGEER T4 to adhere to the essence of medical treatment, continued to improve
ElaE - &% HEHE REIXN-ENE the industry-wide chain service system, and created medical hair care

BEEZEBERGER  BBREMIHNER management service system integrating “treatment, nourishment, hair
R - TETMERRABEEREZRAEE transplant and wig”, for the sake of constantly satisfying the diverse
ke needs of customers for hair care services by providing high-quality

medical services.

EE2RELE
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Medical wig
brand “Harvard”
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Women's
aesthetic hair
transplant brand
“Yonghe Fa Zhi
Chu”
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Professional hair
transplant brand
“Yonghe Hair

Transplant”
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Medical hair-nourishing

brand “Svenson”

ERER—BLREER
Yonghe Medical Integrated Service System

HZE2023F12A3181L  EREBERYT As of December 31, 2023, Yonghe Medical had established a
—XH1,612 ANEKNEXREEK - HAf professional medical team of 1,612 people, including 350 professional
BHEEAIS0A © physicians.
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2.1.1 Upgrading service quality

When doctors treat patients with sincerity, patients repay them with
trust. Yonghe Medical always takes service quality as the lifeline
of the Group’s development, and continuously strengthens the
management of service quality. In 2023, with a deep insight into
the development trend of the industry, and facing the new round of
market demand, Yonghe Medical upgraded again on the basis of the
integrated diagnostic and treatment system that was originally leading
the industry, implemented the development strategy of “one-on-
one with good doctor” development strategy, and advocated a new
diagnosis and treatment plan, providing customers with personalised,
multi-means, comprehensive and customized treatment solutions.

“One-on-one with good doctor”

From the establishment of “education and training system for hair
transplant doctors” in 2011, to the construction of medical value
system that “good hair transplant lies in good doctors” by Yonghe
Medical in 2019, to the first implementation of “hierarchical diagnosis
and treatment system for hair transplant doctors” and “Doctor Team
Strengthening Programme” in 2022, Yonghe Medical has always
embraced the concept of “good doctors provide good services for
patients”.
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In 2023, Yonghe Medical carried out the principle of "treating
patients with medical care, empowering them with beauty”, and
once again grasped the development trend of the industry in
advance and took the initiative to optimize it, and put forward the
concept of “one-on-one with good doctor”. One-on-one, as an
exclusive, comprehensive service after surgery provided by Yonghe
Medical, means the receiving of a professional doctor’s personal
diagnosis, personal precise medical programme formulation under
the intervention of good doctor. Aesthetically, we can find a
comprehensive hair programme that is suitable for ourselves and
personalised, so that “one case for one person” can be achieved
from both medical and aesthetic perspectives. At the same time, we
propose good doctor requirements in six dimensions, so that the
good doctor judgment criteria can be more comprehensive, refined
and accurate. The core of the strategic upgrade of “one-on-one
with good doctor” is the integration of medicine and aesthetics, in
which “good doctor” has always been our development foundation,
so as to ensure the best match between the aesthetic accuracy and
professional efficacy of each patient, and further promote the high-
quality development of the hair diagnosis and treatment industry.
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“Good Doctor” Criteria of Yonghe Medical in Six Dimensions
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Hierarchical diagnosis and treatment system

To meet the diverse needs of patients, Yonghe Medical summarizes
a hierarchical diagnosis and treatment system, which is a
comprehensive, multi-factor, three-dimensional and dynamic system
with doctor value as the core. Its core is to scientifically evaluate and
grade professional hair transplant doctors based on their academic
ability, surgical clinical experience and personalized design level. This
system design plays a good role in establishing a clear and highly
identifiable hierarchical professional team, improving the teaching and
training mechanism of doctors, opening up the promotion channel,
and forming a complete service and management cycle.

ES B A =
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Healthcare Quality
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BEERESR
IR#58EH EER b2 TR
Service Capability  Hierarchical evaluation ~ Working Years
1 5% system for hair ) O%

transplant doctors
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Scoring Weight of Yonghe Medical Hierarchical Diagnosis and Treatment System
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Technological innovation and development

Yonghe Medical always embraces the “medical consistency”
concept. By highlighting professional doctors, reliable medical
technology, customized medical solutions, relying on first-class hair
transplant technical capabilities and ultra-strict technical evaluation
standards, we have realized business closed-loop of hair care and
hair nourishment and hair root-strengthening and built a one-stop
integrated hair care management system to provide consumers
with high-quality medical services. The Group takes the lead in
implementing the outpatient system for doctors, implements
integrated diagnosis and treatment of hair care, and on the basis of
early prevention, early detection and early treatment, adopts a multi-
method, cyclical and full-course treatment approach, combining in-
hospital treatment with home treatment, and making standardized
and personalized treatment realized.
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At the same time, in order to incorporate the actual needs of patients,
we are the first to enter the medical hair nourishment service industry
in China. Combining a variety of non-surgical treatments, including
medical devices and drugs, we have made flexible and integrated use
of six kinds of treatments, such as drug therapy, laser physiotherapy,
hair transplants, wigs and so on, to provide medical cares before
and after surgery for hair transplant patients, to satisfy various
needs of the patients who are unnecessary or unsuitable for hair
transplants, and to create “common prosperity” in the hair healthcare
field through resonating the low-frequency and high-priced hair
transplant treatment with high-frequency and low-priced medical hair
nourishment.

Yonghe Medical cooperated with Sun Yat-sen University in
developing human hair follicle regeneration technology

On March 31, Yonghe Medical and the hair follicle regeneration
research team of Sun Yat-sen University held a strategic cooperation
conference in Guangzhou. Both sides will cooperate in various
fields such as human hair follicle regeneration technology research,
hair follicle regeneration research platform construction, and talent
cultivation, and realize resource sharing through the establishment of
a mechanism where enterprises have cooperated with universities so
as to provide the latest technology for hair loss treatment.

In this collaboration, to solve the difficult problem of the limited
number of autologous hair follicles that cannot be solved in the
existing hair follicle transplantation technology, the R&D project of
using stem cells to regenerate hair follicle was proposed, and a certain
breakthrough was made. Through the establishment of a mechanism
where enterprises have cooperated with universities, the two sides
will jointly use the hair follicle regeneration research platform to
tackle key problems on human hair follicle regeneration technology.
At the same time, they will carry out multiple R&D on anti-anxiety hair
loss drugs. This cooperation is expected to provide more satisfactory
medical services for the majority of patients with hair loss.
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Digital construction

Yonghe Medical attaches great importance to the positive role played
by digitalization in improving service quality, boosting business
development and strengthening the governance of the Group.
Yonghe Medical has endeavored to build the four platforms of digital
marketing, digital service, digital operation collaboration, and digital
purchase, and continued to improve the digital and intelligent level
of the business operation system, for the sake of supporting and
enhancing the operational efficiency and customer service capabilities
of the Group, providing strong support for strategic purchase and
even for the Group-wide operational decisions.

In 2023, we launched the first phase of the “Yonghe Intelligent
Diagnosis Room” project and completed the development of the
“3D Model Assisted Hair Transplantation Scheme Design” prototype
system. The feasibility of the technical scheme was preliminarily
verified and user feedback was received. Based on this, we completed
the submission of four patents

EREF{LEHEF A Yonghe Digital Marketing Platform
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o Through the full-link mining and analysis of customer service data, we can achieve accurate customer acquisition and
efficient conversion, thus continuously reducing marketing costs.

ERBF{LRIEF A Yonghe Digital Service Platform
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BEMEEE AR

BB ER D R RIS MM BT LR B R LK - TERAE M

o Enhance the online service capability for users through the Internet hospital, strengthen the digitalisation and
intelligence of the diagnosis and treatment and service processes of clinics, and continuously improve the
satisfaction of patients and the operational efficiency of clinics.

EXRBFLIHREZFE Yonghe Digital operation Collaboration Operation Platform

o  BBHHEE UK BERE ANSEBBRARBEBROBTESEN  KBRABEEBREL AN

o Through the digital integration of the supply chain, finance, medical, human resources and other business
synergy process systems, we can significantly improve the operational efficiency of the functional system.

ERBFLRBEEF A Yonghe Digital Purchase Management Platform

o TBHERER SREE -FTEEE YAEE CEEENHEREESRENBTEE  BEeErk -

BEME - AIREAIREIRERBIRERE R - KRR TRBREMERERLELH K2 -

BRES2ERNBRALERER

2 BRI

o Open up the digital breakpoints in the whole process of supplier management, sourcing management, order
management, logistics management, quality management and reconciliation and settlement, and build up
an end-to-end online closed-loop management system that is electronic, automated and visualized, which
significantly improves the purchasing efficiency and experience. Build up a digital management system for
the whole chain of marketing, consultation, diagnosis and treatment, after-sales service and supply chain

purchasing.
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The first domestic hair Internet hospital was launched,
leading the “new format” in the hair health field

In March 2023, the first hair Internet hospital in China, “Yonghe
Hair Health”, was launched on the mini program. Having currently
provided patient-centered hair medical and health services throughout
the whole-life cycle, such program can provide online consultation,
one-click registration, post-operative follow-up consultation, electronic
medical records, electronic prescriptions, and cloud-based pharmacies
and other services.

Based on this platform, authoritative physicians registered in medical
institutions can carry out cross-regional face-to-face consultations
and follow-up consultations in Internet hospital, while patients can
communicate with physicians through the Hair Internet Hospital
platform, obtain electronic prescriptions for continued treatment and
enjoy the service of delivering drugs to their homes, and can also
accept online guidance and rehabilitation from physicians, so that
they do not have to go to the hospital to receive continuous and
professional medical guidance and treatment services, and intelligently
realize online one-stop hair diagnosis and treatment and hair health
management. At the same time, the Internet hair diagnosis and
treatment can track the patient’s physical sign data outside the
hospital, so as to obtain continuous and cross-regional medical data,
which can provide data support for hair medical quality control,
technical management, diagnosis and treatment code of conduct,
medication evaluation, service process, service efficiency, medical
resource management, etc., and also bring more development to the
hair health industry market.

As China’s largest hair healthcare service group, Yonghe Medical
builds a smart medical system while leveraging the potential of
Internet medical services, making full use of patient flow, doctor flow
and data flow to achieve intelligent mobilization of resources, so that
high-quality hair medical resources can benefit more consumers.

2.1.2 Customer experience

As a leading medical hair care service provider in China, Yonghe
Medical has always been committed to providing all-round and
multi-dimensional hair care services, and constantly innovating
service models to meet the needs of the majority of patients for
hair health and beauty, and providing customers with a satisfactory
medical experience with good environment, considerate services, and
reassuring convenience.

125



126

EREESEAR2AT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

BRI HERERBREG

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

24 ap 2 1 AR A% RE B

ERBEN - UARBEEREREGE LD
FEIREHER - EEETKEREERLE
BR - EADLEBNAPEEIRAR] - &
ERBEEAHOMZ B - PHINDE
TORBRE AR UREENBEERE -
MR E KR ERBERE(HSROEERE)
A REBENGE  BAPEHLA
RAavHHmE  RBEERMIEEXNEET
M BERERY REFHS WK
HTE  MREBRNRGER SR E RGN
‘A AMBERS mf<%ﬁm&32
BRI - REMRRHEARTS B
%M@i%ﬁﬁffﬂgﬁ%*&%ﬁﬂﬁ
EHBERFENRERER

EREEREARBERNBRNNELZERF
BYFEENFEEELZHHR/DNARRE
MRFMZRAMEBRARTE  BERIEM+HE
Rl [BRE+BRTIER+RE ] ORERE
TNHESERREAIR

—HB(LEx
BR7GREER
All-in-one medical
service experience

Whole-life cycle services experience

Yonghe Medical’s one-stop services include advocacy of the whole-
life cycle services model, meaning that after the completion of hair
transplant, services are far from over, and we hopes to continue to
build close ties with customers. Such services include early-stage
treatment and testing, mid-stage diagnosis and treatment planning,
treatment, and post-treatment care services. Prior to surgery, medical
practitioners are required to sign the commitment document 5+5
Reassuring and Worry-free Guarantee to ensure patients’ right to
know; Through the comprehensive diagnosis report, doctors can
provide patients with professional hair transplant surgery, medical
hair nourishment services, wig products and other comprehensive
one-stop treatment plans. After surgery, a professional service team
is available to offer postoperative consultation and care services for
patients. According to Yonghe Medical Guidelines of Yonghe Medical
Services of Important Notes after Surgery, we can standardize the
requirements of postoperative tracking services, and conduct online
customer satisfaction questionnaires on a regular basis to obtain
patients’ feedback and opinions on medical services in a timely
manner.

Yonghe Medical is moving from point service to big and small cycle
services committed to establishing convenient and continuous value
interaction with all kinds of users, taking the user’s whole-life cycle
experience as the demand, realizing the six-dimensional link closed-
loop of "at clinics + at home”, “online + offline”, “products +
services” with in-depth integration.
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Upgrade Dimensions of Whole-life cycle Services Experience at Yonghe Medical
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Intelligent services

With the help of the digital information system, the Group has
improved the transparency of services and the effectiveness of
consultation. At the clinical reception stage, we have provided real-
time and intelligent reply to customers’ online consultation, quickly
and accurately identified patients’ needs, and proposed professional
service plans. At the surgical stage, real-time data and live surgical
broadcast have contributed to surgical transparency, improved
patients’ treatment experience, thereby making patients and their
families feel at ease and assured.

Safeguarding rights and interests of customers

Yonghe Medical upholds the “patients-oriented” service concept.
We have strictly abided by the Regulations on the Prevention and
Treatment of Medical Disputes, Measures on the Management of
Complaints for Medical Institutions and other laws and regulations.
We have formulated and implemented the Process of Yonghe for
Customer Complaint Handling to specify the responsibility and
principles of handling customer complaints, regularly reexamine
complaints, supervise and inspect the handling status of complaints,
and constantly enhance the timeliness, accuracy and rationality of
complaint handling. Therefore, customer complaints can be handled
in a timely and effective manner, keeping customer complaints from
escalating into crisis events, improving the satisfaction of patients, and
achieving a win-win situation for patients and the Group. At the same
time, we have also organized relevant training and typical complaint-
sharing meetings, and arranged case analysis and experience summary
learning for all kinds of complaints, so as to continuously improve the
service level.

The Group has established a diversified customer service platform to
listen to patients’ opinions, and through the official hotline 400-888-
6667 and an official complaint platform of Yonghe Medical, added
feedback channels on third-party platforms (Meituan, Xiaohongshu,
etc.) to provide smooth communication channels for patients and
listen to patients’ opinions more extensively.

During the reporting period, there were 1,418 customer complaints
received by the Group, with the customer complaint rate of 0.16%,
the customer complaint feedback rate of 100%, and the customer
satisfaction data: 4.86 out of 5 points.
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2.1.3 REEEEF

Yonghe Medical strictly adheres to the red line of medical privacy
and abides by the information security requirements of national laws,
regulatory regulations and industry norms. We have formulated and
followed some policies and systems such as Regulations on Further
Strengthening the Management of Medical Records in Clinic, Rules
and Regulations for Yonghe Customer Service Center — Information
Security, Management System of the Group’s Work-related Mobile
Phone and Number, Customer Resources Security Management
System, and so on, for the sake of achieving the effective protection
of customers’ private information in terms of password permission
management, medical record management, self-inspection and
rectification, confidentiality education and others, and ensuring the
protection of customers’ privacy from any infringement.
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In 2023, Yonghe will continue to strengthen its customer privacy
protection and information system data security capabilities. We have
established a cross departmental “Network and Data Security Group”
to promote the overall construction of Yonghe Information Security
System and cross departmental collaborative response capabilities. We
have established a customer data classification management system
to ensure compliance in the management process involving customer
privacy data. In terms of product capabilities, the self-developed
“Hefan” system and marketing task based workbench system have
achieved desensitization display and management of front-end
customer privacy information, strengthened authorization and access
control capabilities. At the same time, they have signed a Personal
Privacy Information Protection (PIA) agreement with Chenfeng,
and will continue to promote the signing of PIA agreements with
third-party SaaS manufacturers in the future; In terms of technical
capabilities, by deploying facilities such as cloud firewalls, WAFs,
and cloud security centers, we strengthen the construction of
cloud security system technical capabilities. Key business systems
communicate based on the HTTPS security protocol to prevent
customer privacy information from being stolen.

REEREE
Password o
Permission
Management .

o DESRRETARER - BUISTISEREL

Set different permissions according to classification and level, and strictly implement the password approval and
acquisition procedures;

REHEBA B RFERRETEA

Disable the system account of any departing employee in time;

BEVREHEBELRETRE  EREBREER  BREBHNZ2M -

Establish a strict password approval and authorization process and improve password setting requirements so as
to ensure the security of passwords.

mEEE
Medical Records .
Management

BIRRHIRE

o AMERESAMNE  BEEEX:
Specify and standardize the review process and seal requirements of medical records;
R REBFPRENREMY -
Keep and destroy medical records in strict accordance with the requirements to ensure the confidentiality of
patents’ medical records.

HEEY o HEREFI
Self-check and

Rectification

TZRER

HEEYE B

information, and guard against related information leakage.

REHE
Confidentiality
Education

education;

o HRREHEHI -

o NMAEEHENE  HREINRES
Make more efforts for publicity and education, enhance the confidentiality consciousness of employees, and
highlight the importance of confidentiality.

BRE ERIRBIZNINHE

Conduct confidentiality education and training to ensure that all employees receive confidentiality training and

B BERETIENERE -

BEPESLE2ER - 4 B RPEEXEEHEE  HBHBARESRE -
Conduct customer information security rectification, make regular self-inspection of important data and customer

ERBERILRETEEE

Action Measures of Yonghe Medical for Protecting Medical Privacy
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2.2 Practicing responsible marketing

It is the basic requirement for an enterprise to protect consumer
rights and interests to provide consumers with accurate, complete and
easy-to-understand product and service information. Yonghe Medical
resolutely safeguards the rights and interests of consumers. In strict
compliance with the Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Administrative Measures on Medical Advertisement, Law
Enforcement Guide for the Medical Cosmetology Advertising and
other laws and regulations, we have developed the Measures for
Advertising Management, which stipulates that all marketing contents
and forms shall be reviewed by the company headquarters, and
that activities with exaggerated or false information shall be strictly
prohibited to ensure that the brand image is accurate and unified and
the publicity is true and reasonable.

Kﬁ“‘uﬂ\ EE T EHRREEEH
C AREI RERRENER

EEEH -
Training Management:
Advertising and compliance
training is provided from time to l’
time to strengthen the
consciousness of compliance
publicity in all regions.

A
¥ —N

ENEE  BERMAHTRAABRETESR
% WS (BEEEESER) -

Review Management: All advertisements
shall be subject to the prior internal and
platform review before release, for which
Medical Advertisement Examination Certificate
shall be obtained.

HEEE  HRBERSEHADTHRER
# o PESBITHE - BREBEHE &
BAGER TV ERDRE -
Sales Management: Marketing contents
such as service price shall be subject to
strict examination and approval. Random
inspection shall be carried out to prohibit
overselling, false promises and
kunnecessary medical treatment.

—_—
N/

BMHEE  FREEHANTEBEMAR -
REEATHERM - — B - UbHh - KEE
AL LEERE - EERREBNEE
B
Release Management: Each region regularly
4l analyzes and evaluates the release contents to
ensure the authenticity and consistency of the
publicity contents. In addition, the Group
conducts regular survey and statistics of online
publicity channels and identifies potential risks
of online channels.

EABEEHERRBAR
Yonghe Medical’s Marketing Management System
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2.3 Sustainable supply chain

Yonghe Medical adheres to the development concept of win-win
with suppliers and optimizes the quality of supplier cooperation. In
2023, the Group adhered to the implementation of management
specifications, such as Supplier Management Specification V1.0,
Incoming Supplies Inspection Management System, and Quality
Complaint Management System, and updated and optimized
Processing Supplier Selection and Evaluation System, and formulated
Bidding Management System of Yonghe Medical, so as to construct
a whole-life cycle quality management system and effectively prevent
bribery, contract encroachment and other violations of discipline and
law in the procurement process through evaluating and managing
supplier risks, thus ensuring supplier compliance, and improving
quality and sustainability of the supply chain, reducing enterprise
supply chain risks, and guaranteeing the sustainable development of
production and operation.

During the reporting period, there were 157 suppliers cooperating
with the Group. In the process of supply chain management, the
Group conducted classified evaluations according to the transaction
frequency, importance of suppliers and others, and reviewed suppliers
for 62 times in total.

( 1.9%
42.0%

# 4k North China

#£E7 South China

ZER East China
ZEr Central China
A4t Northwest China

P Southwest China

4t Northeast China

16.6%

EARBEMEE MBI D HE

Distribution Diagram of Suppliers of Yonghe Medical by Region
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2.3.1 Supplier management

Yonghe Medical is committed to working hand in hand with suppliers
for the shared development. We have formulated the Supplier
Management Specification V1.0, to strictly control the access
threshold and process of suppliers, strive to reduce enterprise supply
chain risk, and ensure the sustainable development of production
and operation, and effectively improve the quality, resilience and
sustainability of supply chain management.

2.3.2 Supply chain environmental and risk management

In order to promote the construction of a sustainable supply chain,
Yonghe Medical actively cooperates with suppliers to jointly fulfill
environmental and social responsibilities and enhance the risk
resistance of the supply chain. In the direct supply chain management
process, the Group has established long-term cooperative relationship
with those suppliers qualified for wastes treatment, to effectively deal
with waste materials that may result from business operations. At the
stage of selection, access and review of new suppliers, the supplier’s
environmental protection system evaluation is put into the supplier
access evaluation system, and the selected suppliers shall have the
same environmental protection awareness and responsibility goals
with the Group.

2.3.3 Green supply chain management

Yonghe Medical actively practices the green development concept,
adheres to the bottom line of ecological and environmental
protection, consciously fulfills the main responsibility of health and
environmental protection, and strives to build an environment-
friendly and resource-saving enterprise. In the procurement process,
Yonghe Medical pays attention to the environmental management
performance of suppliers. In the process of selecting production-
oriented suppliers, it selects enterprises with EIA report certification.
For enterprises with advanced environmental protection concepts,
under the same conditions of performance, price, and technical
services, we give priority to their products and services. For example,
the energy consumption level of medical devices is an important index
deserving our attention. The Group’s cleaning and care products are
usually tested for harmful ingredients by testing institutions before
they are launched. At the same time, for discarded items, the Group
will choose to cooperate with professional waste treatment companies
to actively prevent and control environmental pollution and promote
the green and low-carbon upgrading of the overall supply chain.
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2.3.4 Digital procurement supply chain

Relying on emerging technologies such as big data, Internet of
Things, and cloud computing, we have realized digital empowerment
of the traditional supply chain, gradually realized the visualization,
informatization and digitization of the supply chain, built a digital
procurement supply chain, introduced intelligent control and
management tools, and improved the level of intelligence, in order to
improve procurement efficiency, reduce procurement costs, improve
procurement quality and upgrade supplier management level, and
achieve a more efficient, accurate and transparent procurement
process.

2.4 Innovation-driven development

Innovation is the driving force for the long-term development of
Yonghe Medical, and in the future, it will also build a more solid
development path through innovation. Yonghe Medical has actively
built an innovative technology platform, established Yonghe Medical
R&D Department, and formulated the Programme of Yonghe for
Medical R&D Work and the Work of R&D Department and the
Regulations on the Use of Medical R&D Expenditures, aiming to
standardize the management of R&D projects and promote sustainable
innovation and development. The Group lays stress on market-
oriented R&D projects. Through technical cooperation with external
institutions of higher learning and medical institutions, the Group has
been constantly pursuing breakthroughs in hair transplant technology
and promoting technological progress in the industry.

During the reporting period, the Group invested RMB35.47 million in
the scientific research field.

By the end of 2023, the Group had accumulated more than 400 IP-
related certificates. During the reporting period, the number of new
patents was 3, with a cumulative total of 35 patents.
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2.4.1 R&D team building

1) Establishing an internal expert committee

ERZES P REMERET L BEE The expert committee guides and improves the medical team in the
BOEITIEERIET - AREERBEKHE two aspects of diagnosis and R&D. The research on the mechanism
# - REERERODE AE - BIERE of hair disease formation and the diagnosis/treatment of hair loss

i 2 1 B B2l AL B PR F B IS IR (SR B ) diseases provides strong help for developing a path for the future

& Bl development of diagnostic consensus guidelines of hair loss diseases.
2 RERO DB RIEBER

Diagnosis and Treatment

Diagnosis and Treatment Provide diagnosis and treatment plan or treatment advice for
difficult cases

HERREE  BREFHROROGLHETER

Give appra|sa| opinions for cases with disputed medical quality and treatment effect
HiEEE SR RRERBRETHN - REBCEMER %R

Analyze existing quality defects and risk problems, and propose plans for improvement
and prevention

R

Scientific Research

2) HEYEERE

AR - FRAMAIT R

Scientific Research Make feasibility demonstration for new projects and new
technologies

HEE B 52

Develop a project plan

BEHKRET - HEEEABEAXNRE(

Evaluate project results and help to promote the transformation of specific project
results

2) Establishing a team of diagnosis and treatment experts

BEREEILLRN EEHRLD - YRIRHED The expert team can offer services in Beijing and Shanghai clinics,
BIEH - N2 EEMEeE  BTEZ R providing diagnosis and treatment training internally and participating
iS3 Tﬁ%ﬁ)]%ﬁé?ﬁfﬁ’i B RBRFTIE - in academic seminars and journal review externally. At the same time,

the team may assist in the construction of intelligent diagnosis and
treatment standardization.
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2.4.2 BEK i EF Medical technology innovation

Focusing on medical technology innovation, Yonghe Medical has
set a long-term goal of intelligent operating room, aiming to create
better medical experience for patients through the power of science
and technology. We continue to innovate in the fields of aesthetic
technology, instruments and equipment, cutting-edge medical and
other technologies, thereby achieving the transformation of scientific
research achievements into diagnosis and treatment, and improving
the quality of medical services.

Yonghe Medical improves FUE hair transplant technology, selects the
haircutting method according to the patient’s needs, location of hair
loss, and the need for image improvement, and further refines the
criteria and direction according to the level of hair loss, diagnosis, and
classification of the patient’s aesthetic needs.

2.4.3 Cooperation and exchange between enterprises and
universities

Yonghe Medical believes that the cooperation among enterprises,
universities and research institutes can quickly realize the
complementary advantages of both parties. In 2023, Yonghe Medical
strengthened the collaboration among enterprises, universities and
research institutes by organizing academic meetings and building
academic platforms, thus laying a solid foundation for the upgrading
of the hair industry.
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Promoting the upgrading of the hair industry, with the help
of cooperation among enterprises, universities and research
institutes

The joint laboratory for hair health established by Peking University
People’s Hospital and Yonghe Medical announced the official
launch on June 28, which is China’s first established by a tertiary
public hospital and a top private hair healthcare institution. The
establishment of such laboratory is conducive to the construction of
a standardized system and standardized foundation for hair diseases,
deeply being engaged in the pathogenesis of hair diseases, and
developing new drugs and new means to balance the unbalanced
diagnosis and treatment status quo in the industry, and provide a
sound treatment system for patients in the future.

The cooperation is an important strategic measure to accelerate
industry innovation, assist in the transformation of scientific and
technological achievements, and enhance products to promote
industry development.

YONGHE=X
EXREST

BB EHAR 2279HK -
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2.4.4 Intellectual property protection

The Group strictly abides by the Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
intellectual property-related laws and regulations. The Group has
also publicized and popularized intellectual property knowledge and
related laws, strictly reviewed the Group’s contracts in respect of
intellectual property, and provided employees with consultation on
intellectual property law and patent matters. In order to safeguard the
intellectual property rights of the Group and other third parties, the
Group has standardized the fonts and pictures used for the publicity
in all marketing channels, and made the timely application for the
copyright of related trademarks, patents and software.

3. GROWING TOGETHER WITH EMPLOYEES
XIIéHBI'RSOTECTING AND DEFENDING THEIR

With guardianship and companionship, we enable employees to grow.
Yonghe Medical attaches great importance to the development and
growth of every employee, and protects their legitimate rights and
interests, hires them pursuant to laws and regulations, prohibits forced
labor and child labor, and opposes workplace discrimination. The
Group has considerately provided employees with professional training
and fair development opportunities, actively made communication,
listened to their voice, and conducted diverse activities to protect the
physical and mental health of employees.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDG goals.

QUALITY GENDER
EDUCATION EQUALITY

¢

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

1]

1 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

A
(=)

v
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3.1 Protecting rights and interests of employees

Yonghe Medical adheres to the people-oriented concept, regards
human capital as an important wealth and lasting power for the
sustainable development of the Group, and effectively protects the
legitimate rights and interests of every employee. We safeguard their
legitimate rights and interests in strict compliance with the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws and regulations.
We follow the principles of openness, impartiality and fairness in
recruitment. We have developed and implemented the Recruitment
Handbook and the Employee Handbook to continuously improve
the employment system. In the recruitment process, we oppose
discrimination, treat ethnic minority employees, female employees,
and disabled employees equally according to the principle of special
labor protection, oppose forced labor, harassment and abuse, and
oppose employment of child labor, aiming to provide open and equal
development opportunities and employment environment for every
employee.
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Employment policy

The Group follows the principles of openness, impartiality and fairness
in recruitment, and puts ethnic minority employees, female employees
and disabled employees on equal footing. The Group strictly controls
the age of applicants and prohibits the recruitment of applicants
under age 18. The Group signs labor contracts with employees
according to the law to protect rights and interests of employees.

There were no employment violations during the reporting period.

AR D MIERE Tt

Proportion of Male and Female on-the-job Employees Proportion of on-the-job Employees by Employment Category

0.18%
6.25%

93.57%

B % Female B SHEEE Senior Management
B =% Male B F®EEE Middle Management
Il —MET Ordinary Employees
RRATERE T LHRKFEBE T
Proportion of Disabled on-the-job Employees Proportion of on-the-job Employees of Ethnic Minorities

0.53%

99.47%

5.27%

94.73%

B & AERET Disabled on-the-job employees B D EEKEBS T On-the-job employees of ethnic minorities

B 3% AZEBET Non-disabled on-the-job employees B EOBERKERET On-the-job employees of non-ethnic minorities
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Remuneration system

Yonghe Medical adheres to equal pay for equal work, pays wages
in full and on time, and pays social insurance for employees
in accordance with the law. We have developed the Yonghe
Remuneration Management System as a guiding document for the
management of remuneration system, structure, assessment and
payment. Salaries are reasonably determined according to employees’
work experience, ability, industry accumulation, educational
background, and work attitude, and as well as the average wages of
the society and the industry.

BEIREBEEN Employee Employment Performance

b Indicators By Unit 2023 2022 2021
ET{EE Employment of employees

BT Total number of employees A person 3,935 3,741 4,264
51 Number of male employees A person 994 949 1,106
pegis Number of female employees A person 2,941 2,792 3,158
FHBET Number of full-time employees A person 3,889 3,705 4,222
HtE@BHIAE TR Number of part-time and other employees A person 46 36 42
30 MIATE T A Number of employees aged 30 and below A person 2,403 2,226 2,851
31-40E T AZ Number of employees aged 31-40 A person 1,264 1,227 1,190
41-5055 8 T A% Number of employees aged 41-50 A person 225 226 180
ST R AEETE AR Number of employees aged 51 and above A person 43 62 43
#if Number of employees in North China A person 993 922 1,010
B Number of employees in South China A person 685 755 603
B Number of employees in East China A person 1,240 1,136 1,458
#Erh Number of employees in Central China A person 432 416 486
[ich!d Number of employees in Northwest China A person 167 149 304
7ar Number of employees in Southwest China A person 289 245 279
=ik Number of employees in Northeast China A person 129 118 124
it Indicators By Unit 2023 2022 2021
BIRK Employee Turnover

BT kR Employee Turnover Rate % % 23.31 2179  23.31
BB T RER Turnover Rate of male employees % % 2517 1132  22.39
8 T sk R Turnover Rate of female employees % % 22.68 32.81 23.20
30 RIATE IRAE Turnover Rate of employees aged 30 and below % %  28.55  24.61 24.91
31m-40R B LK% Turnover Rate of employees aged 31-40 % % 17.25 1798 19.86
415%-508% A EB TRKE  Turnover Rate of employees aged 41-50 % % 12,57 12.19  13.37
ST M EB TmAXK Turnover Rate of employees aged 51 and above % % 12.84 1692  25.85
#bL B TRk =R Turnover Rate of employees in North China % % 2192 11.08 14.77
EHEIRAR Turnover Rate of employees in South China % %  22.88 3354 24.23
EHETRAR Turnover Rate of employees in East China % %  29.40 25.04  29.71
B TiRAR Turnover Rate of employees in Central China % %  20.46 17.74  20.42
it B Timsk = Turnover Rate of employees in Northwest China % % 19.62 29.47  20.97
TORg B TRk =R Turnover Rate of employees in Southwest China % % 12.92 40.61  25.41
WAL B ITimsk= Turnover Rate of employees in Northeast China % % 11.94 13.22  15.79
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3.2 Keeping an eye on employee growth

If we are thirsty for talents, more talents will reach us. If we attach
less importance to them, they will leave us. Employees are not only
the assets of a company, but also its driving force. Yonghe Medical
pays attention to the growth of employees, creates a comprehensive
talent cultivation system for employees, and builds a good and
smooth workplace channel, so that every employee can realize their
self-worth.

3.2.1 Smooth promotion channels

Yonghe Medical builds a scientific and reasonable performance
system, improves the remuneration and distribution system, and
makes it possible for every employee to be treated fairly and justly by
letting those who work more get a higher salary, and those who are
skilled get a higher salary. The Group has developed and implemented
the Yonghe Medical Performance Appraisal Management System,
which can specify the promotion standards and requirements of each
post, standardize and improve the talent development and promotion
mechanism. The Group determines the evaluation indicators according
to the responsibilities of different posts and the phased development
requirements of the Group, and establishes a flexible and efficient
human resources management system and smooth promotion
channel, so as to stimulate the vitality of talents, and truly make the
best use of their talents.
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Business line training

BT
New employee training
LB
On-duty training
HErREN
Competency training

3.2.2 Improving the training system

Yonghe Medical values growth and personal value realization of
every employee, insists on optimizing and improving the training
system, and provides training through multiple channels such as
online and offline. In 2023, Yonghe Medical conducted a total of 264
trainings, with the coverage rate of employee training being 100%,
and 36,620 person-times in total. We have established three major
training lines for business lines, special project, and leadership. The
training contents include new employee training, on-duty training,
and competency improvement training covering all employees, as well
as teaching-training, integrated reception training and special service
project training for employees in the clinic posts, and a series of
training for the management such as leadership training, to enhance
the business skills of employees in all aspects and from multiple
perspectives. In addition, various forms of interactive activities such
as knowledge competitions are conducted to promote skills through
competitions and enhance employees’ professional career abilities.

SR R S Y
Spedal projed training Business line training

R BraaiR F 3t
Teaching training Chief resident doctor
— B iR promotion class
Integrated clinic
reception training

FrER%EE

Characteristic services

ERBEIEIIRE

Yonghe Medical’s Training System
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B TEIEN Employee training performance

B Indicators Bfy Units 2023 2022 2021
BTXIRAS Total number of trained employees A person 3,935 3,741 4,264
BITHFIX Employee training rate % % 100 100 100
SUHEIXIAESL Percentage of trained male employees % % 100 100 100
ZUMETIXIASL Percentage of trained female employees % % 100 100 100
SRERBIIEOH  Percentage of trained senior management % % 100 100 100
RREIRESIE D Percentage of trained middle management % % 100 100 100
—MEIXIAESL Percentage of trained ordinary employees % % 100 100 100
SHEE T FHEIIEERK  Average training hours of male employees /N hour 30 29  26.53
B TFHEIIERK  Average training hours of female employees AN hour 15 10  25.63
SREREBFHEETI R Average training hours of senior management AN hour 80 96  53.47
AR E IR g 19155 & Average training hours of middle management N hour 150 200 33.14
—M B T FHEFIRK  Average training hours of ordinary employees AN hour 30 20 26.25

1. EBEEI 1.

Business line training

TR R ARIT I F R Be 5 75 v 3 B T 3%
Al - ERBENEI - BEENRA=ZRER
W FEHHEBRASRENERS - REF
AR RIS IR B &b o

FHETIEI
New employee training

EREE A

Basic professional knowledge

Business skills

e A

Orientation training for attending doctors

Training for new medical assistants and

RIBER SRR STEIBEH
Practical operation of business Training for new nurse practitioners New nurse instruction
E3 ST s EREREIE BAEREE HRE

The business line training of Yonghe Medical involves the three
modules, namely, new employee training, on-duty training,
and competency improvement at the business end of the clinics,
which mainly aims to improve the ability improvement of business
line personnel and to promote the implementation of business line
strategies and projects.

LimgenEN
On-duty ability training

EDBEEABISE

ErRaE
Competency training
PIZBAE TR/ 2F s
“1 hour a day” diagnosis and treatment
training for outpatient doctors

BN IR K 8 i B IR |

transfer assistants

Special ability certification
for doctors

Training for new
hair-nourishing consultants
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During the reporting period, the new employee training was provided
for a total of 1,440 employees. In addition, 215 in-service attending
doctors, 696 new in-service assistants, 257 in-service specialists
providing services, and 324 full-time and part-time new nurses were
trained, 90 in-service double-check consultants, supervisors and
managers, and 11 nurse instructors were trained.

2. Special project training

Female project: Under the guidance of Yonghe Medical aesthetic
design concept, the Group improves the aesthetic design ability of
outpatient doctors and assistants, and optimizes the preoperative
design ability of surgeons and their understanding of aesthetic
surgery.

Wig project: The three major modules of wig product knowledge,
customized product operation methods and hair-cutting operation
methods are provided to enhance the medical staff’'s wig styling
service ability. Qualified trainees can be selected as regional hair
stylists.

Hair-nourishing and hair root-strengthening project: Nurses can
learn the hair-nourishing and hair root-strengthening knowledge
from the DingTalk group at any time, so as to optimize the nursing
operation process and improve the customer experience. During the
reporting period, 345 employees were trained.
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Integrated reception: Yonghe Medical implements the reception
mode with doctors as the core, where the doctors are responsible
for professional diagnosis and treatment, and the medical assistants
are in charge of assistant services in the whole process. 234 medical
assistance teams have been set up, and six rounds of exercises have
been carried out through online training and offline exercise and
appraisal. In this way, the new receiving mode has been put into use.

3. EEHEH

RIGRERBRETSEEEABNERRE
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N BHRENEEER - HTHREHHR AR

FiEbcA - BEEDE) 2B EIERE

R SIRBIZE - EREY - ZMEERDE
NAEEES - BEEEER —RBALE WK
PRAARE  RA=ZBRENE - ERNEBR

AOABRE -

BT TREREEEABRRE  RERERE
BTOPRIEREMOREES - EREEME
[RERETE ] REHNTHKRHEXE
BRREEI O RE12BRERFBAR - B
PHRTTRRA - PAARITEE ©

3. Leadership training

In order to strengthen the business competence and professionalism
of the middle and senior management of Yonghe Medical, further
enhance their leadership and execution, and better serve the
development of the Group, and targeted for the reserve chief resident
doctors and the new chief resident doctors, the leadership training
lays stress on the five abilities of clinical reception ability, member
management ability, service concept and service standard, risk
response and female reception ability, which serves the four major
goals of cultivating a unified cognition mentality, determining the
general standards of chief resident doctors, improving the hierarchy
of the three types of chief resident doctors and achieving the business
model.

In order to complete the empowerment of reserve management
personnel and promote their mentality change from business TOP
to managers, Yonghe Medical launched the “Hetang Reserve
Programme” and completed two rounds of professional management
skills training during the reporting period, covering 12 Hetang reserve
personnel to help them improve cognition and proficiency.
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Yonghe Medical was awarded the "ECHO02023 King’s Boat
Favorite Talent Employer” by BOSS Zhipin

The "ECHO2023 Annual Partner Conference” hosted by BOSS Zhipin,
a leading Internet recruitment platform in China, was successfully
held. Yonghe Medical won a good employer brand reputation and
won the “King’s Boat e Favorite Talent Employer Award” by virtue
of its high attention to talent development and excellent talent
recruitment activity. Also on the list are well-known companies in
various industries such as Baidu and JD.com.

It is understood that the award, based on the actual behavior data
of BOSS platform users, selects enterprises that respect talents,
attach importance to talent development, and actively promote
communication with talents in the past year. Employer brand is a
comprehensive quality display of both internal and external cultivation
of an enterprise. As the “first share of hair transplant”, Yonghe
Medical stands out among many influential enterprises, reflecting the
high recognition of Yonghe Medical by job seekers.
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3.3 Protection of physical and mental health

We protect the physical and mental health of our employees, and
establish a safety production management system and a safety
emergency management mechanism to ensure the health of our
employees. Yonghe Medical strictly abides by the Work Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases
and other applicable occupational health and safety-related laws
and regulations in the place of operation, actively implement the
main responsibility of the Group's occupational health, promote
the construction of the occupational health and safety system,
strengthen the identification and assessment of risks in the business
process, incorporate employee health and safety into all links of daily
operation, regularly conduct safety and environmental testing on the
worksite, issue safety facilities and equipment to employees, protect
health of employees, and create a safe and comfortable workplace.
We comply with the requirements of occupational health risk warning,
employee personal protection, employee physical examination and
other requirements stipulated by the state in daily supervision. We
provide complete occupational health protection facilities, improve
occupational disease warning signs, and realize the closed-loop
management of occupational health.

During the reporting period, there were no work-related casualties.

BTIZREX Employee safety performance

BE Indicators B  Units 2023 2022 2021
ETHBIT AZ Death toll due to work-related casualties A person 0 0 0
A TBT =& Death rate due to work-related casualties % % 0 0 0
EIEEAIERS Number of working days lost due to X person 0 0 48

work-related injury
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3.4 Passionate care for employees

We care for employees and build the future together. Yonghe
Medical regards health and happiness of employees as its greatest
responsibility and obligation. We passionately care for our employees,
advocate the balance between their work and life, enrich their
amateur cultural activities in their spare time, and protect their
physical and mental health in an all-round way.

It's specified in the Employee Handbook that Yonghe Medical
provides welfare for employees, including annual leave, marriage
leave and funeral leave for employees. In addition, female employees
are entitled to maternity leave, antenatal care leave and breast-
feeding leave, and male employees are entitled to paternity leave. We
also provide benefits for employees on Nurses’ Day, Women's Day,
employee birthdays and other holidays.

.-'.\

mrams.i2® G ¥ % )

——BEXE, BEAT Y

Feeling Warm on the Day of Beginning of Winter, Tasting
Delicious Jiaozi Together

The Day of the beginning of winter has arrived quietly amid autumn
scenery. Eating dumplings at the beginning of winter is one of
the traditional customs. This year, Yonghe Medical organised the
employees to carry out a series of activities to celebrate the coming
of the beginning of winter, so that employees could experience
the warmth of home in the hospital, and the frontline employees
could feel the care and warmth of Yonghe as a big family, so as to
effectively strengthen the sense of acquisition, happiness and security
of the employees, and make everyone very happy!

Besides, during the traditional festivals such as Mid-Autumn Festival,
Dragon Boat Festival, Lantern Festival and so on, Yonghe Medical
organizes various forms of collective activities for the frontline
employees every year, so that everyone can feel the traditional
Chinese culture and more importantly, and the Group’s care and
affection as well.
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Engraving Good Times in the Name of Birthday

In order to thank employees for their contribution, enhance teamwork
and cohesion, and strengthen their sense of belonging, the Group
holds a collective birthday party for relevant employees on a monthly
basis. Through the birthday party where employees will receive
birthday gifts, the Group promotes communication and sharing
among employees, showing the Group’s humanized management and
care for employees, and enhancing employees’ sense of identity with
the Group.

4. PRACTICING GREEN DEVELOPMENT TO
BUILD A BEAUTIFUL HOME

Make our home livable and ecological with our efforts. Yonghe
Medical adheres to the green development concept, actively responds
to the relevant calls of “implementing sustainable development
strategies, building an ecological civilization system, comprehensively
improving resource utilization efficiency, vigorously developing green
economy, and promoting comprehensive green transformation of
economic and social development” clearly put forward in the national
“14th Five-Year Plan”, actively carries out a series of actions for
energy conservation, pollution reduction and emission reduction,
strictly manages the environment, and adheres to green operation. In
the future, we will strengthen our own carbon emission management,
continue to improve climate risk identification and assessment
methods, reduce the impact of climate change on our own business,
help the country achieve the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”
goals, and contribute to the construction of a beautiful home with
clear waters and lush mountains.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDGs.

Bioow |14 sovwm

15 viwe

149



150

ERBEEEARAE YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

BRI HERERBREG

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

4.1 EEERR S BE

EARABEBRRERER(PEARIMBERER
#E) (R EARKMBIAKF R AE)
FEARKANBEERENSAREN L) (B
BEREMERGD) (BREM SR A (2021
FHR))FEERERER - FOEGRBBOTR
Yo RMAOHIRBRSRMARIZE -

WEHA - RERERNRFIGREN

BEHYERBE  SEASTERBUKRA
BEREAE - FIEEH  PH - RYPREE
HEZ - NFE202558  HEBEMAE
WHATIE WEFEMEEMBBEKE
MBRASKERREEENFIE - BHE
BASRMERERENTHEIZ  LURA
BELERRES  HOEBHD  BHRE
BERE (BE—  #ED)EREE &K
BERBEBLRPNHNRABEZ -

4.1 Energy conservation and emission reduction

In strict accordance with the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, the Regulations on the
Administration of Medical wastes, the Catalogue of Medical wastes
Classification (2021 Edition) and other laws and regulations, Yonghe
Medical discharges pollutants in accordance with laws and regulations
to reduce pollution and adverse effects on the environment.

There was not any major environmental pollution event during the
reporting period.

Emission management objectives: The Group sets short-term, medium-
term and long-term environmental management objectives based on
the industry characteristics and its own development plans. The Group
endeavors to conduct the recycling of packaging materials before
2025, and increases the recycling quantity of packaging materials year
by year. By improving the capacity and efficiency of sewage treatment
equipment, the Group meets the medium-term goal of reducing the
discharge density of water pollutants. The Group gradually reduces
the emission density of greenhouse gases (Scope 1 and Scope 2)
through the optimization of the energy system and the application of
green and low-carbon office, so as to ultimately achieve the long-term
goal of carbon neutrality in its operations.
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BERIEN Emissions Performance

BREE Type of emissions By Units 2023 2022 2021

JEKEERE Sewage discharge tonne 3,721 2,489 3,571

A AYEERE  Total discharge of pollutants tonne 0.24 0.16 0.14

in sewage

BEREZYES 5 Output of hazardous wastes [ tonne 171.95 131.83 168.51

BEEEVEE Density of hazardous wastes T35/ &0 A tonne/RMB 0.97 0.93 0.78

10,000 income

#ERE T ) EE 4 42 2 Output of non-hazardous tonne 1,200 900 815.44

wastes

mEBEVETE Density of non-hazardous T35 /&0 A tonne/RMB 6.75 6.37 3.76

wastes 10,000 income

#HE—RERE Scope 1: emission of Wi — S LiEE  tonne CO2e 24.58 41.53 15.67

YE 2 greenhouse gas emission
BE—B=HE Scope 2: emission of Wi — S LiREE  tonne CO2e 13,053.78 10,277.00 8,908.29
YEm 2 greenhouse gas emission
BERETMAEE  Total emissions of WE—A{thxE 2 tonne CO2e 13,078.36 10,318.53  8,923.96
(#1[E—+#E =) greenhouse gas emission
(scope T+scope 2)

BERBEBEMEE  Emission density of FHR-_A{ClitE tonne CO2e/RMB 73.60 73.04 41.15

greenhouse gas 2/ BlA 10,000 income

s Notes:

1. B ER BN E R B S E R AT (WRI) 1. Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated pursuant to the "GHG
MERTHFEIEEES(WBCSD)EMH Protocol” released by the World Resources Institute (WRI) and the World
(CREREBZBERLEZERREFE) Business Council for Sustainable Development (WBCSD), in which the
FE - HPENERA T RBC SR power emission factor is 0.604tCO2/MWh from Carbon Dioxide Emission
WIZE MR EERARE ) (DB11/T 1785 Accounting and Reporting Requirements for the Service Industry (DB11/
- 2020) FHEMETF0.604tCO2/MWh; 5 T 1785-2020); for gasoline, 44,800 kJ/kg is used, and 1,355 litres of
SHERFI 44,800 ki/kg * 1355F 9 m=118 : gasoline = 1 tonne; for the calculation of greenhouse gases of purchased
INERNREREAELE(RAHRELRES heat, reference is made to the Methodology and Reporting Guidelines
rERERBHRZERENREERD (B for the Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises Operating in Public
17))  HEMPERETEHA0.11tco2/GJ » Buildings (Trial), and the corresponding emission factor is 0.11tco2/GJ,
WAL E L2021 ~ 2022 F B - which is used to restate the data for 2021 and 2022.

2. RTPEERBEBRERSE (FNE)BRUE 2. The density data in the table is calculated by dividing the usage

EWAFTERH -

(emissions) by the operating income.
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4.1.1 Sewage emission reduction management

Yonghe Medical strictly implements the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Water Pollution Prevention and Control, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Infectious
Diseases, Hospital Sewage Treatment Technical Guide (H.F. [2003]
No. 197), the Medical Sewage Treatment Management System, and
other systems, sets up a sewage emergency treatment team, develops
the Sewage Emergency Treatment Plan, and specifies the operation
standards and operation management of sewage treatment, to
prevent and control the pollution of hospital sewage discharge to the
environment, standardize the construction and operation management
of hospital sewage treatment facilities, and ensure that hospital
sewage discharge meets standards. At the same time, through regular
personnel training, we have improved the environmental awareness
of employees and effectively protect the surrounding ecological
environment.

The Group conducts the sewage treatment according to the principle
of “separation of clean water and sewage, and sewage treatment
according to different water quality and classifications”, establishes
and improves a drainage network diagram, prohibits any direct
discharge of sewage into surface water bodies, and ensures the
compliance discharge of medical wasteswater. At the same time,
when selecting the site for the construction of the project, the Group
has applied for a sewage discharge certificate in accordance with the
actual situation and local environmental protection requirements, and
sewage discharge met the requirements of the building layout.

We insist on inspecting and investigating hospital sewage treatment
safety hazards in an long-term and uninterrupted manner from the
perspectives of system, process, posts, personnel and equipment to
rectify existing problems once identified, and to reasonably adjust
the daily disinfection frequency. The Group signs agreements with
qualified third-party professional testing institutions to conduct
sewage pollutant testing at least on a quarterly basis, for the sake
of ensuring the compliance discharge of sewage and reducing the
impact on the environment.

EKEERE (W)

Sewage Discharge (tonne)

3,571 3,721

2,489

2021 2022 2023

ERBRII=F)5KEENE

Yonghe Medical’s Sewage Discharge in the Last Three Years
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4.1.2Medical wastes management

In terms of medical wastes treatment, Yonghe Medical strictly
standardizes and manages medical wastes and maintains people’s
health in strict accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste, Regulations on the Management of Medical wastes and
Classification Catalogue of Medical wastes (2022 Edition). We have
strictly implemented the System and Standards for the Management
of Medical Wastes, and formulated Medical wastes Treatment Plan.

Yonghe Medical attaches great importance to the treatment
of medical wastes, sets up a medical wasteswater and waste
management team, clarifies job responsibilities, and regularly
organizes wastewater and waste testing. Yonghe Medical entrusts a
qualified third-party institution to carry out recycling, and carries out
potential hazards identification, such as medical wastes classification,
collection, and transfer of the Group every month. The responsibilities
of personnel for emergency plan and the responsibility system of
dedicated personnel in hospital infection management are clarified,
and all medical employees grasps the detailed rules of the content.
Yonghe Medical carries out an emergency drill for medical wastes
emergencies every quarter to improve treatment efficiency and clarify
the treatment process. Yonghe Medical provides medical wastes
classification management training for medical employees from time
to time. Plastic infusion bottles are recycled as per recyclable garbage,
so as to enhance the reuse efficiency of wastes. Infectious wastes and
damaging wastes are strictly classified.

Medical wasteswater: Yonghe Medical selects equipment and facilities
that meet national standards, and assigns special personnel to be
responsible for the maintenance and dosing of sewage equipment,
and makes registration records. Self-inspection is conducted twice a
day and monthly and quarterly testing is conducted by three parties
to ensure that wastewater is discharged in compliance.

Medical wastes: Medical wastes are centrally stored in a centralized
manner in the medical wastes room, which meets the environmental
requirements, so as to prevent the leakage of medical wastes. Medical
wastes are centrally transported within 48 hours according to the
regulations.

In terms of medical wastes, we have set up a special medical wastes
room, with a reasonable layout, where daily inspections by dedicated
personnel, timely cleaning, and monthly self-inspection are made, to
ensure that medical wastes are transported in a timely manner, and
they are treated in compliance and harmlessly, so as to ensure that no
waste gas is generated in the follow-up operation process.
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4.1.3 Office waste management

Embracing the principle of “reduction, recycling and harmless
treatment”, the Group reduces the use of disposable products such
as paper and paper cups, and enhances the recycling of plastic bottles
and packaging materials. According to the principle of garbage
classification, we separately recycles harmful wastes such as batteries,
toner cartridges and ink cartridges, and classifies tea residues, coffee
grounds and leftovers into kitchen waste, and metal office supplies
such as folders, staplers and scissors into the recycling waste.

During the reporting period, 23.45 tonnes of packaging materials
were recycled.

4.2 Low-carbon and Green Operation
4.2.1 Green buildings

Yonghe Medical is committed to creating a comfortable and healthy
working and medical environment for both employees and patients.
At the time of selecting workplace, the Group gives priority to the
workplace with green building certification, to provide healthy,
comfortable, safe, low-energy-consuming building spaces for
employees and patients. At the same time, it can minimize the adverse
impact on the environment during the life cycle of the building and
achieve the harmonious coexistence between humanity and nature to
the maximum extent. In terms of office renovation, all office furniture
is used in accordance with the green building materials standard, and
green decoration materials are used to avoid environmental pollution
as much as possible; when the new office area is revamped, full
advantage is taken of the old one, the generation of construction
waste is reduced as much as possible, and waste is classified and
recycled for treatment; at the same time, energy-saving equipment
and lighting systems are used as much as possible in the new office
area, and high-efficiency heat preservation materials are used in order
to reduce energy consumption.
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4.2.2 Green office

Yonghe Medical adheres to the concept of sustainable development,
and insists on green values throughout all operations to reduce the
impact on the environment. We focus on creating a green office,
issuing 5S benchmarks for office environment and office order,
posting energy-saving slogans in the office area, encouraging
employees to save electricity and water, regulating waste disposal,
continuously improving energy efficiency in diagnosis and treatment
as well as daily office work, using energy-saving devices such as LED
lamps and encouraging resource saving and waste reduction. At
the same time, the Group actively carries out employee training on
water and electricity saving, and enhances all staff's awareness of
saving and environmental protection through the publicity of green
office. Meanwhile, the Group actively carries out water and electricity
saving training for its employees, and through green office publicity,
enhances the awareness of saving and environmental protection
among all staff and reduces greenhouse gas emissions.

Case: Energy-saving measures

o Strengthening the daily management, maintenance and
monitoring of water and electricity equipment, limiting the
consumption of water, electricity, oil, office supplies and other
resources, and enhancing the reuse of resources.

o Putting up eye-catching signs such as “Save Water” and
“Save Electricity” to call for saving water and electricity and
strengthening the energy-saving awareness of employees and
patients.

o The temperature of the office air conditioner is set to 26 degrees
Celsius, and the doors and windows should be properly closed
before the use of the air conditioner.

o Separate sorting and storage of office waste as per recyclable
waste and other waste.

o With paperless office policy implemented, all documents need to
choose double-sided printing and each piece of paper needs to
be rationally used, to reduce the waste of paper and the use of
toner cartridges.

o In the procurement of office supplies, preference is given to
office supplies that are environmentally friendly, energy-efficient
and made of renewable materials, and supply chain partners are
encouraged to actively participate in green procurement as well.
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o With green travel advocated, employees are encouraged to
travel green through the Group's shuttle bus, public transport,
carpooling, and other means.

o Disposables are used as needed to reduce waste of resources

and environmental pollution.

o Enhancing the recycling of water resources,

improving the

MAE  BERABKEBERE 215 utilisation of water resources, controlling the number of times
RAAEEKES.  BPREKER - official vehicles are washed, and promoting the use of containers
to catch water for cleaning vehicles, so as to reduce the waste
of water resources.
BERFEREN Resource Utilization Performance
ERBE Resource Type By Units 2023 2022 2021
i Gasoline H L 10,950 18,499 6,974
FINEE T Net outsourced electricity THB KWh 19,120,049 15,310,967.16 12,895,423.08
ﬁéﬁl\@%*ﬂj} Net outsourced heat B3 GJ 13,684.29 9,356.15 10,176.79
FAEREEAE  Total consumption of comprehensive RN tce 2,828.65 2,221.04 1,939.65
energy
GARREETE  Density of comprehensive energy WAIZHE /B tce/RMB 10,000 0.0159 0.0157 0.0089
consumption income
THt M%m% Municipal water consumption i tonne (t) 125,135 109,170.49 118,531.38
RARKER Density of comprehensive water W/ BB A /RMB 10,000 0.70 0.77 0.55
consumption income
BEMMEERBE  Total consumption of packaging 4 t 69.75 62.88 40.37
materials
BEYHEHERZE  Density of packaging materials TR,/ &87x4WA  tRMB 10,000 0.39 0.44 0.19
income
EEaE Notes:
1. RPGEEREBRRBUGAERTERR 1. The comprehensive energy data in the table are calculated according to

(GB/T 2589-2020)) st & 15 H

2. RIYEERRBERERE (FHE)BNUE

EWAFTES

H oo

the General Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption
(GB/T 2589-2020);

(emissions) by the operating income;

The density data in the table are calculated by dividing the usage
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4.3 Response to climate change

4.3.1 Support the “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”

goals

EREESEERELERR [ ER]BE & The Group attaches great importance to responding to the national
fﬁﬂEgﬁﬂJ@*‘ﬂ: BB EE B R AR IR goals of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” and actively tackles

AR EIBETES @ WAEBRIPHERF climate change. We incorporate the combination of carbon reduction
EITER ﬂa#?&jﬁlﬁ,ﬂg;ﬁ R HEE IR targets and climate risk management into the performance evaluation
BE ﬂqﬁ/\/-ﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁfﬁxﬁ’]ﬁ}m 1M of business departments, and establish a special greenhouse gas
%%)Jﬂ@ﬁﬁﬂlnﬂg EHETE - HRE reduction management budget for the implementation of greenhouse
rrrrrrr LR B A AT £ @%«%J—L g N imE Y gas reduction plans. We continue to strengthen our awareness and
BEHGEEREE  THREADEAFES action on climate change management, incorporate climate change

Bee ) A K BENERIEES risks into the Group’s business risks, and constantly improve the

ijo
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sustainability of the Group through practical green and low-carbon
practices, so as to contribute to the realization of the “carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality” goals.

4.3.2 Climate risk management

SBBER Through industry-level benchmarking analysis, the Group has

B 5 preliminarily prepared a list of climate risks from the perspectives
of the Group’s daily operation, business development, financial
management and others, combined with its own development

strategy:
YD BB
Physical Risk
Fom_EFA FR FAREBHERE M RERUAERAERISE m I RE GG BINEEK

Rising temperature

B R R EIART S
Increased occurrence frequency
of extreme weather events

K mBRRROETEES TRE

Rising temperature can cause the Group to increase energy consumption for keeping
medical drugs at the required temperature, thereby leading to an increase in operating
costs; the higher temperatures can also have an negative impact on the health of
employees.

B R RS BELEE N  WNFMER - MAEEHRESHNHRA

Extreme weather can affect operation continuity, increase surgical risks, and increase
the Group's investment in emergencies.
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Transition risk

RIBELARFIKE

Mandatory disclosure of
environmental information

BILRERAERE

Optimization of energy structure
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The “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality” goals speed up the regulatory
requirements for environmental information disclosure. In the future, sustainable
information such as greenhouse gas emission data is likely to be included in the
mandatory disclosure mechanism. The Group shall consider conducting carbon
inventory, doing a good job in carbon data accounting and disclosure, and planning for
carbon neutrality path.

BRERBZEABRAGENLD  SEFTRAESETRREASRSCEAR - EBE
RREENERERE  BRFRES

The widespread use of clean energy can lead to an increase in the proportion of
green electricity. The Group needs to invest for transformation and upgrading of the
energy system by purchasing more environmentally-friendly and energy-saving medical
equipment and preferring clean electricity.
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By identifying climate change risks, Yonghe Medical has had a full
understanding of the impact that climate change may have on us. We
will mitigate the impact of climate change on the Group from both
adaptation and mitigation.

Adaptation:

The Group has strengthened the monitoring of extreme weather,
conducted regular inspection in daily operations, and provided backup
equipment to ensure the normal operation of medical devices in case
of an emergency. In addition, we have established an emergency
response team and formulated corresponding contingency plans so as
to minimize the damages in a timely manner.

Mitigation:

The Group optimizes energy management by continuously decreasing

B RSERME - RAKEREZEAAT
BTHEMBEGZT  BEBITHOER - B
FEER DR EEEBAGRERZSE N
MAORPIEEEENEERE -

the use of energy resources, and increasing efficiency. We have
incorporated energy control into the employee performance evaluation
to cultivate employees’ conservation consciousness. At the time of
choosing office locations, we have prioritized green energy-saving
buildings to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from our operations.
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5. WORK TOGETHER FOR COMMON
DEVELOPMENT BY ASSUMING
RESPONSIBILITY

With mutual help and love, we work together warmly. Yonghe
Medical is committed to combining hair health and public welfare
organically in an innovative way, and actively undertaking social
responsibility and contributing social value with the help of
professional advantages. Through practical action, we interpret the
voluntary spirit of “dedication, friendship, mutual help and progress”.

This chapter corresponds to the following SDGs.

NO IERD 1 1 SUSTAINABLE CITIES
POVERTY HUNGER AND COMMUNITIES

abde

5.1.1 “Make Beauty Grow with Hair Care - Hair Forest
Community Program”

MAT

In March 2023, the “Hair Forest Community Program” with a slogan
of “"Make Beauty Grow with Hair Care” was officially launched by
Yonghe Hair Transplant and Xinhuanet, which is the practice of
“public welfare” mentioned four times in the report of the 20th
National Congress of the Communist Party of China. This program
focuses on hair health, and by launching green public welfare and
national assistance activities, it assumes social responsibility and
creates social value.

Through this program, we will provide free assistance to 100 frontline
workers (five occupational groups: firefighters, teachers, soldiers/
armed police, police officers, and healthcare workers) who have hair
medical needs or hair loss or scalp scars due to injuries, disasters,
or causes, so that their dedication can be responded to, they can
be treated for their hair health, and they can be provided with
solutions to their hair problems, so that goodwill can be rooted in
everyone's hearts and souls, inspiring more people to assume social
responsibilities with courage, and fostering a spirit of mutual support
and assistance in the whole society.
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Mr. ZHANG Yu, Chairman, Executive Director and CEO of
Yonghe Medical:

Public welfare is a gene rooted deep in the heart of Yonghe Medical,
which passes on love and goodwill through actively carrying out social
welfare, helping the needy patients physically and psychologically to
make more beauty grow with hair care.

Mr. LI Jianxin, Chief of Yongxiang under Yonghe Hair
Transplant:

Each surgery at Yonghe is not a simple repetition. Instead, each
surgical programme is carefully designed and in strict line with
the unified norms of surgical operation. There has always been
“guardians” silently guarding our good life. This time we guard their
hair health in return, making beauty grow with hair care.

As of now, 32 frontline workers had completed surgeries at Yonghe
Hair Transplant.
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5.1.2 “Hair Forest ¢ Earth Hair Growth Programme”

In July 2023, Yonghe Medical, together with Xinhuanet and China Green
Foundation, officially launched the “Hair Forest — Earth Hair Growth
Programme” in Beijing. In the programme, Yonghe Medical is expected to plant
about 100,000 trees in the western region of China. In the future, through the
public welfare project, the “Forest Planting Action along the Desert Frontier”
will be carried out comprehensively. Starting from 2023, for every patient
who receives hair transplant surgery at Yonghe Hair Transplant, Yonghe Hair
Transplant will donate and plant windbreak and sand-fixing trees in the name
of the patient to the seriously sandy areas in western China, and build a border-
locking forest belt, effectively curbing the expansion of the desert, slowing down
land sanding, replenishing the “hairline” of the earth, and more importantly,
making due contributions to fight against global climate change.

Apart from improving the environment, the “Hair Forest e Earth
Hair Growth Programme” will also help to heal the psychology of
the participants. Tree planting not only links hair growth with tree
growth, but also connects hair growth with public welfare activities,
so that patients can continue to pay attention to and participate in
public welfare, planting a seed of public welfare in the hearts of the
public, and letting the power of beauty continue to grow in the heart.

By the end of 2023, the “Hair Forest e Earth Hair Growth Programme”
had planted 60,000 trees and restored more than 1,020,100 square
metres of desertified land in Dongfeng Town, Ejina Banner, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region.

The “Hair Forest” series of public welfare programmes led by Yonghe
Hair Transplant create the public welfare power of “hair transplant +
tree planting”, through which we are committed to long-term public
welfare, so that public welfare activities resonate in the hearts and
minds of people and make beauty rooted in everyone’s hearts. From
advocating public welfare to working together for public welfare,
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Yonghe Medical is committed to making public welfare change
people’s cognition and social atmosphere so that public welfare
activities can have a longer-term and wider impact in people’s hearts.
In the future, Yonghe Medical will continue to uphold the mission of
“make beauty grow with hair care”, continue to give full play to its
own advantages, actively participate in public welfare undertakings,
assume social responsibility, keep more people in need warm with
love and responsibility, contribute to the harmonious development
of the society, protect a better life, and work together for creating a
better home.

o “Hair Forest Community Programme” won the 2023 Public
Welfare Enterprising Award at the 4th Southern Weekend 2023
Dream Builders Public Welfare Conference.

o Thanks to the public welfare project of “Hair Forest e Earth Hair
Growth Programme”, Yonghe Medical became the first batch
of enterprises joining the “Global Trillion Tree Planting Leaders
Initiative — China Action”.

o Yonghe Medical’s “Hair Forest Community Programme” was
selected as one of the 2023 corporate ESG outstanding social
responsibility practice cases.
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ESG E1Z EEH WEEE
ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
BEA1: BB

Aspect A1: Emissions

—RE BRBERIMOEERE2HM - FKRLHOES - BFER
mEBFRVINEESH
B R

BTHBETABERZENHEEERZ RO ER -
Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste:

General Disclosure

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulation that have
a significant impact on the issuer

AR EMIEZEAL
KPI A1.1

eI RARB PRI -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

HREMERAL2 Bk (8E) RERMEE (BE2) REREHNE (AN
SRR (ER) BE (USEEBEN - 8AREAE)

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

BRENIEEALS FRESXEEEEYEE (LAEEHE)
BESBN - BERETE) -
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

& (WsEm ) ZE (A

KPI A1.3

BRERIEEALL FEARZEEYRE (EFE)
SEBEN - SEREHE) -
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

K (an@Em) = (A

KPI A1.4

BREMRIEZRALS AL PRSI BEE B IR R RERE L
B e

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

RFTERERH 25

KPI A1.5

BRENIEEALG HWlEEREEREZSEEYMN L - MIEMATR] S8R R

B R AEDEL B IR SR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set

and steps taken to achieve them.

KPI A1.6

R 5B

E?
anp
WAy
1°r>¢
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4.1

4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction

1 ENBERE )5 R HE
4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction
4.1 80 BerE TR BE
4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction

4.1 SR REpE S R BE
4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction

41 ERRERR IS IR
4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction

41 ERBEFE IS IR BE

4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction

1EnBERE mm
4.21&6}‘@@
4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction
4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation
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Index description

WEEEH
Disclosure chapters

BEA2 : ERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

—RIKE

General Disclosure

AR EMIEZEA2.1

KPI A2.1
AR EMIEIZEA2.2
KPI A2.2
AR EMIEEA2.3
KPI A2.3
AR ENIEEA2.4
KPI A2.4

AR EMIEZEA2.5

KPI A2.5

BHEA3 :  RERXAER
Aspect A3: The Environment
and Natural Resources

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B RENIERA3

KPI A3.1

BRERER (BIEER « KREARERME) ABCER -
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BB SNERE R REEER (NE -
EUTETERAE) RER (WASEEEN - AR

Mozt &) -

Fshm) @

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BEKERER (WABEESE

i - FIEREE) °
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

R FTRT SR BEIRIE A e B 1R M A BIIE L B AR T ERER

BB o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

i g SKEE A /KR £ 7] A (] R

VA K PR

@A RLREDEL B ZRIE TR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)

set and steps taken to achieve

them.

513 AR

R mAIAREMBNEE (CAMETE) & (WER) 84

EER(ER -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

MREITAHBRRERRAERERKERATZENBOR -
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources

MO EBEDHREIRAERNEATE

BERTZENTEY -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.

MERRER

A2BI G EESE
4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

42{RIER BB E

4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

ARG BESE
4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

42{RIRER BB E

4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

4 2{RIRER BB E

4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

42{RIRER BB E

4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

A2 EES
4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation

4.1 ETBERE )Rk

4 2EAEEIER

4.1 Energy conservation and
emission reduction

4.2 Low-carbon and Green
Operation
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Index description

WEEEH
Disclosure chapters

BEAL : RIZE
Aspect A4: Climate Change

—RIKE

General Disclosure

FAREMIEZEALA

KPI A4.1

BRERZEIESR
Employment and labour
practices

EEB1 : EfE
Aspect B1 : Employment
—MRIEE

General Disclosure

AR EMIEEBA

KPI B1.1

BRENE
KPI B1.2

ZB1.2

uaﬁzEIJ&J'&‘aéTE%“ BIEE
FEERBR
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

SHBRTAELZENEARIKA

B RSB TAEETENEARIGEESE
=N &[‘Eﬁﬂiﬁ

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

ERFHLRE  BRERE TERE - RY - T5#
g Zle - RERAREMFBREHN

B R

BTHBETABERTZENEERKIROIRER -
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

MR EEER (2B FRE)
HE B4R 8L -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for
example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical
region.

FicBR RinRE D

=M FRERN KRB S HEERKLE -
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

A 3B RIRE(L

4.3 Adaptation to climate
change

A 3B RIRE(L

4.3 Adaptation to climate
change

3IREE T

3.1 Protecting rights and
interests of employees

3REB THE

3.1 Protecting rights and
interests of employees

BNREE TR
3.1 Protecting rights and
interests of employees
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Index description

WEEEH
Disclosure chapters

[EEB2 : BREEZZ
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

—RIKE

General Disclosure

BB EMIEEB2.1
KPI B2.1

RS EMIEEB2.2
KPI B2.2

AR EMIEEB2.3

KPI B2.3

fEMEB3 : BEREI
Aspect B3: Development and
Training

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B A IS B3.1

KPI B3.1

)

ol

ARHEZE2THERERREREHCBELEEN

BTHETARBERZENERERZLADINER
Relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

BE=F (BRERFE) EFRATITHRNOABRRLE -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in

each of the past three years including the reporting year.

EAITEEARTIIERE -
Lost days due to work injury.

MMM BERERELZ 2 - URBERTRER
TIE

Description of occupational health and safety measures

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BRRTEERIT LIFRE MBI BUR - fatss
FlaEE -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

RURIREEHER (WERERE  PREEE) BDNHR
JEEBEDL -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

33 TS DRE

3.3 Protection of physical and
mental health

33FEF ORE
3.3 Protection of physical and
mental health

33THEE DRE
3.3 Protection of physical and
mental health

33 TS DR

3.3 Protection of physical and
mental health

32MTEINE

3.2 Keeping an eye on
employee growth

32T EINE

3.2 Keeping an eye on
employee growth
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
BRENIEEB3.2 RUERILEBERIE D  BREETKZINFERE - 32BTEIKRE

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 3.2 Keeping an eye on

fEEB4 : 8 %8|
Aspect B4: Labor Standards

—RIKE

General Disclosure

AR EMIEEBAA
KPI B4.1

BRENIEEB4.2
KPI B4.2

EEES
Operating Practices

fEmBs : HEEERE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain
Management

—RIFE

General Disclosure
B & MIEEBS.1
KPI B5.1

B ISR B5.2

KPI B5.2

gender and employee category.

B EE T o bIgs Tr)

B R

B THETABEAZENERERNRIINER -

Relating to preventing child and forced labour:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer

fRt s RIS B G AR R E T RORHIS T -
Description of measures to review employment practices

to avoid child and forced labour.

MR EHRER BN ERBRIEAMERN TSR -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

ERHERNRE I SRBBE -

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of

the supply chain.

iR E S HHEREAE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

R BRI A EERNED - MENITERENHERS

2H - AREEAITRERTA

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

employee growth

3REE T

3.1 Protecting rights and
interests of employees

BRIEE TR
3.1 Protecting rights and
interests of employees

3IREE TR

3.1 Protecting rights and
interests of employees

2 3R MR
2.3 Sustainable supply chain

2 3R IR
2.3 Sustainable supply chain

23T B EE

2.3 Sustainable supply chain
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters

BRENISEBS.3 A HR M EREERONRR R SRRNIED - 237 FEfERE
ARAERIT REER 0% -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 2.3 Sustainable supply chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

B E IS EB5.4 HAERERERRREZARREDRREHEN - LU 237 FEHER
NABEIT R ER % -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 2.3 Sustainable supply chain

[EEB6 : EMEE
Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility

—RIKE

General Disclosure

B A 515 B6.1

KPI B6.1

B EMIE15B6.2
KPI B6.2

BN 51586.3
KPI B6.3

preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

BRMEHERTREHREERZE BE  REIEL

EENMERITER

B R

B THETABEAZENEBERNRIINER -
Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer

EEXDEXEMBBETAR2EEFEEAMAR KNG

73R nC

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

BEREENE R RIRBHRFEE A REHHE -
Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with

Tt 4 7 R ARPE AN EE A AV 1B 1
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

1AREBEEELZ S
213 B EBIR
22BITEELHE

1.4 Medical safety protection
2.1 Grounded in high-quality
service

2.2 Practicing responsible
marketing

TAREEERRZ R

1.4 Medical safety protection

2,13 R =R
2.1 Grounded in high-quality
service

2. ABFERE) B R
2.4 Innovation-driven
development
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B ENIE15B6.4 Fi i 2 A T AR SR E m B R e TAREBEERZ D

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 1.4 Medical safety protection
procedures.

BRENIEEB6.5 MU B EERRERBLBER - UARBEBARTRERT 21 EHRS
)74

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 2.1 Grounded in high-quality

[BEB7 : RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

—RIKE

General Disclosure

BB EMIEEBT.1

KPI B7.1

BRENE
KPI B7.2

ZB7.2

BRENE
KPI B7.3

ZB7.3

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BRI MRS - $1R - BGFRERER

B R

BTHETABERZENERERZLADINER
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering:

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

%Eﬁ%W%%ﬁAiﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁE% B E TR
eV BB MERaA S

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

R S R B WIRT - ARBARITRERGE -
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

fHitmES R ETRENRESEI
Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

service

1/\%/%%« AA,’—*@
130 ESE 51

1.1 Compliant operation
management

1.3 Preventing and combating
corruption

1.30PAES B

1.3 Preventing and combating
corruption

130885 /EHK
1.3 Preventing and combating
corruption

13R85 /EK
1.3 Preventing and combating
corruption
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HE

Community

[EEB8 : HEBIRE
Aspect B8: Community
Investment

—RIKE

General Disclosure

BB & MIEZEBS.1

KPI B8.1

AR E MIEIEBS.2

KPI B8.2

BRAMR2ERTREEMEHERTENBRLERE
BeE B E NS BR

s
o

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

HIEREE (WHE

ft-87)-

RREH

BTIER - 25 - X

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,

sport).

ERIHBMEHAER (MERLRHE)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus

area.

SR BB EEE BT HA
B

5 Work Together for Common
Development by Assuming
Responsibility

5 Work Together for Common
Development by Assuming
Responsibility

5 Work Together for Common
Development by Assuming
Responsibility
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yonghe Medical Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 179 to 297, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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EROER

RPEREES R T A EAN(EEE
SRR ((BBBER D)) BB - B
PItE R SRR TREN B B EARS [
AR B A G REAEN BT B9
Fh{E — SR o

BPEE - RPMESHERBERETRER
EEHRRANBAERRHER -

B

BEESSHMASEMH(EES A
BESFA(ATEREI=FAL) MBI
B EBEE YERITTAFMNEMEREE

mEE-

FARETSE

BREFFEERERMNFEHE - B2
UARHEHVBRERNETIREENS
B seFHAEERMEARESHUBR
REEABRRETREN - RATSHE
LERREEENER -

HPESEATRANNERBITFEEERE
REEENYE - WFE LREHRERY

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit is related to Impairment
assessment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment.



HEEEE
Key Audit Matter

ERREERNE  BERREHRETG
Impairment assessment of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment

F2HEHPBmERMTEL -8 16 K17 ¢
Refer to Notes 4, 8, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

M2023F 124310 - E£ERBAREHAER
ARB2EETNERAREERFEARERA
REC19ORBTHME - BELXE (WX B
EREE]) - BE2023F12 831 B L FERER
WREEERARBI3EET °
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
right-of-use assets with total carrying amount
of RMB872 million and property, plant and
equipment (“PP&E") with total carrying amount
of RMB619 million. An impairment loss of
RMB13 million was recgonised during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

EREDETESERNE F&%%/F‘ﬁ)&:ﬁ*ﬂ
B EEER - BEENS WS HARER R 5
W PIERIRIE - J«XE%J%)?‘J%@%E@EJF%?&Q
TNEERBERE -

Management has determined that each
individual clinic/store is a separate CGU.
Management reviews the performance of
individual clinic/store at the end of each
reporting period to identify if there is any
indication that assets may be impaired.

FEHAERENRE  SEECEFIINBHES
KB RABERBE ([EREE]) RAKRE—
BEME PIUSEEEENAR  HERES
R - BB REEH P E S RETRER
flf o

Where indicators of impairment are identified,
management has engaged an external
valuation expert to assist in performing
impairment assessment on the recoverable
amount of the right-of-use assets and PP&E
using value in use model (“VIU") which is
determined on a clinic-by-clinic/store-by-store
basis..
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BN ES AR EEEEEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BT T A TR EF RS REREFA ¢

We have performed the following procedures to address this key audit

matter:

() FHEMTHETEEEEHRBEEBE#E PMEESLERERR
FGEEIRSRETE M ANIEE - WiBBE RN G T EEENRZEM
E M E A R AR KE - FlanEs « BT - HERERR IR

(ii)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

FFEME R BIRE - HEAERNEE RREITE

We understood and evaluated the internal controls over the
identification of relevant clinics/stores having impairment indicators
and preparation of the cash flow forecasts and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

BMTETEREHREEARTE AR - UEKRERED
HEEENFN (WER)

We assessed management'’s identification of the CGU and the
allocation of the impairment losses to the assets of CGU, if
applicable;

&fﬁ%ﬁ E?K.H‘?
HETT T R

We evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the
external valuation expert engaged by the Group;

FRINBEEERNEXRE - BERNURTH ML

KMBBEBUSBRERE FIEAENRE  EEEHANTEE -
MBS REZRITNEERS  ABEARTRASREEINEAR
#® o BRER R R E R ARREFE

We evaluated the significant assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow forecasts, including future revenue growth rates and
future gross margins, by considering the historical performance
of these clinics/stores, budgets approved by management, market
information and lease agreements signed;
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HEEEE
Key Audit Matter

TEEEE BRI B EME PSRN EREER -
BEGENMSEEHNTRRSTEAA - ﬁﬁL
AOHFEREBESERRE PIE SRR
ANERE - RRENEERHRFHRE -

In determining the VIU of individual clinic/
store, a discounted cash flow forecast of the
remaining lease term is prepared with key
assumptions including future revenue growth
rates, future gross margins of each clinic/store
and pre-tax discount rates.

ENEEEEERAREENIDE - BFERRER

EERELNERHE G - BEF T EE
MRS AREFEENRESEER @ BMHR
REREEERYE - BELREREHTH
REETEE -
Given the right-of-use assets and PP&E
impairment assessment is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty as significant
management’s judgment and estimates are
involved and the significance of the carrying
amounts of these assets, we considered
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets
and PP&E as a key audit matter.

BN ES AR EEEEEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(v)

(v)

(vii)

(vii)

(viii)

(viii)

R R - PR

BMENBEEEROF T  FHEEREERENETENEE N
NRERETRIReRETRAMAKRT AT RENGIEN

We involved our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the methodology adopted in the impairment
assessment and the reasonableness of the pre-tax discount rate
used in the preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts;

HfIRE TEREEAETBENER
We checked the mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

BMFIHEREETEAN L FERJEEXZENFRESIT - AE
—HEMANEHEEBEREEELYE  BERRKBREBEZ
HIRE

We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed by management
with potential impacts on the above key assumptions to further
understand the extent to which adverse changes would result in
changes of impairment loss of right-of-use assets and PP&E;

BMFIEERERAREERDE BB IEBREMGNRELR
R mERERNFTDME -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to impairment
assessment of the right-of-use assets and PP&E in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework.

REREBEEREEENRDE BB RREREFG

o P R B 2 BT A R R P B P S YRR AT TRV AR P T A S

Based on the above, we considered that management'’s

judgments

and assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of the right-of-
use assets and PP&E were supportable by the evidence obtained and
procedures performed.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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2 B B B S S O B IS 3R
RAEENEME

BMWBER  RYAHUMBHRREBIEST
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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HARBIZEMBSHETEESRAR The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

HHEFD auditor’s report is Tong, Benny Ho Bong.
EERKBETMERAR PricewaterhouseCoopers
BEEA Certified Public Accountants

&% 0 20243 A28H Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224
2023 2022
B &E ARBT T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RERFAHBRA Revenue from contracts with customers 6 1,777,258 1,412,791
HE X RIEA A Cost of sales and services 9 (780,072) (540,212)
EF Gross profit 997,186 872,579
HEREHEAE Selling and marketing expenses 9 (1,044,373) (766,783)
—MRITHAX General and administrative expenses 9 (374,319) (257,529)
R Research and development expenses 9 (29,279) (18,495)
SREERBEEBRE Impairment losses on financial assets 3.1(c) (257) (138)
E U A Other income 7 2,115 9,687
HibEiE — 558 Other losses — net 8 (82,823) (942)
REEE Operating loss (531,750) (161,621)
EARSUA Finance income 11 12,701 103,382
EARSRAR Finance costs 11 (66,170) (51,227)
B (BAR), WA — S35 Finance (costs)/income — net 11 (53,469) 52,155
BrRETB L AIE B Loss before income tax (585,219) (109,466)
FriSHiE % Income tax credit 13 38,535 23,608
FREER Loss for the year (546,684) (85,858)
BEBBRN : Loss is attributable to:
— ARAERFFEA — Equity holders of the Company (546,394) (85,858)
— IR - Non-controlling interests (290) =
Hith 2 HEEE Other comprehensive loss
Higr e A E B EA Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
B EEE Currency translation differences (48) (144)
FAZHEEBLE Total comprehensive loss for the year (546,732) (86,002)
FREHBHELERER : Total comprehensive loss for the year
is attributable to:
— ARAEREEA — Equity holders of the Company (546,442) (86,002)
— IEVERR R - Non-controlling interests (290) -
KATEBRFEAEBEERES Loss per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company
SHlREREE (ARET) Basic loss per share (RMB) 14 (1.08) (0.16)
FiEEEE (ARET) Diluted loss per share (RMB) 14 (1.08) (0.16)

VA By & B 22 T Wi 8 3R T 5 (R B I A B R —

BEBIE

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

®12A31H
As at 31 December
202345 20224
2023 2022
ihg=s AR¥T T AREET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
EE Assets
kRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB REE Property, plant and equipment 16 618,551 642,296
FAEEE Right-of-use assets 17 871,789 989,235
mEE Intangible assets 18 35,163 39,678
EEFTISHI & E Deferred income tax assets 31 107,626 60,423
TERTFRIE « 1=e REMFEWRIA Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 2,106 9,258
EREBEEEE Total non-current assets 1,635,235 1,740,890
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 76,005 88,089
& 5 R WRIE Trade receivables 20 10,267 7,055
AR FIE -~ e REAEIGIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 119,839 116,301
EHTER Term deposits 23 = 412,940
BeRAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 603,215 565,093
MENEERE Total current assets 809,326 1,189,478
EERE Total assets 2,444,561 2,930,368
= Equity
AAREBRFEABLER Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
[N Share capital 25 8 8
J& A4 (B Share premium 25 1,332,287 1,332,287
TE B R EIFE ARG, Shares held for employee share scheme 27 (175,533) (79,038)
H i Other reserves 155,630 155,494
(REtEE),/RERBF (Accumulated loss)/retained earnings (369,835) 176,559
942,557 1,585,310
IR ERS Non-controlling interests (306) =
EREE Total equity 942,251 1,585,310
a& Liabilities
FkFRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 772,693 845,048
BEFESHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 31 6,716 1,502
EmEBERRE Total non-current liabilities 779,409 846,550
REAE Current liabilities
(EEN Borrowings 28 152,816 =
B 5 R EMER A Trade and other payables 29 210,873 144,118
ARAE Contract liabilities 30 182,355 154,977
EHERasE Current income tax liabilities 6,813 8,859
HEBE Lease liabilities 17 170,044 190,554
B E EAERR Total current liabilities 722,901 498,508
SERAHE Total liabilities 1,502,310 1,345,058
EEREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 2,444,561 2,930,368
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HITES  RELE
Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Yu
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EHEEEEX
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 179 to 297 were approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 28 March 2024 and were
signed on its behalf.

HITES - RIELE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Hui
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224
2023 2022
B &E ARBT T ARKEFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHMEBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BEMARS Cash used in operations 32(a) (18,741) (61,619)
2 U FI B Interest received 7,088 11,162
B ATSHR Income tax paid (5,500) (58,105)
BESEEBTARSFE Net cash used in operating activities (17,153) (108,562)
RETEBFRBEERE Cash flows from investing activities
M - BB RBERR Payments for property, plant and
equipment (159,192) (240,573)
B EEMNK Payments for intangible assets (12,123) (2,940)
s F A RIAIRER - kR Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary,
BEESMNIRS net of cash acquired (1,596) =
R R EARER =E A 8 Withdrawal of term deposits with initial
T BER terms of over three months 398,253 =
HEME - BEREZBEMEHIE Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment 3,027 1,788
B UE BATF 5ROR) B Interest received on term deposits 9,713 =
HEFRRFIERIA Proceeds from disposals of a subsidiary 7,500 =
TFAVIZ REARER=EA 8 Placement of term deposits with initial
TEHITE K terms of over three months = (408,840)
REEFBHFE(FiH) BEFE Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 245,582 (650,565)
METHMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
BERFS0E Proceeds from borrowings 154,536 75,467
EEER Repayment of borrowings (1,800) (149,640)
ERFE Interest paid (2,343) (1,605)
YNEEERE Payment of lease liabilities (239,102) (194,664)
BiE B IR A 2B A Acquisition of shares for employee
share scheme 27 (96,495) (79,038)
FITEMRFTIS IR Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares - 91,879
S EmREXE Payments of listing expenses = (32,289)
B E Dividends paid 15(a) = (43,164)
METBHTARESFE Net cash used in financing activities (185,204) (333,054)
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EHBAERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
B EE ARBT AREFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HeNBEZEYEM, Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
CRd) F8 cash equivalents 43,225 (1,092,181)
FUHeRBEED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 565,093 1,566,192
REMRSZEYNER Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and
(E518),/ Wk cash equivalents (5,103) 91,082
FRESRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 603,215 565,093
LA W& BHER € 2 2k P E (R e B A B =% — The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
PBaE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 17 September 2020 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman
KY 1-9010, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are primarily engaged in the
provision of (i) hair transplant and (ii) medical hair care services
(the "Business”) in the Mainland (“Mainland China”) of People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company had its listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 13 December 2021.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousands of RMB (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1 EENSHBEME
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SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the accounting policies adopted
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation

(i)  Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"”) as issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap. 622.

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative
literature

o Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

o Hong Kong Accounting Standards

o Interpretations developed by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

(ii)  Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.
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2 EHEME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
21 EEMEHHREBRE 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(#&) (Continued)
(a) mEBEAE (4F) (a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
(i)  AEBERABEFET R (i)  New and amended standards adopted by the
AMEETEA Group
XEBEE®HEB The Group has applied the following
2023F1 A1 B HM amendments for the first time for their annual
MFEERERENRE reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:
A TERT -

o BBV BRE HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
AR 1758

[RERE R

. G EEEE e  Definition of Accounting Estimates -
- BB amendments to HKAS 8
EAE8HE 2
1857

o [C g S o International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
ES 3 5 il Model Rules — amendments to HKAS 12
R — FE
ZEHERIE 12
SR MERT

. HE - 5E . Deferred Tax related to Assets and
ENEERE Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
f&H e — amendments to HKAS 12
MIE—BAEE
FTAERIZE 1258

Z1BET

. 2 5 BOR B e Disclosure of Accounting Policies -
B - BEgst Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
EAE1H K Practice Statement 2.
BEMBRE

HUNEBRE
F2ZABRT °
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188 HERBEEEARLT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

The new and amended standards listed above
did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods, except for certain amendments
in disclosures of deferred income tax.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2023 reporting periods and have
not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards, amendments or interpretations are
not expected to have a material impact on the
entity in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.1 (c)).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and
balance sheets respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(ii)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control, or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(ii)

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss where appropriate.

(c) Business combinations

(i)

Business combinations not under common
control

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Business combinations (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations not under common
control (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(c) Business combinations (Continued)

(i)

Business combinations not under common
control (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incrementa
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at
the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 EIBEHEE(8) 2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
21 EENEFBRBE 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(&) (Continued)
(o) ¥¥Kaot(H&E) (c) Business combinations (Continued)
(i)  HEEHTHEBE (i) Business combinations under common control
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businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities
or businesses are consolidated using the
existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to the extent
of the continuation of the controlling party's
interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive
income include the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted
by those entities. All intra-group transactions,
balances and unrealized gains on transactions
between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). Since the
majority of the assets and operations of the
Group are located in the PRC, the consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss
as finance costs. They are deferred in equity
if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)  Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (if any). Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvement and infrastructure of
safety and medical treatment, the shorter lease term,
as follows:

e Medical equipment 5 years
e Electronic equipment 3 -5 years
e Office furniture and fixtures 5 years
e Motor vehicles 4 years

e Leasehold improvement and
infrastructure of safety and
medical treatment

Shorter of remaining
lease term or
estimated useful
life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.1(g)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Software

The software represents the purchased
computer software which are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
the specific software. Based on the current
functionalities equipped by the software and
the daily operation needs, the Group considers
a useful life of 10 years is the best estimation
under current business needs. Therefore, these
costs are amortised over 10 years using the
straight-line method.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note
2.1(c). Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(f) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademark as acquired in the
business combination is recognised at its fair
value at the acquisition date. All trademarks
are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 to 11 years.
Trademarks are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (if any).
When determining the estimated useful life,
the Group considered the forecasted period
during which the trademark can bring the
incremental economic benefit to the Group and
the operating history of the trademark.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI") or through profit or loss);
and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI. For investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI”). The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 Z—ZE=-=FF

CRERRLE: S

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BEHEBE (&)

N

( ne )

piil}

ATEENEFEHRBE

(h REREBESRMEE

(&)

(ii)

(iii)

AR R AR L ERR

FRBERMENS
MEEER 5B
R—-—RHBEEAE
EFGEREERHEZ
BEZH - ENER
BEWBIREREN
RENZ 22 HREE
g MAKED K
BEHEENBAE DA
MBI HRE RN - &
BB ERIAR I HERR

i

ROV TERR - K&
EizE R EEN
(fm A FEHR A e (BB
rABEm ([RAR
BEEFABZ]®H
TRMEE) WETR
BEEREENRS
KA BEREE -
BASEER AEE
NEBEENR SN
ARIBEHE ©

EREAERAITE
TANSREENST
ERERBERXN
e RMBE - Fi
SREENBET
ERE o

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
OCl, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognized
in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented in other operating expenses. As
at 31 December 2023, no such debt instruments
existed within the Group.
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(Continued)
21 EEMEHBREBRE 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(#&) (Continued)
(h)y RERHMERMEE (h) Investments and other financial assets
(#8) (Continued)
(i) FrE (&) (i)  Measurement (Continued)
BRITA(E) Debt instruments (Continued)
BARBET AR FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
% N A K amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
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Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OClI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(h) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)  Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss and
presented within other gains/(losses) in
the statement of comprehensive income as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Notes 20 and 3.1 (c) for further
details.

207



208 ZERBEEEARALT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

B O B 15 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BEHEBE (&)

N

()

(k)

ATEENEFERRBE

(&

)
r&

FERAKAR R #3R%E
& P HEEE AR o 5K
AR EE R L EEE °
BEGFEORARAGD
MRIFTMEETE - AT#R
FERBRXBEBRETH
it S ERE T ER AR A
K17 $H & P 7 O BT AR
o

RERREEEY

HREJNRERERME -
RelREFEVERET
BRE  TREBRNF
FREHER=MEANK
AT B RERS AT 88 s s 2 AN
BERLAEEZDER
AR E A B =R
BE o

BN SR SE PR 8B

HAMEHE B RE
RIB R BDEE R A E A T
1S BT & 4 B HA FE B A Uk
AR - AR AT
CUES S T3 VSES
PRAREBIERGENELT
ISHEERBEZEH

= o

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

()

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where
the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences, tax losses and tax credits.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are
not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current income tax assets and liabilities
and where the deferred income tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(I) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

Pension obligations

The Group has only defined contribution plan in
which the Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance
plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

There were no forfeited contributions (by
employers on behalf of employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to offset existing contributions
under the defined contribution schemes.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(I) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Medical and other benefits

The Group makes monthly contributions
for medical and other benefits to the local
authorities in accordance with relevant local
regulations for the employees. The Group's
liability in respect of employee medical benefits
is limited to the contributions payable in each
period.

Housing benefits

The employees of the Group are entitled to
participate in various government-sponsored
housing funds. The Group contributes on a
monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees.
The Group's liability in respect of these funds
is limited to the contributions payable in each
period.

213



B O B 15 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BEHEBE (&)

N

(&)

pil}

ATEENEFERRBE

(n EEEF (&)

(v)

BERE T

EXAEEELFER
KB H AT LR
BE - HEREEWN
5 L e BBk LA 452 B A )
LSRN ANF AL i1
B o REER A
THH(AREER
%) HERBERAR A
(AEREETHBA
BOABRETZER
MEELQE - K(b)
EEREIBNER
BRFERE3I7RE
BRI EHE KA
B R BEBE
iy o SN E) B FREE
BREREZL - B
AR M AR AR TR B A 1
MELHMEER ABGH
B -RBESHRE
B 128 A&7 2 H
XM EATERR
& o

214 HERBEEEARALT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(I) Employee benefits (Continued)

(v)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or when
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
terminations benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to present value.
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(Continued)
21 EENEFTBRBE 2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(&) (Continued)
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Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods and services is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

o provides all the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods and
services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured based on direct
measurements of the value of individual services
transferred by the Group to the customer.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods
followed by related services, or multiple services,
the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on their relative stand-
alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices
are not directly observable, they are estimated based
on expected cost plus a margin, depending on the
availability of observable information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the balance sheets as
a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on
the relationship between the entity’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

The Group offers some discounts to the customers,
and revenue is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the discount.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment
is made or the receivable is recorded (whichever is
earlier). A contract liability is the Group's obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

A refund liability is the constructive obligation to
refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from the customer and is measured at
the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have
to return to the customer. The Group updates its
estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding
change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting period.

The following is a description of the accounting
policy for the principal revenue streams of the Group.

(i) Hair transplant

For hair transplant service, customers normally
receive treatment which contains various
treatment components (e.g. pre-surgery
medical checking, surgery treatment and post-
surgery cleaning) that are all highly relevant
and regarded as one performance obligation.
Revenue from provision of hair transplantation
services recognised at a point in time when the
services have been rendered to customers.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. Payments from customers in relation
to services not yet rendered are recorded as
contract liabilities. The Group has estimated
the refund in respect of unsatisfactory services
rendered based on the Group’s past experience
with customers and recognised as refund
liabilities. The contract liability is recognised as
revenue when the related services are rendered.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Hair transplant (Continued)

Sales of hair transplant related goods are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.

Medical hair care

The Group provides medical hair care services
in package which is accounted as multiple
elements of services. Revenue from medical
hair care services is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation. The progress towards
the complete satisfaction of performance
obligation is measured by direct measures of
the value of individual service transferred to the
customer. Normally, there is no expiry date for
the packages while majority of the customers
take up all the services in the packages within
two years.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. Payments from customers in relation
to services not yet rendered are recorded as
contract liabilities. The Group has estimated
the refund in respect of unsatisfactory services
rendered based on the Group’s past experience
with customers and recognised as refund
liabilities. The contract liability is recognised as
revenue when the related services are rendered.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Medical hair care (Continued)

Sales of goods related to medical hair care are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.

Others

The Group also provides routine hair care
services in package which is accounted as
multiple elements of services. Revenue from
routine hair care services is recognised over
the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation. The progress towards
the complete satisfaction of performance
obligation is measured by direct measures of
the value of individual service transferred to the
customer. Normally, there is no expiry date for
the packages while majority of the customers
take up all the services in the packages within
two years.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. Payments from customers in relation
to services not yet rendered are recorded as
contract liabilities. The contract liability is
recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of goods related to routine hair care are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

Leases

The Group leases buildings as lessee. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 15 years.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments (if applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Company, which does not
have recent third-party financing, and makes
adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

(o)

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following (if applicable):

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the financial
statements of the investee’'s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company assesses the
financial performance and position of the Group
and makes strategic decisions and is identified as
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM")
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segment.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and developing of new or
improved products and processes) are recognised as
intangible assets when it is probable that the project
will be a success considering its commercial and
technical feasibility and its costs can be measured
reliably. Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
when incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development cost is measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of capitalised
development cost is calculated using the straight-line
method over its expected useful life from the date
they are available for use.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for
settlement within one year and therefore all classified
as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Notes 20 and 3.1 (c) for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 2.1(h) for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Shares held for employee share scheme

Where the Company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company as treasury shares until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net
of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included
in equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Employee Share Trust of the
Company are disclosed as treasury shares and
deducted from contributed equity.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30
days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment
for liquidity services and amortized over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(k)

Share-based compensation

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees, and information relating to these schemes
is set out in Note 26.

The fair value of awarded shares granted to
employees less amount paid by employees is
recognised as an employee benefits expense over the
relevant service period, being the vesting period of
the shares, and the credit is recognised in equity in
the share-based compensation reserve. The fair value
of the shares is measured at the grant date. The
number of shares expected to vest is estimated based
on the non-market vesting conditions. The estimates
are revised at the end of each reporting period and
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss and the
share-based compensation reserve. Where shares
are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to
satisfy the service conditions, any expenses previously
recognised in relation to such shares are reversed
effective at the date of the forfeiture.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

o the profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares;

o by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.
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2 BFEHERME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2 Hit S BERBIE (&) 2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)
(k) BREF (&) (k) Earnings per share (Continued)
(i) FREEET (i) Diluted earnings per share
TN E B R P Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
REESRERZF used in the determination of basic earnings per
HEE  BAFT R ¢ share to take into account:
. BB E T o the after-income tax effect of interest
B AR AT and other financing costs associated with
BN H g & dilutive potential ordinary shares; and
B 7R B BR P 15
MEXE &
. ST o the weighted average number of
BEBELA additional ordinary shares that would have
Mg - R 21T been outstanding assuming the conversion
TSN RSN B of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
i A% b0 7 F
2 o
) RBREDIK () Dividend distribution
A B 3R 5 R B9 A% BUTE AR B Dividend distribution to the shareholders is
EERERRIES (WE recognised as a liability in the consolidated financial
B #ENFEARRE FEF statements in the year in which the dividends are
HHREANERBEE - approved by the entities’ shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Summary of other accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Government grants

(n)

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment and other non-current
assets are included in the non-current liabilities and
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are held
for cash management purposes. Any other interest
income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the Group and
approved by the executive directors.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of majority of the entities
within the Group is RMB. Most of the Group's
transactions are based and settled in RMB. Foreign
currencies are used to settle the Group’s revenue and
borrowings out of Mainland China.

RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign
currencies and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
term deposits as at 31 December 2023, denominated
in foreign currencies, mainly USD and HKD are
disclosed in Notes 23 and 24.

The management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(c)

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for cash
and cash equivalents and borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in Notes 24 and 28 respectively.

Lease liabilities expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements.

Credit risk
(i) Risk management

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily in
relation to its cash and cash equivalents as well
as trade receivables and other financial assets
at amortised cost. The carrying amount of each
class of the above financial assets represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the corresponding class of financial
assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in the PRC. There has been no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions.
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234 HERBEEEARALT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial
assets subject to expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables

. other financial assets at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was insignificant.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The expected
credit loss also incorporates forward looking
information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables, and the Group uses three
categories for other receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision
is determined for each of those categories.
These internal credit risk ratings are aligned to
external credit ratings.
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(i)

(Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

SREERME (&) (i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
B ER ARG ER A Other financial assets at amortised cost
fib & B & E (42) (Continued)
AEEEREEEE A summary of the assumptions underpinning
EAE AR BRRHRE the Group's expected credit loss model is as
I follows:
BHEERSE
W] rEBHENNESR BENEIEE MEWAWTEEE
Basis for recognition
Group definition of expected credit Basis for calculation
Category of category loss provision of interest revenue
P B — EEMEAORRE B 12EAEHEE - ME KREAHE
BEBEREENmREH ENEREFEHRTE12
REM AR BHEEEER
HEEER S -
Stage one Customers have a low 12 months expected Gross carrying amount
risk of default and a losses. Where the
strong capacity to meet expected lifetime of an
contractual cash flow asset is less than 12
months, expected credit
losses are measured at
its expected lifetime.
e — B #1557 fé@:f‘fﬂﬁ’* FEREREERR FRTE (A
FEE L hNeY) e R
Stage two Receivables for which Lifetime expected credit Gross carrying amount
there is a significant losses
increase in credit risk
since initial recognition
fEER= BYRRRRHRGEE FEHBRPEEES BHA A RREE (B
&5 18 ) FE MR IE EERE)

Receivables for which
there is credit loss since
initial recognition

Stage three

Lifetime expected credit
losses

Amortised cost carrying
amount (net of credit
allowance)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The management of the Group makes periodic
assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability based on historical
settlement records and past experience.
Forward-looking information incorporated in
the expected credit loss model. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the
key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators
are incorporated (if applicable):

° internal and external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debtor; and

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status
of debtors in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the debtor.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iii)  Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During 2023, the following losses were

BIhERESRE recognised in profit or loss in relation to
EREEER impaired financial assets:
BZE12A318LEFE
Year ended 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
ARMT T ARKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE Impairment losses
BEBENE Sk Reversal of previous impairment
KIERREEBRE losses on trade receivable 15 107
H b R UGRIE R Impairment losses on
BB 18 other receivables (272) (245)
SREERRE Net Impairment losses on financial
518 55 assets (257) (138)
REE SRR (d) Liquidity risk
REBEERFRTHIR The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and

ERBASFEY - ARXE
MEBNBRELE K&
BEREFBARNRER
ReSENERESNE
A

cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining adequate cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

RBESERE (&)

TRBEEBREHREAR
MBI B OTERERE - &
2 BE 2 B AR Bl 0 A AN &2 (3
MIENTESRARE - XF
KENSHEABHOARA

RERE °

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping
based on the remaining period at the end of each
reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

DME 122F 2856 SENE @zt REE
Between  Between

Less than 1and 2 and Over Carrying

1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARWTR AR%T:R

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R2023%12A8318 At 31 December 2023

EE Borrowings 155,267 - - - 155267 152,816

&5 RHEMEMNFIR* Trade and other payables* 125,116 - - - 125116 125,116

HEaE Lease liabilities 207,815 200,348 462,392 335110 1,205,665 942,737
488,198 200,348 462,392 335110 1,486,048 1,220,669

R20225128318 At 31 December 2022

B A REhEMTIE Trade and other payables* 69,882 - - - 69,882 69,882

REEE Lease liabilities 197,669 192,623 478835 344,540 1,213,667 1,035,602

267,551 192,623 478,835 344540 1,283,549 1,105,484

* TEEEHERRMR

f& °

ENREANFSHRA

* Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued employee
benefits and tax payable.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and support the sustainable growth of the Group
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to enhance equity holders’ value in the long
term.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total assets. The Group aims to maintain the
asset-liability ratio at a reasonable level.

R12831H

As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEN=F Total liability 1,502,310 1,345,058
BEE Total assets 2,444,561 2,930,368
EEAGBHER The liability-to-asset ratio 61.46% 45.90%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

()

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level is given below.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and equity securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. The quoted market
price already incorporates the market's assumptions
with respect to changes in economic climate such as
rising interest rates and inflation, as well as changes
due to ESG risk. These instruments are included in
level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities and for instruments where ESG risk
gives rise to a significant unobservable adjustment.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o the use of quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments

o for interest rate swaps — the present value
of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves

o for foreign currency forwards — the present
value of future cash flows based on forward
exchange rates at the reporting date

o for foreign currency options — option pricing
models (e.g. Black Scholes model), and

. for other financial instruments — discounted
cash flow analysis

The Group’s financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. The fair values are categorised as level
2 which are quoted prices available from over-the-
counter markets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimation of goodwill impairment

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the reporting periods,
the recoverable amount of cash-generating units (CGUs)
was determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated in Note 18. These
growth rates are consistent with forecasts included in
industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU
operates.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in
Note 18.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (Continued)

(b) Estimation of right-of-use assets and property,

(c)

plant and equipment impairment

As stated in Note 2.1 (g), an impairment loss is recognised
in profit and loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment which involves
judgment on the determination of their fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. The fair value less costs
of disposal is determined based on market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales or market rents of
comparable assets and the value in use is determined by
discounting projected cash flow series associated with
the assets using risk-adjusted discount rates. Any change
in the assumptions underlying these projections and fair
values would increase or decrease the recoverable amount
of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
impairment.

Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination are made.

Beijing Yonghe Medical Investment Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Yonghe"”) is qualified as “High and New
Technology Enterprises” (“HNTEs”) and is entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15%. The qualification
started from 17 December 2021 and is valid for 3 years,
and upon expiry the Company is required to submit the
application to relevant government authority to certify the
HNTEs qualification. If the Company disqualified from the
HNTEs certification, it cannot enjoy the preferential income
tax, and the change in tax rate will affect the current and
deferred income taxes in the period in which the change
takes place.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (Continued)
(c) Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to tax losses and
unused tax credits are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.
Future taxable profit includes the profit from operating
results and taxable profits of future periods reversed of
taxable temporary differences. Estimates and judgment are
required in determining the timing and amount of future
taxable profit generated. In case where the actual future
taxable profit generated are less than expected, or change
in facts and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profit estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred income tax assets may arise, which
will be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place. As of the
respective balance sheet date, the Group’s unrecognised
deferred income tax assets in respect of tax losses and tax
credits have been set out in Note 13.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the CODM. The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segment, has been identified as the board of
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of hair transplant
service which are subject to similar type of services, similar
class of customers, similar regulatory environment and similar
business risk. Resources are allocated based on what is beneficial
to the Group in enhancing the value as a whole rather than any
specific unit. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that
there is only one operating segment for the Group.

The major operating entities of the Group are all domiciled in
the PRC and major of the Group's revenue were derived in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, majority of non-current
assets of the Group were located in the PRC.

There was no revenue derived from a single external customer
accounting for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

245
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6 REFFESHHNBA

ROUP CO., LTD.

6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 & 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEER Hair transplant 1,354,191 1,030,454
BEEEE Medical hair care 388,244 362,508
EAh Others 34,823 19,829
1,777,258 1,412,791
BZ12A318LEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 & 20224
2023 2022
AR®ET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REHERNTPBA Revenue from customer and recognised at
a point time
BEBRE Hair transplant 1,354,191 1,030,454
BESE-HEE®R Medical hair care — sale of goods 70,503 40,399
B —HEER Others — sale of goods 12,283 9,173
1,436,977 1,080,026
REEREROEP KA Revenue from customer and recognised
over time
BEEE - RS Medical hair care — services 317,741 322,109
E b — BR7S Others — services 22,540 10,656
340,281 332,765
1,777,258 1,412,791
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 2022 F
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R B D HE LA Revenue from customer by region
R R A it Mainland China 1,772,438 1,403,092
BB Hong Kong 4,820 9,699
1,777,258 1,412,791
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BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224

2023 2022

ARET T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BT %5 B Government grants 1,133 7,817
AR INFT R Additional value-added tax credit 982 1,870
2,115 9,687

HtE8 — FH

8 OTHER LOSSES -

NET

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARKET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEWE - BERZEN Losses on disposal of property, plant and
E18 (st 16(a)) equipment (Note 16(a)) (59,849) (2,036)
EEARERRE (H:E18) Impairment losses of goodwill (Note 18) (14,832) =
Y - BEMZHENREREIE  Impairment losses of property, plant and
(FfEE16(b)) equipment (Note 16(b)) (13,297) =
EAREBEFABEN SR Net fair value losses on financial liabilities
BEMAABEESEFE at fair value through profit or loss (3,636) =
BE(E Compensation (1,956) =
B8R Donation (1,500) =
HEFARIMKZE() Gains on disposal of a subsidiary (a) 7,500 =
RERIEMEREFR SN Gains on early termination of property
leases 6,454 2,121
HAth Others (1,707) (1,027)
(82,823) (942)
(a) & Z=2023%F12A31HILFE - (@)  For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed

AEBNEREKEARET.S
BEBTHEETRARALEEZD
PFIZEARDR - MEANEE

W FHEARBTSEETRE
SR ER R EmEE — 38 -

Shanghai Fazhichu Outpatient Department Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group, for total cash consideration of RMB7.5 million,
resulting in a net disposal gain of RMB7.5 million recognised as
"other losses — net” in profit or loss.
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9 RMEIITMNAEX 9

FEAHERRBKA - HEREHRA
32 AR RATIRBA S PA R 2 B ST Y
FSXE—FANMT :

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and services, selling and
marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses and
research and development expenses are further analysed as
follows:

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARMT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERMAZ (H3E10) Employee benefits expenses (Note 10) 835,083 616,705
R &S HERRX Promotion and marketing related expenses 722,885 481,202
EREEEE (FEE17) Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 17) 168,337 113,177
M BERZETE Depreciation of property, plant and
(FtzE16) equipment (Note 16) 164,562 106,842
FERFEMAR Cost of inventories and consumables 123,286 94,216
KEE - HEBNMAZEMY  Utilities, maintenance fee and office
expenses 73,935 50,449
EIR R BHERX Travelling and entertainment expenses 37,865 26,641
Hi1E &M & Taxes and surcharges 29,950 29,377
Bl & Technical fee 17,767 8,963
EEHEERSME Y (MF7E17())  Rental expenses for short-term leases
(Note 17(b)) 8,894 13,465
2 e Auditors’ remuneration 3,600 4,265
— ZERTS — Audit services 2,670 3,150
— FEREARTS - Non-audit services 930 1,115
mEERE (KMi18) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 18) 1,941 4,653
HEiEx Other expenses 39,938 33,064
2,228,043 1,583,019
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10 EERAIBX

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224

2023 2022

AR¥T T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

IE& - e ki Wages, salaries and bonuses 681,404 504,234
BESKA — REHEKE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 64,629 46,689
Ht g REK AR Other social security costs 36,898 24,415
FE 2R Housing benefits 32,844 20,983
BRI REMFE Welfare and other expenses 23,721 20,200
VAR AR 7 B 0 4R (8 7 2 Share-based compensation expenses 184 184
839,680 616,705

W AR ABEE Less: capitalised as intangible assets (4,597) =
835,083 616,705

0]

AEEERASEREM T MR
i B R S B R B SRE R ARET & -
AR AT EIF LA IR TS
TRFERENEEFSNSEE
DEETE - UAREBHRKER

RHEES -

HZE2023F12A318ILFE
N6 B 3 A AT ] ER 4b 75 R T AE
ERMREHRFEEBENE R
IR (20224F = £E) -

Employees of the Group are required to participate in a
defined contribution plan administrated and operated
by the local municipal government in the PRC. The
Group contributes funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the local
municipal government to the plan to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the
year ended 31 December 2023 in connection with defined
contribution plan operated by local governments (2022:
Nil).
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10 BERFIBX ()

(iy HEESFMAL

B ZE2023F12A31BILEE -
rEEBAMESESMNABALE
FE—% (2022 —R)&E%F -
HE & RK 35 R D TR
RBR o FA2023F FEMTH#HINE
(2022%F : @) AT wBie

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(Continued)

(i)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 include
one (2022: one) director whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis shown in Note 35. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four individuals during 2023 (2022: four)
are as follows:

T~
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE & 14 & Wages, salaries, bonuses, housing
NEEFEMEE R funds and other employees benefits 5,728 5,695
BEESRA — REHKETE]  Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 184 175
AR D AR A mEER Share-based compensation expenses 12 12
5,924 5,882

ZOBRATOMENRIATE

The emoluments of the four individuals fell within the
following bands:

:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AE AE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
B #E : Emoluments bands:
1,000,001 7C£ 1,500,000 7t  HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 7C£2,000,000%8 7t  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3 2
2,000,001 7c22,500,000/ 7t  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
4 4

R|EHA - BEEEKAER
SE AN =R =g Ea ]
& 0 EAIASRIE A KL B 5
SRR AN B /Y SREN S E A RE R
fHE (20224 « &) -

During the reporting period, no director or the five highest
paid individuals received any emolument from the Group
as an inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).
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BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB A Finance income
AT ARSI Interest income on bank deposits 12,701 15,262
HINEE U 2 Foreign exchange gains = 88,120
12,701 103,382
B 3% B A Finance costs
HESBENBMAX Interest expenses on lease liabilities (51,741) (49,622)
HINE &5 18 Foreign exchange losses (12,006) =
RITIERFERX Interest expenses on bank borrowings (2,423) (1,605)
(66,170) (51,227)
B (RA), WA — BEE Finance (costs)/income — net (53,469) 52,155

F AT

AEER2023F12A31THHNEZ TR
AIE TN T o BRBIEFRBAI -
TRE MR AAE R E @A A
AEBEEERE  MAKBEMEES
R L O T BT REIR MR o

12 SUBSIDIARIES

ZE

Ridzs

the voting rights held by the Group.

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals

BiER ERALBHREALR IEXBRAEHE BEARAHE AREFREERRERLA
Proportion of interest and
Place of incorporation and Principle activities and Particulars of issued voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation share capital by the Group
(AR®TR)  2083%F  200F
(RMB'000) 2023 2022
ERER
Directly Owned

Yonghe Management Consulting Co. Ltd.
Yonghe Management Consulting Co. Ltd.

BEEE

Indirectly Owned

PrEBRMERRAR (L RERR])

Beijing Haiyouyou Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Haiyouyou")*

TRER
Beijing Yonghe*

RERLHE ARAAAT
The BVI, limited liability company

hE N EBALR

The PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprise

hE - BRELAA
The PRC, limited liability company

ERBRABBEEHNRY
Consulting in the BVI

EPERREEREREEEH
Investment and management in
the PRC

EPERREEREREREH
Investment and management in
the PRC

IRERR 1£7T
1 ordinary share, USD1

711,765

442,857

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%
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12 727 (&) 12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
RR4R ERRIBEREAER TEXBRAEHE BRRAHE AREFBERRRTELH
Proportion of interest and
Place of incorporation and Principle activities and Particulars of issued ~ voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation share capital by the Group

(AR®TT) WBE 0025
(RMB'000) 2023 2022

IR EERENRERAT] hE - BRELAA EPRRREERERT 8,000 100% 100%
Beijing Hafada Hair Increase Technology Co., Ltd.*  The PRC, limited liability company Wig business in the PRC
FREBEERERERAR hE - BRELAA EPREREEEHENRTY 10000 100% 100%
Beijing Yunyihui Medical Management Co., Ltd.*  The PRC, limited liability company Hair consulting in the PRC
RERBEREFARARAR hE - BRELAA EPAEREEZEA RS 50 100% 100%
Beijing Yonghe Hair Transplant Technique Research  The PRC, limited liability company Hair research in the PRC

Laboratory Co., Ltd.*

SEHEE (LR)BRAA hE - BRELAA EPEEREEZERERY 358,752 100% 100%
Svenson Hair Care (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* The PRC, limited liability company Hair care in the PRC
AR EERRREEX A HERAA hE  BREEAT EPEEREEZEERNS 556 100% 100%
(TR )
Chengdu Wuhou Yonghejimei Medical Cosmetology ~ The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Clinic Co., Ltd. (Chengdu Yonghe)* the PRC
IRERERARAR RE - BRRLAA EPERAEEZERRNS 30000 100% 100%
Beijing Yonghe Hospital Co. Ltd* The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
RNERBEXARYHERAA RE - BRALAA EhERREEZERRNS 50 100% 100%
Guangzhou Yonghe Medical Cosmetology The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.* the PRC
RERHERERRATT HARAR RE - BRALAA EPERREEZERRNG 500 100% 100%
Dongguan Dongcheng Yonghe Medical Beauty The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Clinic Co., Ltd.* the PRC
B OBRAR ([EHEE ) B BRAMAA EPERAEEZERRRG 91 100% 100%
Nu/Hart Hair Solutions Ltd (“NU/Hart") Hong Kong, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
Hai Zhousheng Biotechnology (Beiing) Co., Ltd B » EREL AT EREENE e ELRRRE 10,000 100% 100%
Hai Zhousheng Biotechnology (Beijing) Co., Ltd* ~ The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
Shanghai Yuhui Management Consulting Co., Ltd B BREFAA EREENEEELRRRE 1,000 100% 100%
Shanghai Yuhui Management Consulting Co,, Ltd*  The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in

the PRC
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12 ¥R (&) 12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ER4R ERALBER AR IRERRAEHY BRIRARE AREFHEERRERELH
Proportion of interest and
Place of incorporation and Principle activities and Particulars of issued ~ voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation share capital by the Group
(AR¥TR) 3% 0%
(RMB'000) 2023 2022
ARHEANREREAAT hE - BRELAA EPERRELEERERY 2,000 100% 100%
Shijiazhuang Yonghe Technology Co., Ltd* The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
REREEREREAIDB hE BREEAA ERERNEEEERRRY 1,000 100% 100%
Shenzhen Yonghe Jimei Medical Cosmetology The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Clinic* the PRC
AEEREVIHFND BERAR nE BREEAA EPERNEEEERRRY 1,000 100% 100%
Hefei Yonghe Plastic Surgery Outpatient Department - The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
Co., Ltd.* the PRC
AFHERBEREERAA nE - BREEAA EPERRNEEEERRRY 2,000 100% 100%
Shijiazhuang Yonghe Medical Service Co., Ltd.* The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
IRERESRMERAA hE - BRAEAT ETERNEEEERERY 500 100% 100%
Beijing Yonghe Information technology Co., Ltd*  The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
HEERERARAR hE - ARAEAT ETERNEEEERRRE 10,000 100% 100%
Shanghai Yonghe Hospital Co., Ltd* The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services in
the PRC
GRitER
Structured Entity
FrARMBRERERAA() TE - AREEAT EREENEERERERSH 100 100% 100%

Beijing Xunyi Technology Development Co. LTD* (a)  The PRC, limited liability company

Investment and management in
the PRC

* BREAXAWEERRAE

*

English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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12 727 (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

AEETIZNERTEEERR
BEgE  AEBEBROMNRERE
ABRIERER (AEFE)) D
[PRHI%E | B RIEE0E - BARFH
TEDERBREM  ARFHER
HNEERE - TR EEREEGE
RRBIA)E NRESEEE
FABBO0%RME » R(i)ER
ARG )1 & SNE A 17 B
EERBRHABB70%BE -
FHitt - KRS B BIINER S
MITEMER - AEBEEBREIL
RARMRERER AR LERK
RETW—RINGHRYE - BA
SEARENILERER (RE2
BHRENBEKE - KEBEKREKR
HN) RAKEER - A RIKERZE
NRE BRI EMEEEEN—
PR E N e o

EARPRH

ARM393 B8 T (KMaE24)
(20225 : ARKE291BETT) W
RERBSEEMRTRAME
B R E A INE S HIEF] R
PR o b5 & i B SNE B BIEBIAR
E o BRBB—RIREI  BREE
B E AN

FERER

2023912 A31 B Ry IEIE IR
wHBEAKARMK306,000T
(20224 : &) - WEFARIHE
EHAEEmMEBEEMNEER

s
WS ©

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The Group primary engages in providing hair transplant
services and medical hair care services, which involve
the operating of medical institutions, and therefore
falls into the scope of the “restricted” category of the
Special Administrative Measures for the Access of Foreign
Investment (Negative List). As advised by Company’s PRC
legal advisers, the Company, as a foreign entity, shall
not hold, either directly or indirectly, more than (i) 90%
equity interest in the Company’s hair transplant institutions
located in Sichuan province; and (ii) 70% equity interest in
the Company’s hair transplant institutions located in other
provinces other than Sichuan. As a result, in line with
common practice in industries in the PRC subject to foreign
investment restrictions, the Group entered into a series of
contractual arrangements with Beijing Xunyi Technology
Development Co. LTD and its shareholders to enable the
Group to gain effective control over, and receive all the
economic benefits generated by the businesses currently
operated by Beijing Yonghe (together with the medical
institutions it wholly owned, other than Chengdu Yonghe)
and Chengdu Yonghe.

Significant restrictions

Cash and cash equivalents of RMB393 million (Note 24)
(2022: RMB291 million) are held in Mainland China and
are subject to local exchange control regulations. These
local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
on exporting capital from the country, other than through
normal dividends.

Non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as 31 December 2023
was approximately RMB306,000 (2022:nil). No subsidiary
has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.
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13 FRiSHER

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIHAPT S35 B 2 Current income tax expense (3,454) (3,744)
BIEPTISHE R (MHEE31) Deferred income tax credit (Note 31) 41,989 27,352
P BE % Income tax credit 38,535 23,608
(a) F2HES (a) Cayman Islands
RAARRHEHERERESHSE The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as
NELESM S BEREBR A an exempted company with limited liability under the
A AW EREBNFESEEAT Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
BF o exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.
(b) REEZE#HES (b) British Virgin Islands
BEABELBEERTEMN &£ Under the current laws of British Virgin Islands, the
REBRELBEEFMK AT AR subsidiaries incorporated in British Virgin Islands are not
BEGRFTIER - subject to income tax.
(c) BEERNEH (c) Hong Kong Profits Tax
REBFMA LT AR ERE The subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are subject
H B &S EMAE 5 EFER A E to Hong Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5% on any
B16.5%MHEHMBENEG estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
(d) FELEMEH ([ (d) PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")

Fri&®il)

FrE BB BIET A AT BE
f 4O EDH ROBAE A 45 B4 - R B8
BB AR EE DR ERTE
PIRMERERIED] - B F K
S0 40 TR 14 8 3P BB DA PR B
HE -

The income tax expenses consist of current and deferred
income taxes payable in the PRC by the subsidiaries.
Income tax provision in respect of the operations in the
PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the year or period, based
on existing legislations and interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.
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13 FisHER (&) 13 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

(d) HEIEXFAES ([EXME
Bt 1) (%)

R2021%F 128178 bt R%E
AHFEEHMEMEEER ]
EX15%HNEBEMERTE -
ZEMZARERG=FEMN
HESEMEEgmHZETE
IR o WRIEHBIE @R %8 Al
NER  XEEEFTFRAFRN
20211 A1 BE2030612 A
31 BHIEZ15% M ERT KR
oo tboh - RIBP R AR
BRAIRER ERBEMNETT
NAIFENREEER -

B Lt 7 Rmlsh - EAd e E
MEEBRAEREEMESH
ENABRRE R 25% IR AR
(EUES Il

BRASERASHANBTE
BB AR - BE B 25% A E B R
FEBHNERSRNEZEN

(d) PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")

(Continued)

On 17 December 2021, Beijing Yonghe was qualified as
HNTEs and is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15%. This status is subject to a requirement that Beijing
Yonghe reapply for HNTEs status every three years. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group are taxed at preferential tax rates of
15% from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030 under the
relevant tax rules and regulations of PRC. In addition, certain
of the subsidiaries in the PRC are qualified as small and micro
enterprises under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the
PRC.

Other than the above-mentioned subsidiaries, the other
operating entities in the PRC are subject to standard income
tax rate of 25% pursuant to the corporate income tax law and
related regulations.

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax
rate of 25% are as follows:

™
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Kk PT1S B A ES 18 Loss before income tax (585,219) (109,466)
#25% A EHMETERMTIF  Tax calculated at statuary tax rate of
25% (146,305) (27,367)
ATIBEORETE Tax effects of:
WEERELEFSHEEDN Unused tax credits for which no
RE)ATRIBHE5(1) deferred income tax assets was
recognised (i) 49,317 10,685
BRBERERNFIAREIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (316) (86)
AL Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 5,576 2,139
BT IHIK Research and development tax credit (7.090) (3,685)
WEERIEEMSHEER Tax losses for which no deferred
THIAEE income tax asset was recognised 47,196 18,339
BERENTE Impact of preferential tax rates 12,222 (23,633)
BECIBERERRELERSH  Reversal of previously recognised
BE deferred income tax assets 865 =

(38,535) (23,608)
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13 FiEBiER (&)

(d) HEIEXFRES ([EEHME
Bt 1) (%)

()

RIRD XS BE R AE R
ER G BERAXHBRKR
AEMBRRNEFHAD
15% - Mt &0 ol & E
EERFEEMN - AESL
EERAXHNAREANEE
PHERELERSHEE -
RARASESEERE
RERERZ T ARRE
HER EEERA/RA
BEREREKTKRAEEEA
ZERERNBRIAER

M2023F12H318H - I
BB EENIERES
MY ERECHEHEE
WABATERESELD
BAREES48HE T (2022
#£12A318 : AR#535
BET) -

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

(d) PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT"”) (Continued)

()

Pursuant to the CIT Law and related regulations, the
pre-tax deduction for advertising expenses is limited
to the 15% of the revenue in the current year, and
the excess could be carried forward for deduction
in the following years. Deferred income tax assets
relating to unused tax credits of advertising expense
are not recognised as management considers it
is not probable to utilise these unrecognised tax
credits in the foreseeable future because the Group
will continue to invest on promotion and marketing
activities to expand its businesses.

As at 31 December 2023, unused tax credits for
which no deferred income tax assets has been
recognised in respect of deductible advertising
expense carried forward amounted to approximately
RMB548 million (31 December 2022: RMB535
million).

M12H31H

As at 31 December
2023 & 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000

W AR FERIELEFTSH Unused tax losses for which no
BEMNAREATHIEEIE deferred income tax assets has

been recognised 244,282 77,265

257
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13 frEBiEs (&)
(d) RELEFHER ([REHAE

13 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

(d) PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") (Continued)

Bl (&)
i (& (i) (Continued)
BESLEERHREER The expiry dates of the unused tax losses as of the
EEENTBEEHNNT - respective balance sheet dates are listed as below.
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARBT T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE12A31BLEFE : Year ended/ending 31 December:
20234 2023 - 815
20244 2024 342 357
20254 2025 948 948
20264 2026 1,790 1,790
20274 2027 71,645 73,355
20284 2028 169,557 =

244,282 77,265
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14 LOSS PER SHARE

EREXEIE (a) Basic loss per share

FRENEBIVIRA TR EEE Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing:

1§

o AN BRERSIF B AJE(SE o the loss attributable to equity holders of the
B (TEEREBXRHRK Company, excluding undistributed loss attributable to
R BEEAANEENRD unvested restricted shares during the vesting period
foEsig) (FisE26) (Note 26);

o % LA B R F B R 2 1T AE SN o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
T mRMEFE S - I outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
BREABBTTER (T bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
BIEMREERGEZE year and excluding shares held for employee share
B ) B AR FI A B (B 5E scheme (Note 26).

26) °
BZE12A310LEE
Year ended 31 December
20235 20224
2023 2022
RRA =B AN Loss for the year attributable to equity
FREE(ARETT) holders of the Company (RMB'000) (546,394) (85,858)
B REBXREIRG Less: undistributed loss attributable to
RERE AR unvested restricted shares during vesting
AOEER (ARETT) period (RMB'000) 8,530 1,882
ARG EEREREEDN Loss attributable to the ordinary equity
KRB EBERERA holders of the Company used in
EiEER (ARBTT) calculating basic loss per share
(RMB’000) (537,864) (83,976)
BRI RRNETHH Weighted average number of ordinary
(F&) equity shares in issue ('000) 496,442 512,900
RERARARI L AER Basic loss per share for profit attributable
HEAREMEZ to ordinary equity holders of the
BREAREE Company during the year (expressed in
(LNERARBTIIR) RMB per share) (1.08) (0.16)
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14 SREE (&)

(b)

(c)

BREBER

SRETERAEANEESK
EXBRNETF - AR

« BEHARRBIZRHR
MK D R B EMEE
5F R

s RBRREMABGEHELAE
BREFBNIBERTHITH
BSNE B IR I E -

HEERESEBREY B AE
EERE  EERNAEREE
M - Rt SR EERESR
EAXREEAR -

RBEZIENER

RBERD EZRFERTEINR
R il B £ 70 57 I 2 B AR AR A3
B - SREABENEEL R
FEARRBIRRD o ZRHIBHR
BEAAERSROEER  0F
& T K 57 I O 2 PR 1 A A0 FE 1A Y
ANEBRIELAR - REtESE
BREREEE  ZEROHTEE
BB FHEA -

BREEERNEECAHAZR
B - HEREAEENFE
WM ESREEEEN D F
o

B RS RGO BN
26 °

14 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted loss per share

(c)

Diluted loss per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic loss per share to take into account:

. undistributed loss attributable to unvested restricted
shares during the vesting period added back to the
numerator, and

o the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The potential ordinary shares are not included in the
calculation of dilutive loss per share, which would be anti-
dilutive, and the dilutive loss per share is the same as the
basic loss per share.

Information concerning the classification of
securities

Restricted shares granted to employees under share award
schemes are not regarded as outstanding until they are
vested. The restricted shares have not been included in the
determination of basic loss per share. Restricted shares are
entitled to undistributed loss during the vesting period, and
the numerator should be adjusted for undistributed loss
attributable to unvested restricted shares. These shares are
excluded from the weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the calculation of basic loss per share.

Restricted shares have been included in the determination
of diluted loss per share. The adjustments to basic loss per
share are added back to the numerator in diluted loss per
share.

Details relating to the restricted shares are set out in Note
26.
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15 RE 15 DIVIDENDS
BZE12A31MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
AR%T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
% 2.5k (a) Dividend distribution (a) = 40,058
(a) M2024F3A28HBITHES (a) At a meeting of Board held on 28 March 2024, the Board
% EEeRRTHEE resolved not to propose a final dividend in respect of the
2023F12A31B I EEEZEIR year end 31 December 2023. No dividends have been
BRAIRE - REE2023512 paid or declared by the Group during the year ended 31
R31BIEFER - AEEN &K December 2023.

N EIREMME -



262

EREEEBEARAT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

R E L
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 M1% - MENRR®E

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HENFEER
A Z2RER
BRZE ETRE  HARZA RE  ARERRE @t
Leasehold
improvement
and
infrastructure
Office of safety
Medical  Electronic furniture Motor  and medical
equipment  equipment and fixtures  vehicles treatment Total
ARBTT ARBTR AR¥TR AR%T:R ARBTT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
% Cost
®202251A18 At 1 January 2022 37,997 36,841 23,629 795 527,609 626,871
AE Additions 18,653 9,558 7,292 1,347 265,899 302,749
HE Disposal (2,117) (3,855) (2,079) ) (18,391)  (26,444)
#2022% 128318 At 31 December 2022 54,533 42,544 28,842 2,140 775117 903,176
®2023%1A18 At 1 January 2023 54,533 42,544 28,842 2,140 775117 903,176
AE Additions 28,224 10,337 7,858 - 170,571 216,990
HE(@) Disposal (a) (5,946) (5,486) (3,801) (9) (74,708)  (89,950)
®2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 76,811 47,395 32,899 2,131 870,980 1,030,216
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
®202251A18 At 1 January 2022 (12,975) (19,701) (9,290) (377) (134,315) (176,658
ik Depreciation (8,616) (9,195) (4,915) (439) (83,677)  (106,842)
e Disposal 845 2,788 1,009 1 17,977 22,620
#2022% 128318 At 31 December 2022 (20,746) (26,108) (13,196) (815) (200,015)  (260,880)
®2023F1A18 At 1 January 2023 (20,746) (26,108) (13,196) (815) (200,015)  (260,880)
ik Depreciation (12,171) (9,744) (5,591) (465) (136,591)  (164,562)
HE Q) Disposal (a) 2,592 3,790 2,053 7 18,632 27,074
RET (i) Impairment charge (Note 8) - - - = (13,297) (13,297
®2023F12A310 At 31 December 2023 (30,325) (32,062) (16,734) (1,273) (331,271)  (411,665)
REFE Net carrying amount
®2022F12R31H At 31 December 2022 33,787 16,436 15,646 1,325 575102 642,29
120235128318 At 31 December 2023 46,486 15,333 16,165 858 539,709 618,551
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16 Y% - BMER=%E (& 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
WERLtABZTRAHE2E WS Depreciation expenses have been charged to profit or loss and
KEHWT : presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income as follows:

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224
2023 2022
ARBT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE KRG A Cost of sales and services 147,504 90,376
—MRITHRAX General and administrative expenses 9,838 6,638
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses 7,220 9,828
164,562 106,842
(a) LEVE BERRBEIEHR (a) The disposal of property, plant and equipment was mainly
EREENRIEGIMTETRA resulted from the termination of clinics/stores in the lower-

BREWE PE - tier city.
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16 3% - BE K&t (&)

(b) W% - BERRERE

RNEEE S FERBEME PIE
BEBNAIEANRESELEMN
WiBANFEREEEREREEERE
g/ PEEENBRSCELSE
RN E S5 HRSEEE
TRE S - REEABMMA
e EHENERAEEEE
E o EERAABERBEEKAE
FTE - R2023F 12 A31 BHE
BEEFEMERMNEZ /I
T~

EEEELE

FIPAERE 6.8%~
(FZE—FUT) 1694.9%

FIPAIERE -17.0%~
(FZE—FNE) 65.7%

RIRER = 17.0%~

78.7%

B 5 B BT IR = 9.7%~
(RIHHEESRA 28.7%
=FPTF)

B 50 B BT 3R = 12.9%~
(HHHEESHA 24.9%
=F )

SEHEMIE

FUTAE R K 5.0%~

15.0%

RIRFER = 15.1%~

46.9%
R 5 B BT IR = 14.0%~

19.0%

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group regards each individual clinic/store as a
separately identifiable CGU and performed impairment
assessments on each of the CGU with impairment
indicators by considering the recoverable amount of such
assets at clinic/store level using the value in use model. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value in use calculations, which are higher than the fair
value less costs of disposal calculations. Key assumptions
used for the value in use calculation as at 31 December
2023 were as follows:

Hair transplant clinics
Annual revenue growth rate
(open less than 1 year)
Annual revenue growth rate
(open more than 1 year)

Future gross margin

6.8%~1694.9%

-17.0%~65.7%
17.0%~78.7%

Pre-tax discount rate 9.7%~28.7%
(remaining lease terms less than
3 years)

Pre-tax discount rate

(remaining lease terms more than
3 years)

12.9%~24.9%

Svenson stores
Annual revenue growth rate 5.0%~15.0%

Future gross margin 15.1%~46.9%

Pre-tax discount rate 14.0%~19.0%
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16 Y% - BERS%E (&) 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) a(wf) - BERRERE (b)
RETHSEASENME F RE

FIp A ER— R EBEEAER
ATEREmEAR - At - A&
BREZE2023F12A31HIEF

ERERYME  BEMEERE
AR¥133BE T (ME8) »

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

(Continued)

The value in use calculations covering a period of the
remaining lease term were lower than the carrying amounts
of certain CGUs. Accordingly, the Group recognised an
impairment of property, plant and equipment of RMB13.3
million during the year ended 31 December 2023 (Note 8).

17 HE 17 LEASES
(a) REMHEEEBRERY (a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
&% sheets
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 & 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
HEgE Leased buildings 871,789 989,235
HEEE Lease liabilities
T Eh Current 170,044 190,554
JEmE Non-current 772,693 845,048
942,737 1,035,602
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17 HE (&)

(b) REfFZEUNERERYN (b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
| statements of comprehensive income

17 LEASES (Continued)

NEMEERBBERNTEREESE The movement in right-of-use assets in the consolidated

FEWR : balance sheet are as follows:
BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
2% Cost
REH) At beginning of the year 1,440,040 1,250,543
NE Additions 241,527 279,162
HEDH Lease expiration (54,872) (34,394)
HEELKRIE Termination of lease contracts (217,435) (44,200)
HEEREREFTE Lease modification and remeasurement (15,025) (11,071)
RER At end of the year 1,394,235 1,440,040
Rt E Accumulated depreciation
REL) At beginning of the year (450,805) (325,401)
FRITEZH Depreciation charge for the year (218,396) (171,314)
HEDH Lease expiration 54,872 34,394
HEEOIE Termination of lease contracts 91,883 11,516
RER At end of the year (522,446) (450,805)
REFE Net book amount
RER At end of the year 871,789 989,235
BE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 & 20224
2023 2022
AR®ET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FREEENTESH Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets 168,337 113,177
FBEAS (E11) Interest expense (Note 11) 51,741 49,622
HAHERERX Expense relating to short-term leases 8,894 13,465
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17 HE (&)

(c)

(d)

17 LEASES (Continued)

FHEEEIRESTANUT (c) Depreciation of right-of-use assets are charged
L= to the following categories:
BZ12A31MBLEE
Year ended 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
$HE R ARF AR Cost of sales and services 156,713 104,188
—RRITERAX General and administrative expenses 5,587 4,318
HE K& iERX Selling and marketing expenses 6,037 4,671
MkriEm Charged to profit or loss 168,337 113,177
AR ATHEWEREK  Capitalised as leasehold improvement
L2 RBEAEEREIE and infrastructure of safety and
medical treatment 49,924 58,137
Bt NEBREAE Capitalised as intangible assets 135 =
218,396 171,314

HZE2023F 128318 IEFE -

(d) The total cash outflow for leases (excluding short-

HE(TEFEEHESE)ReR term lease) for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
HBBOR/ARB2398E T approximately RMB239 million (2022: RMB195 million).

(2022%F : AR®195B &) ©
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18 BILEE

268 ZEXRBEEEAMRALT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B4 BE ERBARAE BE #et
Capitalised
development
Software  Trademarks expenditure Goodwill Total
ARETR ARETR AR®BT AR®TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
D% Cost
RK2022%1 818 At 1 January 2022 12,419 5,530 - 25,157 43,106
NE Additions 1,618 1,456 - - 3,074
& Disposal (223) = = = (223)
#®2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 13,814 6,986 - 25,157 45,957
®2023F1 /18 At 1 January 2023 13,814 6,986 - 25,157 45,957
N Additions 5,468 - 6,790 - 12,258
& Disposal (2,228) - - - (2,228)
R2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 17,054 6,986 6,790 25,157 55,987
R BHREE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
#2022%1 818 At 1 January 2022 (1,806) (43) - - (1,849)
g Amortisation (4,455) (198) - - (4,653)
hE Disposal 223 = - - 223
#®2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 (6,038) (241) - - (6,279)
®2023F1 /18 At 1 January 2023 (6,038) (241) - - (6,279)
Bis Amortisation (1,269) (672) - - (1,941)
& Disposal 2,228 - = = 2,228
HES Impairment charge = = = (14,832) (14,832)
R2023F12A431H At 31 December 2023 (5,079) (913) - (14,832) (20,824)
BREFE Net carrying amount
R2022612 A318 At 31 December 2022 7,776 6,745 - 25,157 39,678
R®2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 11,975 6,073 6,790 10,325 35,163

(a) BHEAXHBRERINAHFE2E (a)
W RZINAT :

Amortisation expenses have been charged to profit or
loss and presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 F 20224

2023 2022

ARET T AREETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

— R RITEAX General and administrative expenses 1,940 4,440
$HE M & H R X Selling and marketing expenses 1 =
R Research and development expenses - 213
1,941 4,653
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18 B EE (&)

(b)

M2021%E5A318 - UM
BEELANEEHARKE2H

SEM([BEEELEEBEM]) -
EITRERANR - R2023F12 A
318 - EBEREEITRERT
HWEETATRESE  EAR
BERLEXNNEEFEAEEZ
MRS E - AFEZLCENE
EREEHNIKRESED BB
S ERFE - iIREEAEE
([EREE]TEEE - sTEE
AENREREEBHENTE
By BEENR S RERR -

TREHHMA2023F128318E
BEETRESRETEMNAETTE
ERENAMKENSEEER

= .
e -

2024F E2028%F 81%E
WA (% FIBEE) 108.9%
2024F E2028%F 78.7%-
EF| = 80.3%
BRIRIERE 1.7%
BRI IT IR 2R 16.8%

R2023F12A318 ' IRIEFER
BEFESENECELESEMDY
AlkEEEAARBISOESR
T REARMEARK208EHE
TEARE148BET - £ER L
MTEER - EREHRIREEEH
BEEENRCEEBUERR
BREXLARK148BE8TT
(PFI5E8) °

W ME R EEFE A 5 E RS2
R IB 2 EE A R R BT E A AV TR
IWABEEER2023412 A31
B{EH A HETK10.0% @ AJAR%E
EEREENERERZREA
RE14BETT °

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

The goodwill of approximately RMB25 million arising from
the acquisition of NU/Hart on 31 May 2021 has been
allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU") of NU/
Hart for impairment testing. As at 31 December 2023,
management performed an impairment assessment on
the goodwill and determined the recoverable amounts,
which was the higher of its fair value less costs of disposals
and its value in use. The recoverable amounts of the
hair transplant business operated by NU/Hart have been
assessed by an independent valuer and determined based
on value-in-use (“VIU") calculation. The calculation used
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by management.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill as at 31
December 2023:

Revenue 2024-2028
(% annual growth rate)
Gross margin 2024-2028

8.1%-108.9%

78.7%-80.3%

1.7%
16.8%

Terminal growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of
the CGU of RMB15.0 million calculated based on VIU
calculation was lower than its carrying value of RMB29.8
million by RMB14.8 million. Based on the result of work
as mentioned above, management recognised a goodwill
impairment charge of RMB14.8 million for the CGU arising
from the acquisition of NU/Hart (Note 8).

If the forecast revenue used in VIU calculation for goodwill
arising from the acquisition of NU/Hart had been 10.0%
lower than management’s estimate at 31 Decemeber 2023,
the Group wold have had to recognise an impairment
against the carrying amount of goodwill of RMB1.4 million.

269
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8 BEE (&)

(b)

(@]

(&)

WRME A EEE R A ERE
HEEEENNEMEANER
EREEIRERN2023F12 318
EHBEEE1.0% @ BIAREE
EREENEEERRREAR
B12BETT °

WARNME R BEE AR EE
HEEZEEREMERANRR
BERREEEN2023F12 A
31 AELMHETET.0% « Bl
SEEMREENEEERRRE
ARBOSHEET -

HEARKECEEEVMNERES
METEAMNBREATITERRE R
EBELAEETE1.0% @ BIASE

B P B R A A R 1.0
EEVOE

HZE2022F12A318ILFE -
WERAMEEBRIBETMESE

AR e Ry ERETES
EENBSELBMIELREM
e

PARESEBEILEIENR20214F
SA3 RN EFEEW AR -
HEGELS  BEHEEZEHKA
FEREAEFEERERMEN
BEEBBERS - BEERABENH
BESNBBEFEREE - #m
REBERY  BE2EAER
H o WEAEKERITFRAR
B 1B BEBLEFZEESD

sy N

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

If the gross margin used in VIU calculation for goodwill
arising from the acquisition of NU/Hart had been 1.0%
lower than management’s estimate at 31 Decemeber 2023,
the Group wold have had to recognise an impairment
against the carrying amount of goodwill of RMB1.2 million.

If the terminal growth rate used in VIU calculation for
goodwill arising from the acquisition of NU/Hart had
been 1.0% lower than management’'s estimate at 31
Decemeber 2023, the Group wold have had to recognise
an impairment against the carrying amount of goodwill of
RMBO0.8 million.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections of this CGU had been 1.0% higher than
management’s estimate, the Group would have had to
recognise an impairment against goodwill of RMB1.0
million.

For the year ended 31 Decemeber 2022, there were no
reasonably possible changes in any of the key assumption
that would resulted in an impairment write-down in the
CGU arising from the acquisition of NU/Hart.

The trademark of approximately RMB5 million is identified
in the acquisition of Nu/Hart on 31 May 2021. As of the
valuation date, the revenue of NU/Hart mainly comes
from hair transplant services with the Nu/Hart trademark.
Management considered that NU/Hart will provide
continuous service by using the trademark after acquisition
and by reference to the valuation report, this trademark
will make revenue contribution for 11 years and after that,
the incremental economic benefit became immaterial.
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19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

R12A31H

As at 31 December

2023F 20224
2023 2022
BT AR¥T T ARBET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
IREEGHRN AR ET EM L RIVE ZE © Financial assets at amortised cost:
HeRREZEEW Cash and cash equivalents 24 603,215 565,093
& RE A IR IE Deposits and other receivables 21 77,708 69,590
SR E Trade receivables 20 10,267 7,055
TEHFER Term deposits 23 = 412,940
691,190 1,054,678
SHesE M12A31H
Financial liabilities As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
B 5T AR®ET T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
IR ARETEM 2 R E1E © Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
HEAR Lease liabilities 17 942,737 1,035,602
B Borrowings 28 152,816 =
B 5 N H M FRIA Trade and other payables
(T EREENTIER (excluding tax payables and
EETEEREF) accrued employee benefits) 29 125,116 69,882
1,220,669 1,105,484

AEEEEHEIMmLESRTAR
B ZIAR R o R ¥R E BRI RO &
AREERBRBAR LASERNSRE

EZIREE -

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the

carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.
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20 B 5 WA

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBEFPAHNE ZEWFKIE  Trade receivables from contracts with
customers
—%=H — Third parties 10,283 7,086
B R E RS Less: allowance for impairment (16) (31)
10,267 7,055
(a) A&EE—RBELEATF UEK (a) The Group usually receives the payment from customers

B BHERRFBESHEERE
FEEBESRMEBERE=FXM
FAREBENRNSBBESNE
=hEHFERE - RETE=
FEAFamEERRERE
LEETE —MEEHABISAR -
B2021F 8 - RNEBFHBRD
¥TFHERM  —MEEHAE
3EA - REZAHHENE S
FEUGRIBRIBRER DA ¢

in advance. The trade receivable is primarily the receivable
from financial institutions or the third-party payment
platforms which the customers have already settled their
payment through financial institutions or the third party
payment platforms. The credit term given to the third
party payment platforms are determined on an individual
basis with normal credit period within 15 days. The Group
starts to sell goods to the corporate customers from 2021
and generally offers them a credit term of 3 months. The
ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice
date is as follows:

R12H31H

As at 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
ARBT ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=EAKRA Up to 3 months 9,326 6,805
=ZEREA 3 to 6 months 941 249
NMEAZE—F 6 months to 1 year 10 22
—EWF 1-2 years 6 10

10,283 7,086
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20 B 5 BWRE (&)

(b)

(c)

(d)

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

ES5EWFESE (b) Classification as trade receivables
BB IE AT BT Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
B E P SR B Sk AR A BT T i FE UK goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
BEHRIE - ZER7E KR of business. They are generally due for settlement
—FRIEBEE - Aitt2H5%E within one year and therefore all classified as current.
B o B 5 EWSIBYRIRE Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
BRERESERR  RIFABS of consideration that is unconditional unless they
BEARERD  ARAABER contain significant financing components, when they
R RNEEFEEHEWEIE - are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
SEWERANES RS ALHE receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
BERBERR R AR R AT cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
2  FHAEERERRREIE amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details
BEFENFBRHE3 10 about the Group’s impairment policies and the calculation
it o of the loss allowance are provided in note 3.1 (c).
ESEWFENAAREE (c) Fair values of trade receivables
BEREZENGKEEEHES Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables, their
HIFAERRAEEAABEK carrying amounts are considered to be approximately the
BEE - same as their fair values.
B K [ B A A (d) Impairment and risk exposure
BIEHIEE3. 1(c) Pt - 7320234 On the basis as described in Note 3.1 (c), the loss
202212 B31HWME S EW allowance for trade receivables as at 31 December 2023
REEBREEENT and 2022 are determined as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20226
2023 2022
BE B
AHEEE HREAE BEIR BHEEX  EReE  AEHRE
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount  provision loss rate amount provision
AR%TE ARETR ARBTT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
g S EWE Trade receivables
-~ PRIEE — Financial institutions 0.15% 7130 10 0.11% 6,170 7
- F=AxMTA — Third party payment platforms 0.33% 1,508 5 1.33% 678 9
—EEP — Corporate customers 0.06% 1,645 1 6.36% 238 15
10,283 16 7,086 31
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21 FATEE - IR R EHAM 21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

+
P& W R IE RECEIVABLES
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FFARBEE Included in current assets
AT RRIE Prepayments
BE ks SEITRE & Advertising and information technology
services fee 15,975 22,823
BEERRERBEE Professional and agency service fees 7,872 5,845
MERMEERE Rental and property management fees 3,655 2,531
BETE Purchase of inventories 992 6,880
EHith Others 4,866 2,557
33,360 40,636
KA EE I EB Deductible input VAT 8,771 6,075
Hib W KIE Other receivables
e Deposits 69,920 64,363
2T REMNRE () Cash advance to employees (a) 3,630 3,293
HAth Others 6,759 4,445
80,309 72,101
o ARG IERRE Less: provision for impairment of other
B 5 (b) receivables (b) (2,601) (2,511)
77,708 69,590
NEE Subtotal 119,839 116,301
STAERBEE Included in non-current assets 2,106 9,258
121,945 125,559

(a) 8NFEEMBSAEIER &

BRIZEREER -

(a) Cash advance to employees are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.
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21 FAEE - IR R EAM 21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

FEUYL FhiE (&) RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) BEKEREEE (b) Impairment and risk exposure
RIEM E3. 1 () Frut B2 - R On the basis as described in Note 3.1 (c), the loss
SHRREHEK AT ENHME allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost at
MEENEEREETOT the end of reporting periods are determined as follows:
R12A31A
As at 31 December
2023 2022
2023 2022
EHEEE GEAE BEEEE BRREBX  FEAE BEEEHR
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount  provision loss rate amount provision
ARETT AR¥TR ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
H g Other receivables
-%s - Deposits 3.56% 69,920 2,490 3.79% 64,363 2,438
-2FFEEMES - Cash advance to employees 0.88% 3,630 32 0.79% 3,293 26
— At IR - Other receivables 1.17% 6,759 79 1.06% 4,445 47
80,309 2,601 72,101 2,511
‘€
22 78 22 INVENTORIES
R12H831H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARBT T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEEEEMN Medical hair care consumables 38,284 39,811
) K B M Pharmaceuticals and medical consumables 18,184 21,485
TR N EEE M Wash and hair care products 16,041 20,596
HAh Others 3,496 6,197
76,005 88,089
B FERERE Less: allowance for impairment of
inventories - -
76,005 88,089
B ZE2023F12 A3 1B IEFERNER Inventories recognised as cost of sales and services during the
RHERRBRANGFEROARKE year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
123B& T (20225 - HARKI4E RMB123 million (2022: approximately RMB94 million).

s —

&) °
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23 EHF

23 TERM DEPOSITS

MW12A31H

As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
ARET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B ITE HTF R HKD term deposits - 180,938
EITE TR USD term deposits - 161,451
ARETEHFR RMB term deposits - 70,551
= 412,940

24 RERFASEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
M12H31H8

As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITER Bank deposits 602,664 563,683
FHERE Cash on hand 551 1,410
RekBEEY Cash and cash equivalents 603,215 565,093

AEENRE LR FEYNEREE

The carrying amount of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents

THizLA N B ETHE are denominated in the following currencies:
M12831H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 590,048 292,526
= usD 5,580 184,908
BT HKD 7,587 87,659
603,215 565,093
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

LmREE EEEN A B
Number of Share Share
ordinary shares capital premium
ARETT AR¥ETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Authorised
R2023F12A31H As at 31 December 2023 5,000,000,000 323 -
BEITRAR Issued and fully paid
R2022F12A31H As at 31 December 2022 527,080,416 8 1,332,287
EEITRAE Issued and fully paid
®2023F12H31H As at 31 December 2023 527,080,416 8 1,332,287
il e gE! A& B4 (8
Number of Share Share
ordinary shares capital premium
ARBFT AR¥ETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Authorised
®2022512A31H As at 31 December 2022 5,000,000,000 323 -
BEEITRER Issued and fully paid
7A2021F12A31H As at 31 December 2021 519,955,916 8 1,240,408
EITE R SEERMEITE Issuance of ordinary shares upon
BAX the over-allotment 7,124,500 —* 91,879
BRITRERE Issued and fully paid
2022512 H31H As at 31 December 2022 527,080,416 8 1,332,287

* b ERER/NA AR EE1,0007T *

The balance stated above was less than RMB1,000.
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26 LR A B 89

(a)

IR A0 R =t &l

M2020F3 A318 LR FHK
B % 3R B AR A TE DA BR (D A A A
HEH T BIS (RIERBIZEE)
HITER B 1) BEBAR
A EIRRER B FUE M KRR (4t
RAEBIN EUAREI11E
BILMREREREAER118F
EEREEERAHASWHANR
A (8% EERMETE]) :
D) ARRIEUARBSIAE T
WRERRELEEITHERH
ANRREMD (6% 18 BT
2/]) - Btk - 202053 A31 B
8B 438 TE LA RR (D 74 E 1 60 3 B
WEE B (TREBE]) -

8% EE MR 175+ &

202194238 » KARE
GREXERRBRERIN) ([E
ZEAD RIE8%EE D&M
FrHEEHIERER AR RE AR
RIER AR A F DBl EEast
5,000,000 % ¥ 3,000,000 f% B {5
(D BUEARRAE B BTG HI5%
K3%) o RDERETIZEEAS
BRARR R HI#ST o

BIEZATE REXRER118%F
GEREE ([6EKER] 25
JE1% 5,000,000 % %% 3,000,000 f%
5 o MFPERELENBROHER
IHREERE - BTAERE
BRBRMNENEERE XA ARE
E% BHEGEREERK—T
HRFB BB - P 30%M%
ERMAIRBEBECEKREEES
BB R AREERTEKRFER
TEERRE BB - 30% IS RD |]
REBEEREEESERANR
AHABERTHR = FIRISER S
B #T40% A RNBEEERKE
BEABEHRBRAMEEETN
WMERISHRSRE - WA EBE
BRILBHETEZERAAR
AIFT R G &R ES MBS
REESVNEEERSINGS%
REFIR (@A) TR

26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(a) Share award schemes

On 31 March 2020, the shareholders of the Beijing
Haiyouyou communicated the details of the share-based
compensation scheme including the performance criteria
with the grantees, pursuant to which, 1) shareholders
(other than Beijing Xunyi) of Beijing Haiyouyou who would
convert to the shareholder of the Company would transfer
in total 8% of the shares of the Company to Mr. Zhang Yu
and 118 eligible employees at a consideration of RMB111
million (the “8% Employee Share Plan”); 2) the Company
would issue approximately 6% of the shares of the
Company to Mr. Zhang Yu at a consideration of RMB89
million (the “6% Employee Share Plan”). Accordingly, 31
March 2020 is considered as the grant date (the “grant
date”) of the selected share-based compensation.

8% Employee Share Plan

On 23 April 2021, shareholders (other than Mr. Zhang Yu
and Mr. Zhang Hui) of the Company (the “Transferors”)
transferred in total 5,000,000 and 3,000,000 shares
(representing 5% and 3% of the issued shares in the
Company, respectively) to Yunuo Technology Holdings
Limited and Zhirui Technology Holdings Limited,
respectively, under the 8% Employee Share Plan. The
shares transferred was in proportion to the Transferors
respective shareholding in the Company.

Under the plan, Mr. Zhang Yu and 118 eligible employees
(the “eligible employees”) were granted 5,000,000 and
3,000,000 shares, respectively. The shares granted to Mr.
Zhang Yu would be vested when the consideration have
been paid. The shares granted to eligible employees would
be vested when such eligible employees complete a certain
service period after QIPO. In which, 30% of these shares
could be vested when such eligible employees complete a
two-year service period after QIPO, 30% of these shares
could be vested when such eligible employees complete
a three-year service period after QIPO, and the remaining
40% could vest when such eligible employees complete a
four-year service period after QIPO. If an eligible employee
ceases the employment by the Company within this period,
the awarded shares will be repurchased by employee
incentive platform, at the price that the employees initially
purchased, and if applicable, plus 4.5% per annum
interest.
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26 LU 0 B E 7% 89 I B 26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(%8 (Continued)

(a) KipERBEHE ()

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)

8% EE R & & ()

EERAREE13.89 THERE
BB HBEREOARE1I1E
ETEHRIEERZSEAER
BEMR2021 s ARHIN - &
FHRETCENRNOESRS -

THAEERABRAR ([Tl
R2021F1 B1SHERE R LB
SHEMKY AREEEEZEHE
g o BERFIERAR A ([E
=) R2021F1 B15BERE
BXRESFMK - TIREER
{E 8 i 2% M /B 2 AR AR SR 1 1 A 1B
BHREIFE -

6% EE R H5HE

M2021F 48268 + ARQFA]
REeNEERMOTEMZY
Investment Capital Ltd.Z7T
6,382,979k - IEARE
%5 #16.0% ° ZY Investment
Capital Ltd.7E3REE 2 &k
K - BRESLRELEHRE - &
TTREAENRONREES
NRERE -

EERARK13.89THITHE
AEMENREARKSIEELE
M2021FE5 A - MR GH
DBESE -

8% Employee Share Plan (Continued)

The total consideration for the shares calculated at the
price. of RMB13.89 per share of approximately RMB111
million were fully paid by Mr. Zhang Yu and those eligible
employees in May 2021 and the shares granted to Mr.
Zhang Yu had been vested.

Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited (the “Yunuo”) was
incorporated in the BVI on 15 January 2021 and wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Yu. Zhirui Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Zhirui”) was incorporated in the BVI as a
limited company on 15 January 2021 as an employee
incentive platform for the eligible employees, which is
controlled by the controlling shareholders.

6% Employee Share Plan

On 26 April 2021, the Company issued 6,382,979 shares,
representing approximately 6.0% of the shares of the
Company, to ZY Investment Capital Ltd. under the 6%
Employee Share Plan. ZY Investment Capital Ltd. was
incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yu. The share issued to Mr. Zhang Yu would be vested
when the consideration has been paid.

The consideration of RMB89 million in total at an exercise
price of RMB13.89 each share was paid in May 2021 and
the shares granted had been vested.
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26 LA 13 & & 7 89 5

(%)

(a)

(b)

B4 S =t &1 (4R)
6% 18 2R 17 5t 8 (40

REBEEANBRRESRELAH
EEEERMETEIIE THEER Y
RELYBHNARBEEE AT
AR 14.197C - T2 /KR (0
PERERARRKBEA) H&E
HEFEHEEEETE c BEXESR
BOFEETRONAABESE

26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(Continued)

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)
6% Employee Share Plan (Continued)

The Group has applied discounted cash flow method
to determine the fair value of the underlying shares of
RMB14.19 per share under the respective Employee
Share Plan on the grant dates. Best estimates of key
assumptions, such as discount rate and projections of
future performance, are required to be determined by
management. Key assumptions used in determining the

RHEZEREHAT : fair value of shares under the Employee Share Plans are as
follows:

8%EERMDTE 6%EERMBEE
8% Employee 6% Employee
Share Plan Share Plan
PR = Discount rate 13.5% 13.5%
o L P ) Risk-free interest rate 3.21% 3.21%
R I8 Volatility 53% 53%
T2 I AT R Discount for lack of marketability 10% 10%

BB B G T RBRALA
SHRFLT

(b) Set out below are the movement in the number of
awarded shares under the Employee Share Plans:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224

2023 2022

RHOEE abar-4=

number number

of shares of shares

REF) At the beginning of year 12,000,000 12,000,000

Esdun] Granted - _

il Vested (3,600,000) -

RER At the end of year 8,400,000 12,000,000
R 8 R AR AR 9 Shares not yet granted at the end of

MR2021F11 8128 » AR FIRK
R RE— A MEEETRG D
¥ o

On 12 November 2021, the shareholders of the Company
resolved to conduct share split on a one-for-four basis.
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26 LR 13 & & 7 89 5

(%)

() UARBABRERNZNARS
EENREX

26 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(Continued)

(c) Expenses arising from share-based payment
transactions

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR¥ET T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BIRESRMDETEIITH Share award schemes issued under the
A1 42T &) Employee Share Plans 184 184

MR2023F12H318 » UKD A
EMNETNRIEENRFTHAXL
HEBAREA2BET - BER
ACARRAD B E R B BN -

27 BEERMDETERFEHN

As at 31 December 2023, the accumulated expenses
arising from share-based payment transactions amounting
to approximately RMB4.2 million, with the corresponding
credit to the share-based compensation reserve.

27 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE

i gvi) SCHEME
[ gviE S ¢= AR®BTR
Number of shares RMB’000
M2022512A318 As at 31 December 2022 10,409,000 79,038
XEEAMEERD Acquisition of shares by the Trust 14,704,000 96,495
M2023%12H31H As at 31 December 2023 25,113,000 175,533

MR2022F7H268  ARBESER
FERMNZRBIARMDENET B o ZETE
ERBAARMBHET0)F - B4
ABERAR ([ZFEAL) » TTHARA]
) BREEBERSBR AR
BN BT 5 B E R AR IR -

ZETEIE T AR ARBAARRE FERA
MM BE  (VEREERHATE
HBARREBITRA CREEE) K
10% * R()VBFUEARR B EITERA
(TEEE)MN2% AR o REM121E
AHAMA - R E & T8I0 & F @ 5 &
BANBOHHEETESHBBAQRE %
TTREAN (R ) 91 % ©

On 26 July 2022, the board of the Company has resolved to
adopt the restricted share units scheme. The scheme will be
effective for a term of ten (10) years after the adoption date.
The shares underlying the awards will be purchased by the Futu
Trustee Limited (“Trustee”) which has been appointed by the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or off
the market.

The aggregate number of shares under the scheme available
to be granted to the grantees during the valid period (i) shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (as
changed from time to time) throughout the valid period, and (ii)
shall be subject to an annual limitation within 2% of the issued
share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time).
The number of shares which may be awarded to an individual
grantee under the scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company (as changed from time to time) in
any 12-month period.
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27

28

miESRGEIFHH
KR4 (4&)

EFSRTHMESHETIENN
THE(BHEREARL) - ()R EN
SR B FEALL ([ R FIA D ERL])
HEROMWBERZAEE  (#E
AFEARNEE : (3)HREXRHIADE
7 57 88 By 1) 7 I JOER B (B O (B 30
BENFEER  R(4)ZFEBETR
BRAATEETHSHER THR
TEHEIHR -

MN2023%F - ARG HEES 2R AR
BOAZAEAHEOARKESIBE T
(2022%F : AR¥90BHETT) °

HZE2023F12A318  SEAEMN
PAREEICEHE L (2022512 A31
A: ARB798ET) BAKRAT
14,704,0000% (20224128318 :
10,409,000%) I&1p - XFEARA A
ERBEBRMOESFBRNARKIES
7L (20224128318 : ARE11EHE
) BERBEARERIBSEEY -

27 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE

SCHEME (Continued)

The board shall periodically approve each grant plan which shall
include (1) the range or the maximum number of the shares
underlying the restricted share unit (“RSU") to be granted,
(2) the scope of the proposed grantees; (3) the price range or
the minimum price of the consideration to be received from
the grantees upon vesting of the underlying RSUs; and (4) the
duration of the grant plan for each batch of the proposed grant
under the scheme from time to time during the valid Period,
which shall be proposed by the administrator.

During 2023, the Company has contributed approximately
RMB89 million (2022: RMB90 Million) to the Trustee for the
purchase of the shares underlying the awards.

As at 31 December 2023, 14,704,000 (31 December 2022:
10,409,000) shares of the Company have been acquired by
the Trustee with approximately RMB96 million (31 December
2022: RMB79 million). The remaining cash held for the share
repurchase by the Trustee was approximately RMB3 million (31
December 2022: RMB11 million), which has been disclosed as
cash and cash equivalents.

(EEN 28 BORROWINGS
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RHIRITE R Short-term bank borrowings
— A — Unsecured 152,803 =
— B — Secured 13 =
152,816 -

(@) F2023412A318 @ BITER
MEME  ZEEFFENT
2.90%%3.40% (202212 R
318 : )18 -

b) HRAEFRREHRIE BN
2023F12A31H @ WEEZH
AREEEEEREDERE -

() H2023F12A31H  BERHER
H{ENKAREE -

(@) As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowings carry
interest at fixed rate ranging from 2.90% to 3.40% per
annum (31 December 2022: nil).

(b) The fair values of borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2023 due to the short
maturities of these borrowings.

() As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
borrowings are denominated in RMB.
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29 BEZ R EMEM A

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

M"12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
H 5 e I8 Trade payables 76,166 43,968
FEETHE B & T Accrued employee benefits 68,556 61,136
FEI IR Tax payables 17,201 13,100
JEFTE A Accrued expenses 15,037 8,197
RRAEE Refund liabilities 12,009 8,188
RES Security deposit 12,666 5,691
AL Note payable 3,250 =
Hith Others 5,988 3,838
210,873 144,118
BHRNFIEREER  BERER Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 30
BETAI30RAZAT © days of recognition.
() HBREZRHEMENTEEREH (i)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
ME - EREEHEEREALARD considered to be approximated to their fair values, due to

(i)

BERE -

RERERR  REZBHFHE
B8 5 RN IR R e T
T~

(i)

their short-term nature.

Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date at
the end of each reporting period are as follows:

M12H831H

As at 31 December
2023 % 2022%F
2023 2022
ARBT T ARKETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=EARA Up to 3 months 54,618 36,190
=EXMEA 3 to 6 months 15,872 3,182
NEAZE—F 6 months to 1 year 2,727 1,669
—FEMF 1 to 2 years 1,051 1,747
R 38 P Over 2 years 1,898 1,180
76,166 43,968
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30 ERIARE 30 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR%T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
cEEE Contract liabilities
BEEE[E Medical hair care 153,494 129,959
BEER Hair transplant 18,354 14,423
Hith Others 10,507 10,595
182,355 154,977
AREBZECRABEIBARDE The Group classifies these contract liabilities as current because
& RE R & B A R the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer for at
HIEERREHEED12(A - least 12 months after the reporting period.
(i) REREBRIAHWA (i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
TRITAREHREERRA The following table shows how much of the revenue
RERAHBA T - recognised in the current reporting period relates to

carried-forward contract liabilities:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR¥TT ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE Medical hair care 75,774 110,030
BEEE Hair transplant 5,026 4,913
Hitp Others 6,879 4,239
87,679 119,182

(ii) KBTEN (ii) Unsatisfied contracts
BIRETRH - R2023F12 A31 Management expects that the amount of approximately
HRXZFHRBITEETSEOHA RMB99 million of the transaction to unsatisfied
R¥99BHE T (2022F 12 A 31 obligations as at 31 December 2023 (31 December
H: HARBIIEE L) X 2022: approximately RMB79 million) will be recognised
R—F AR BUA o BREE R as revenue within next one year. The remaining will be

—FIRMER © recognised in more than one year.
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31 IBEMRMESH

(@) EEFREHREESFTAOT

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a) The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:

M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR® T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BELEFSHEE : Deferred income tax assets:
— BRABE12E A BIEHE - Deferred income tax assets to be
FEEFTISTHEE recovered after more than
12 months 236,581 240,788
— #1218 A A E R — Deferred income tax assets to be
RIEFTBIEE recovered within 12 months 70,047 50,198
306,628 290,986
ARIR R S5 I SCH SH IR A Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities
s asE pursuant to set-off provisions (199,002) (230,563)
BEFTSHEEFE Net deferred income tax assets 107,626 60,423
FEEFSHARE Deferred income tax liabilities:
— BRBBI12E R B&EER - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FEEMSHAR settled after more than 12 months 163,077 184,629
—#BR12EAARNEER — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FEEMSHAR settled within 12 months 42,641 47,436
205,718 232,065
R S ISR SH IR T Set-off of deferred income tax assets
st &E pursuant to set-off provisions (199,002) (230,563)
BEEFTSHAETE Net deferred income tax liabilities 6,716 1,502

(b) EEFASHIRAFRELHMOT :

(b) The net movement on the deferred income tax account is
as follows:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 % 20224

2023 2022

ARMF T ARKEFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REF) At beginning of the year 58,921 31,569
FTARGHRAXZ (HE13) Credited to income tax expense

(Note 13) 41,989 27,352

RER At end of the year 100,910 58,921
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31 EEFREH (8R) 31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(©) F2023F K2022F A @ IEEFT () The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and
BHREERBELEMSHEBENE deferred income tax liabilities during 2023 and 2022 are as
BHEBMT follows:

() IRIEFTBFHEE (i)  Deferred income tax assets:

@8R BB
HEEE HE EB¥AE ZENEEE  AERRE  EROHH @t
Provision for  Intra-group
Tax Refund  impairment unrealised  Share-based
losses Leases liabilities of assets  profit or loss compensation Total
ARBTR ARETR ARET:R ARET R ARBTT  AR%TR ARBTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

R2021E As at 31 December

128318 2021 1,874 21,332 2,573 455 29 568 32,831
RMESEER Efects of the adoption

F1255 28578 of amendments to

e HKAS 12 - 208,139 - - - - 208,139
R2022%1818 Asat1 January 2022 1,874 229,471 2,573 455 29 568 240,970
SAER Credited to profit or loss 21,482 28,599 (526) 13 420 28 50,016
R2022% As at 31 December

12A31H 2022 29,356 258,070 2,047 468 449 596 290,986
R2023%1518  Asat 1 January 2023 29,356 258,070 2,047 468 449 596 290,986
SABE Credited to profit or loss 49,335 (37,699) 754 3,388 (124) (12) 15,642
R2023E As at 31 December

12A31H 2023 78,691 220,311 2,801 3,856 325 584 306,628




31 EEFTFH (&)

(0

20235 K2022F RN - RIEFR (9)
BREEMELEMEHAEGENE

BMEHNOT - (B)

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

—Eo=FFR 287

E R SR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and

deferred income tax liabilities during 2023 and 2022 are as

follows: (Continued)

BLEREHAEE (i)  Deferred income tax liabilities:
HE BEEE st
Intangible
Leases assets Total
AR®BTn AR®Tr AR%®TrR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M2021%12831H As at 31 December 2021 531 731 1,262
HRBEBSER Effects of the adoption of
F12RZIBETE amendments to HKAS 12 208,139 = 208,139
R2022F181H8 As at 1 January 2022 208,670 731 209,401
FFAER Credited to profit or loss 22,733 (69) 22,664
7A2022%12A31H As at 31 December 2022 231,403 662 232,065
"2023F181H As at 1 January 2023 231,403 662 232,065
ST AEZE Credited to profit or loss (26,273) (74) (26,347)
A2023%F12831H As at 31 December 2023 205,130 588 205,718

MW20234F128318 - &
FEFRAAADEFNBEE
EHEREZBEAARE
402BE87L (2022F : AR
5227 8m) - WERNS
R R I R B A E e
NHHRIERAELCHES
BEARBA40EE T (2022
F:ARES2EET)
RE AR B EH &7
NEHR BB A RE
B E R A & KR KA

BEg D IKAME

As at 31 December 2023, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries in
the PRC amounted to RMB402 million (2022: RMB522
million). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB40 million
(2022: RMB52 million) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and
it has been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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32 REREER 32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) BEFTRAS (a) Cash used in operations
R2023F 20224 © BFTIER Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
AIAE B 2B P15 3R 2 AR - generated from operations for 2023 and 2022:

BZ12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December

2023F 20224

2023 2022

Bt 5E ARET T ARETT

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

K PT1S B AT ES 18 Loss before income tax (585,219) (109,466)

HUATSIEELFE Adjustments for:

rER#H Depreciation and amortisation 9 334,840 224,672

LARR 57 72 EE 1t &9 5 B Share-based compensation 10 184 184
HEWE - BERKZMER  Losses on disposal of property,

518 plant and equipment 8 59,849 2,036
RERIEMEMERNS  Gains on early termination of

e property leases 8 (6,454) (2,121)
& F A R R IR ER Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 8 (7,500) =
BEAREBEFAERESN Net fair value losses on financial

TRIERENANER liabilities at fair value through

BB FEE profit or loss 8 3,636 =
B IO Finance costs 11 54,164 51,227
MEMKA Interest income 11 (12,701) (15,262)
STREEREBE Impairment losses on financial assets 257 138
ME - WE REBER Impairment losses on property,

REEE plant and equipment 8 13,297 =
EERREESR Impairment losses on goodwill 8 14,832 -
P& S EE (k) Exchange losses/(gains) 12,006 (88,120)
EBA#E Change in working capital:

—FE — Inventories 12,084 (34,951)
— B 5 NHMBEWFIE « - Trade and other receivables,

TEfTRIE R iRE prepayments and deposits 145 (1,935)
—Z 5 RHMERMFKIE - Trade and other payables 60,461 (53,474)
—&6RBE - Contract liabilities 27,378 (34,547)

EIBEFTRAR S Cash used in operations (18,741) (61,619)
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32 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Non-cash financing activities

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December

20235 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REFRAEEE Addition of right-of-use assets 241,527 279,162
RAEENA B2 FA#E  Reduction in right-of-use assets and lease
BENHEAGBRD liabilities due to lease modification
(BsE17(b)) (Note 17(b)) (15,025) (11,071)
FERYER (c) Net debt reconciliation
M12H31H8
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
Bt AR¥T AREET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BeMIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 603,215 565,093
TEHFR Term deposits 23 = 412,940
B Borrowings 28 (152,816) =
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 (942,737) (1,035,602)
FE Net debt (492,338) (57,569)
RERBELZED Cash and cash equivalents 24 603,215 565,093
TEHF K Term deposits 23 = 412,940
BIETS Gross debt (1,095,553) (1,035,602)
FEB Net debt (492,338) (57,569)
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32 HEREER (&)

(c)

32

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

HREBEHER (E) (c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)
METHAEAE
Liabilities from financing
activities
ReRBRE
HE &R ZEN EHER @t
Cash and
cash Term
Leases Borrowings  equivalents deposits Total
ARETT AR%Tr AR%Tn AR¥TR AR¥T:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022F18188 Net debt as at 1 January
FEE 2022 (947,358) (74,173) 1,566,192 - 544,661
BenE Cash flows 194,664 74,173 (1,092,181) 408,840 (414,504)
I E New leases (277,041) - - - (277,041)
HERHRLE Termination of lease contracts 32,684 = = = 32,684
HEES Lease modification 11,071 = = = 11,071
BB B SR A Finance costs recognised (49,622) = = = (49,622)
ERERNHBUA Finance income recognised = = = 4,100 4,100
B i e Exchange gain - - 91,082 = 91,082
#2022612A31H%  Net debt as at 31 December
FEE 2022 (1,035,602) - 565,093 412,940 (57,569)
R202351HA181 Net debt as at 1 January
FEB 2023 (1,035,602) - 565,093 412,940 (57,569)
BeRE Cash flows 239,102 (152,736) 43,225 (407,966) (278,375)
HEIHE New leases (241,527) - - - (241,527)
MEANKLE Termination of lease contracts 132,006 - - - 132,006
HEEY Lease modification 15,025 = - - 15,025
BREROHBBA Finance income recognised - - - 5,613 5,613
BRERRB A Finance costs recognised (51,741) (80) = = (51,821)
BAAEEAEREH  Net fair value losses on
SREBENAAERE financial liabilities at fair
BETE value through profit or loss - - - (3,636) (3,636)
EHEE Exchange loss - = (5,103) (6,951) (12,054)
R2023%F12H31HH  Net debt as at 31 December
REK 2023 (942,737) (152,816) 603,215 - (492,338)
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33 A 33 COMMITMENTS
(a) BAHEIE (a) Capital commitments
RIERARDITHNEHRERE Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
BEMBEAEARARZHNOT : the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as
follows:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 F 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEMERERLZER Leasehold improvement and infrastructure
BRRR AT NG of safety and medical treatment 5,481 35,550
Hibz - BERR Other property, plant and equipment 3,378 2,352
8,859 37,902
(b) FE&AE (b) Lease commitments
AEEREHEE (BREeERE The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
AEAEEEREERE) TFX due under short-term leases (which are exempted from
REBz xEHESENRAEER recognising the related right-of-use assets and lease
T liabilities) are as follows:
M12H831H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
ARBT T AR¥ETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

—FRA Within 1 year 393 153
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34 B RS

M— AN ERAMBEEG ST
IHER—TEMBEREERRLER
ERFE eI RARSEBHEY -
ANEE Ty A AR AR R IR Al — 2 il s
RZES - TR RSEAME - A&
BEXEEEABRLIBIKEKE T
KBS ZME T -

BUEAHMBBRREMEHMRE
EFIN > RImERA - AR E EHE R
TETTMTEARRS - ARAEES
R BBEAIRSDIRBEEXETBRE
RiRA KB EE G BT TR E AR
T  AEBEBEHR I RXZINER
BERIERBETHEERERE -

(a) FEEEEAEHMH

TEEHEERREERS AR
B pEEBRBONAENER
ERENFMIIRIT

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are under common control or joint control in the controlling
shareholder’s families. Members of key management and their
close family member of the Group are also considered as related
parties.

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the following significant transactions were carried
out between the Group and its related parties during the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the related party transactions were carried out in the normal
course of business and at terms negotiated between the Group
and the respective related parties. The Group’s pricing policies
of the transactions with related parties are determined on the
basis of mutual negotiations between the relevant parties.

(a) Key management personnel compensation
Key management includes directors and senior officers.

The compensations paid or payable to key management for
employee services are shown below:

BZE12A31HILLEE
Year ended 31 December

2023 20224

2023 2022

AR¥F T ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

IE& - FHekitd Wages, salaries and bonus 9,801 9,405
BESHA - AT Pension costs — defined contribution plans

HERETE 447 385

H AR Other social security costs 297 255

EFE T Housing benefits 305 258

ARG AD 72 B 18 B0 3 B Share-based compensation 23 26

10,873 10,329
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35 EEEMNRER 35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) EEM= (a) Directors’ emoluments

B E2023F K%20225F12A31H The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
IEFE - EFE KB UE B their role as senior management and employee before their
S (EHBEZEREEZAIH A appointment as directors respectively) for the years ended
LUEREBEERES 1K) &5 31 December 2023 and 2022 are set out below:
LU

Efge.

EERER EEZEAA  DROABEBRM

Rtk e BEERA - RERTGTH 1R @it

Basic salaries,

housing Pension
allowances costs - defined  Share-based
and other Discretionary ~ contribution  compensation
allowances Fees bonuses plans expenses Total
Wi ARETz ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
BZ2023F128318  For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2023
yEs Executive Directors
[ Mr. Zhang Yu 1,648 - 3 65 = 1,716
BTH/RT Ms. Han Zhimei 778 = 248 65 9 1,100
REBLE Mr. Zhang Hui 779 = 248 65 7 1,099
3,205 - 499 195 16 3,915
FYTES Non-executive Director
YEREE Mr. Geng Jiagi (i = = = = = =
BUkHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
RmBEE Mr. Chan Peng Kuan - 181 = = = 181
FINERE Mr. Li Xiaopei = 180 = - = 180
REATT Ms. Liang Jihong (i) - 180 - - - 180
- 541 - - - 541
BZ2022%125318  For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2022
yi7Es Executive Directors
REf4 Mr. Zhang Yu 1424 - 1 65 = 1,490
Bt Ms. Han Zhimei 676 - 353 60 9 1,098
RELE Mr. Zhang Hui 570 - 336 59 7 972
2,670 - 690 184 16 3,560
F4rEs Non-executive Directors
IR E Mr. Geng Jiag (i = = = - - -
BERE Mr. Zhai Feng (i = = - - - -
BUFHTES Independent non-executive
Directors
RRHEE Mr. Chan Peng Kuan - 179 - - - 179
ZIMERAE Mr. Li Xiaopei - 17 - - - m
P AR Ms. Liang Jihong (il - 90 = = = 90
Tt Ms. Wang Jiping (i) = 84 = = = 84

= 525 = = = 525
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35 EEREAM N EE (&)

(a) EEM= (&)

(i)

(ii)

B EBEN2022F6 A
28 HEBHE o IEMITEFZE
BRAERIEFHLEERE
ERAEBERERBE K
B H) B & 30 JE R AN & B
- -HRARAITERER
B EAEN DL
HEENNEeWIESREE
NEME -

FTHESFLZTER2022F6
F28HEHE - R4+
H2022%6 A28 HEEZR
TAAEBEBILIERNITTE
%0

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) Mr. Zhai Feng resigned on 28 June 2022. The
emoluments of the non-executive director Mr. Zhai
Feng and Mr. Geng Jiagi in relation to their services
rendered for the Group were not borne by the
Group. Their emoluments were not allocated to the
Group as the management of the Company considers
there is no reasonable basis of allocation.

(i) Ms. Wang lJiping resigned on 28 June 2022. Ms.
Liang Jihong has been appointed as the Group’s
independent non-executive director with effect from
28 June 2022.

ESRAEEREQAY ESHARHUEEERATR
HYARESRHNBREME HY R AEBEANHE MRS
S A R B B A < AR R [k SAE L) b HEt et

Aggregate emoluments paid

Aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors
to or receivable by directors in respect of their other
in respect of their services  services in connection with the
as directors, whether of the  management of the affairs of
Company or its subsidiary the Company or its subsidiary

undertaking undertaking Total Total
20234 20224 20234 20224 20234 20224
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
AR¥T T AR¥ETTT AR¥T T AR¥ETT AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
541 525 3,915 3,560 4,456 4,085

(b) EERAKRBEREF

HZE2023F12A31HLEFE -
B AN QR E B R IR kB
R4S F (20224 : &) -

() RERHESRBQE=
FHRENKE

HZE2023F12A31HILEFE -
MEREREEEREAE=FH
REARE (20224 : &) -

(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

No retirement or termination benefits have been paid to
the Company’s directors for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: nil).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).
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35 EEEANRER (&)

(d) BRUESE  EFEGHH
EABBEREBERERRS
E@mANER - BUER
REMRZHNER

HZE2023F12A31HIEFE -
ANARBEFIINES EFF
BlEEABEREBEEE AR
HmANER  BUEREEAMR
5 (2022%F &) -

(e) EERXZ - ZHHEHN
HEXER

REZE2023F12A831HILFE
FERGEMERE - HEAAHR
EBEA— AT RARREERE
FHBEEARNER (BREEIH
¥) BEARE EEKAEBN TR
BEARS REREHNARER
(20224 + &) -

36 WEER

AEERABERBBAEP S RETH
ReoRNERELERERERLKAA
BEAFRERE  AEEDHEZS
REAERINBRELEE - HE
BEERREESEMGARDERKE
BREMREITIAAEEXRERRL - Al
PNEBARRFAAEH B

35

36

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors.

No loans, quasi-loans or other dealings were entered into
by the Company in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the years or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

CONTINGENCIES

The Group has been involved in some lawsuits arising in the
ordinary course of business. Provision has been made for
the probable losses to the Group on those claims when the
management can reasonably estimate the outcome of the
lawsuits taking into account of the legal advice. No provision has
been made for those pending lawsuits where the management
considered that the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be
reasonably estimated or management believes the outflow of
resources is not probable.

295



296 ZERBEEEAMRALT YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

B O B 15 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 AATEEBEERRE 37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

B E MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 & 20224
2023 2022
B aE ARET T AREET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
&= Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
RFREIZEE Investment in subsidiaries 765,039 765,039
IERBEELE Total non-current assets 765,039 765,039
REEE Current assets
BSRIE - 'e k& Prepayments, deposits and other
H i JE WK IE receivables 588,398 384,631
TE B Term deposits = 272,290
ReRIBREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 125,087 151,852
MEEERE Total current assets 713,485 808,773
EERE Total assets 1,478,524 1,573,812
fE= Equity
[N Share capital 25 8 8
& mimE Share premium 1,588,268 1,588,268
PIEBRMEEIHEAR  Shares held for employee share scheme
[iav) 27 (175,533) (79,038)
HEM#EE Other reserves 538 538
RE AT Retained earnings 19,525 29,940
EREE Total equity 1,432,806 1,539,716
=L Liabilities
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 & HE MR Trade and other payables 45,718 34,096
mEBERRE Total current liabilities 45,718 34,096
aEeE Total liabilities 45,718 34,096
EERAEHETE Total equity and liabilities 1,478,524 1,573,812
RABNEEABREN2024F3 A4 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
28HESEFEHETHATALTRE of Directors on 28 March 2024 and signed on its behalf:
BE
WITES : RELAE WITES - RIBAAE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Yu Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Hui



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =Z==%%F3% 297

E R SR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 ANEEEBMBERERM 37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
w25 (&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) XARIEREH (a) Equity movement of the Company
HES
Riratal REER/
Bx  RXEE HENRG  EEEE  (RREB) 25
Shares
held for Retained
employee earnings/
Share Share share Other (accumulated
capital  premium scheme reserves losses) Total

ARBIR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTn ARMTr ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

HORE1A1ANES Balance at 1 January 2022 § 1496389 - 538 (11171) 1,485,764
ERFIE Profit for the year - - - - 81,169 81,169
2ANGAE Total comprehensive income - - - = 81,169 81,169
RERBEANRS Transaction with equity holders
ROFRELERBEMET  Issuance of ordinary shares
L@k upon the over-allotment 25 - 91,879 = = = 91,879
REDK Dividend distribution 15(a) = = = = (40,058) (40,058)
WEAEEM ParBIMERG  Acquisition of shares under
employee share scheme 27 - - (79,038) - - (79,038)
R202F12 831 B H4H Balance at 31 December 2022 8 1588268 (79,038) 538 29940 1,539,716
R2023F1B1RHLS Balance at 1 January 2023 8 1,588,268 (79,038) 538 29,940 1,539,716
FRE Loss for the year - - - - (10,415 (10,415)
2EHEAR Total comprehensive income - - - - (10,415) (10,415)
HEERAANRS Transaction with equity holders
RERERMERERR  Acquisition of shares under
employee share scheme 27 - - (96,495) - - (96,495)
R2023% 12 B31 BEV S Balance at 31 December 2023 8 1,588,268 (175,533) 538 19,525 1,432,806

& I EREE/ N AR5 1,0007T © 3 The balance stated above was less than RMB1,000.
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[BRRBAFAE]
“AGM"

[ESERMA ]
“Articles of Association”

[EREEE

“Audit Committee”
[FAZE ]

“Beijing Xunyi”

[Exg]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[KBELHS ]
“BVI"

[FHEFESARE]
“Cayman Islands Companies

Act”

[{EER<FA]
“CG Code”

[EER

“Chairman”

MER ] FE
“China” or the “PRC”

[AAF ]

“Company” or “Our Company”

[EH%HE]

“Contractual Arrangements”

1§12024F6 A21 BRITHAARINKREAFRE

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 21 June 2024

RATMABERMR (ETEHEET)
the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

ExguTERZEAS

the audit committee of the Board

TRABMRERERAF - —RN2016F 11 16 BIRBFEEZKRINEREER
A REANZEREMONTAR

Beijing Xunyi Technology Development Company Limited (It ABRIEFZERAR A
al), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on November 16,
2016, our subsidiary by virtue of the Contractual Arrangements

KRAREEE

the board of Directors of the Company

KBRS
the British Virgin Islands

FMEREEMCRATNE) (BETM) (B ARIEET » Mz sk AE T X&)
the Companies Act (As Revised) of the Cayman Islands as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

ETRAIMERC MR EEETRD

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

EEeFRE
the Chairman of the Board

REARKENE  REABREMETIREES - PRERFIRSIITRERAE

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong Kong,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
ERABEEEBRAR  —KN2020F9A8 17 AREBERASHSFZEFMA LN ERE R
NS

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (EAREHFEEEBRAF), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on September 17, 2020

H(EFeE tRElR - F2RR AR RAENREBII VN —RIEHOLH
(RIERAME) - BEFBERARBRERZ SR —6

the series of contractual arrangements, as the case may be, entered into by,
among others, Beijing Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and
the VIE Entities, details of which are described in the section headed “Contractual
Arrangements” in the Prospectus



[E=Z ]

“Director(s)”

[ &E]
"Group”

[T
“HK dollar(s)” or “HK$"”

(&%)
“Hong Kong”

[
“Listing”

LT BEH]
“Listing Date”

[ WAl

“Listing Rules”

[EMR]

“Main Board”

[Z%=<FA ]
“Model Code”

[REEEE

“Nomination Committee”

[BRER]

“Prospectus”

[ ERERR ]
“Registered Shareholders”

[FMEES

“Remuneration Committee”
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KRAESE
the director(s) of the Company

RARRHEFAT
the Company and its subsidiaries

BT BREETEY

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

HEEESITTHE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

M 72021412 B 13 BEBRAER LW
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on December 13,
2021

20215128138 REHEZR EHOHAH
December 13, 2021, being the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main Board

B2 PR R A (EARHEET A 5T)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

Bt FTER
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

FHARBIMSRCIAMEMNC LM BITAEZFTETE SR X HNEFESTR]D
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

ExgETREZEAS

the nomination committee of the Board

RAFFTIE B A2021612 A1 ANBKRER
the prospectus issued by the Company dated December 1, 2021

AR MAEARRK - DRARELRERKRERENRPBREBESE
two individual shareholders of Beijing Xunyi, namely Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. ZHANG
Hui, Mr. Zhang Yu's younger brother

EReRTHHZES

the remuneration committee of the Board
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[AR® ]

“Renminbi” or “RMB"”

[#R&H ]
“Reporting Period”

[R5
“Shareholder(s)”

gl
“Share(s)”
[

"Stock Exchange”

[XH ]

"U.S.”, “US”, or "United States”

=

“U.S. dollar(s)” or “US$”

[VIE]
"IE"

[A#RHEE ]

“VIE Entities”

REAFERERN  BRXESEFEIN
(Bt AL THEEEE ] -
[ERBRRIRIFRARIIE

RAFTIE T2 FAEMRE -

[EEEAL] -
ARAB LM

ARKETT  hBUEEEY

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

20231 A1HZE202312 4318+ & A #ifE
the twelve-month period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023

RHEEZ=DN
holder(s) of Share(s)

A2 RIIRAAH GAREE0.0000025 3 TTH E iBAR
ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.0000025 each in the share capital of the
Company

ERMARSHAARRAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EFRERE
the United States of America

ET 0 ENBRERBEEEE
United States doIIar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of America

ABFIREE
variable interest entity

HMBBANTHRHE TR LRENER  RERERAIITEE
ERREERANBFRME (BEERRIN KK ZER

the entities that we control certain percentage of their shareholding through the
Contractual Arrangements which comprised, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Yonghe
Investment, Medical Institutions (other than Chengdu Yonghe) wholly-owned by
Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe

BREAKRE

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “associated corporation”,
“connected person”, “controlling shareholder” and “subsidiary” shall
have the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the
context otherwise requires.
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